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. CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC (‘CSH”, “Civitas” er
| the "Company’) if

evfts across the UK in care-based

tulfilled lh'res-.:[t deiivers bettet pe:sona]' out'come_s‘.and

costs of th@r service Remdems whose average age is o 32
y'arwde i thetr adapted CSH commumty ]

' ‘argamsaaons m receipt of publ;c hmdm :

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The Local Authority designs a care
package, identilying a care
provider and property for the
individual.

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and

pays rent te the Approved Provider,

or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directly.

The Approved Provider pays
Civitas the rent.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers

C5r 15 a leading provider of care-based community
housing in “he UL "t was established 1n 2076 by the
founders of 1s ‘nvestmen: Adviser, CIvlias ivesimen:
Vanagemen: _imited ("CIV) from the long-standing
convicnon that private capital could play a vizal and
ethical role in the dehvery of homes wihin the social
housing secor.

CS= belteves tha: access 1o a degen: home 15 a hasic

human ngh: from which so much more can be achieved,

particularly for people who are hving with a hife-long
disability With millions of people stuck on housing
waning lists across the LK or rapped in long stay
hospitals, Csr becarre the first public company o bring
large scale equity investmen: .o the seCiorn

The Company has the dual objecuves of achieving both
postuve financial rerurns and large scale measurable
s50C1al Impact.
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Our Portfolio
as at 31 March 2022

£969m 696

Investment property
independently valued’

(March 2021: £916m)

Properties
~ {(March 2021: 619)

4,592

Tenanis

(March 2021: 4,295)

Company Overview

as at 31 March 2022

- 675,547

NAvEGOR

1 037 089




Financial Highlights

for the year ended 31 March 2022

7.23p

{2021: 5.80p)

| Basic and Diluted Earnings. |

per Share

£54.1m

(2021 £50.8m based upon.

£915.6m real estate

Annualised Rent Roli*; based upan,
£969m of real estate it the end of

ber

(2021: 225 yrs) |

Weighted Average

| Unexpired Lease Term*

How We Performed
Financial Highlights for the year ended 31 March 2022

Profit before tax
£44.8m +24.1%

IFRS NAV per share?

110.30p +1.9%

IFRS NAV
£675.5m +0.3%

Toatoion Fonee 2 oion

2022 2022 2022

2078 AN A0

561 108,20 67358

577 107.87 6706 ...

EPRA EPS* Total shareholder IFRS NAV increase
4.82p -2.2% return® +11.6% since IPO* +12.6%
Ponee Poroon: Forasn:
2022 2022 2022
EX
2021 BV | 2071

- 4.9% 265 10.6

PARYAM 20740 ZAVELH

463 204 . 01 ..
Investment Dividends declared Annualised rent
property? (Ordinary shares) roll*

£968.8m +5.8% 5.55p +2.8% £54.1m +6.5%

S L 1on Fenes £l 1ot

2022 2022 2022

AG7] 302 200

9186 ‘540 - 50.8

e787 830 484

B Altermmanve Pertormanae Measures Terms ate delined in the Glossary
1on an thrdinaty shate held since launch (percentage nol annualised)
2 mvestment property mdependently valued See note 15 0 of the Consohidaled Finanaal Statements lor details of the valuation
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Key Achievements
Operational Highlights
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696 Hrovenes £835 million 4,592 tenants w.1" based on supported Dy across 178 Local
acqulred: nvested- dependabe ong-ter 130 care Authority Pariners
accommodaton leases s.gned with providers
18 Approved
Providers

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its fourth annual
independent Social Impact Report on Civitas, noted that Civitas continues to be an
authentic impact investor’ according to IFC operating principles and is proactive in
its approach tc asset management, taking well defined steps to improve the quality
of existing homes, especially in terms of improving environmental performance.

1 over the life of the Company as at 31 Majch 2082

Levered IRR* since IPO (IFRS and Portfolic Basis)

Al

Past perlormance Js not A rebable imdicator of funite performance

* Altvernative Pettormanae Measure See Appendix 1 1ot the calculabon

Share price performance (pence)
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~Chairman’s Statement

From the Chairman
- The need for quality housing for the most vulnerable
in society is more acute than ever. Thanks to the dedicated
efforts of our Investment Admer and partners, the Company
has reported: _
Kents achieéved as normal, adius!ed tor inflation ind:xamm
Audnet! IFRS NAV per share rgsﬂiem at uo.aop up LB5%)

Ovvataﬁ mrovev! nnanclak anel nperaﬁbna! performance: qm our parm
-Approved Providers
Active asletmmgeme«m mmderpﬁxlnnq-mm quamy

5 -Michael Wrobel

REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2024

CLYITAS SOCIAL HUUSING PLO

[~

i Chairman

Introduction

I am pleased o0 report that the Company has achieved
another year of sirong financial and operaaonal
performance. Our posinve social impacst 1§ deiatled in
a repor: from *he independens: specialis: consuliancy
The Good mconomy {“I'GE™.

The vear pregented many challenges. The pressuares of
che COVID-19 pandemic on our tenanss and *heir carers
highhghts the benefits of providing communiy-hased
care housing for vulnerable adulis of working age. Junng
the year the Company came under az*ack from a small
namber of invesiors shor-zelling the Company’s shares,
one of whom published a senes of cnucisms thas the
30ard refuted in a very detalled response. The share price,
having raded a® a premium o NAV early in the financal
year. dropped sharply to & discount a7 the year end.

One of the Board responses has been 0 1nmate a share
buy-back programme which enhances the Net Asse: Value
of the Company and confirms the 3oard's confidence

in the robus: natare of the Company's cashflows and
asse: values.

Our nvestmen: Advizer, Cvizas nvesimen: Vanagemern:
“tmted (CVT has excepnonal knowledge of the indusiry
and contmnaes o add o 125 zeam o enhance our porfoho.
C../ has Been working on an iniilative (o miradace a
variation o our leases, thar will not impac: revernaes or
asse: values. but which aimns o strengthen the industry
by addressing concerns expressed by the Regulasor for
Social “ousing.

Financial Performance

ourning the yvear ander review our porsfolio generated
renzal income of £57.6 mullion, represeniung a $.5%
ncrease over the corresponding period Thig reflects
the indexanon of lease rents {dunng a penod of mos:ty
very low inflation! together with new rents from a small
number of properaes purchased dunng the year.

Cash generated from operations was F37 5 milhon,
an hicrzase of 3834 over the pnor yvear
on a comparable basis).

125 net asse: value of the Company ihcreased from
“0B.30 pence per Ordinary share as a- 3 Varch 2020 o
TR pence per share as a3 arch 2027

P This s a tatget ardd not a4 lotmal dividend loracast ol o profit fotecast

The Company has met the Board's stated dividend targe:
of 8.55 pence per share for the year to 4. March 2022

and *he 3oard hag set a new dividend arge: of a: leas:
5.770' pence per share for the year :0 3. March 2023,

Board Governance

The 3oard 1s curren:ly looking o recriir a new
independent direcior. having regard 1o succession, our
bread:th of skills and diversity.

The 3oard and the Invesiment Adviser continue an open
dialogue with our sharehotders 1o further demonsirase
our commitmen: o provide full rransparency at all ames.

Continuation Vote

The Company's aricles of associanon reguire the
doard 10 propose a conunualon vole as an ordinary
resolution a: the annual general meenng following

“he fifth anmiversary from the inmal pubhe offenng of
~he Company and a7 every fifth AGV thereafier This

18 referred o later in more dezail within the epor: of
“he Directors. Collowing discussions with a number of
shareholders and given the sirength and nature of the
Company's porifolio and long-term ienants, the recors
are of the opimon thas the continuanon reselation at
“he forthcoming AGM will be passed and encourage all
shareholders *o vore in favour

Outlook

The sector in which the Company inves:s offers many
positive atnbuaies in anncreasingly unceriain world We
penefiz from hugh levels of iInmnsic underlying demand for
our properies All of our leases benefi: from C2 uphf on
renzs. some of which are subdec: 1o a 4% cap. Together with
aur parners, w= enable the dehvery of high qualy, valae
for money care services for our tenarns.

Qur ininiatves on newvs lease clauses and further projec s
with .00 w0 reduce our carbaon foorprin: will deliver
further benefir 10 our stakeholders. We Took 10 “he furure
wnzh confidence,

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

29 June 2022



N ering base of giobal hzvestors

' Civitas mvests on behaii of a- wide range of global national and local imestors seeking exposure to
sp_s'amable_?go_ng_ erm incotmne together with meas__urab}e__ social impact angd higrh levels of ESG t;ie}:wery

Four Continents..
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Our Portfolio

By UK Region as at 31 March 2022
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North East 64 38 70
North West i01 101 98
Yorkshire and the Humber 9 10.8 10.5
East Midlands 98 86 85
West Midiands 101 1.3 1.2
East of England 32 40 39
South East 64 101 9.9
South West 120 133 1535

" Wales 34 1.0 10.5
i Leondon 26 128 13.2

Market Value (%)
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Our Portfolio continuea
By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2022

Annualised Rent Roll (%) Properties
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Continuous
Improveme

In the year to March 2022 CIM, working with the CSH Board, has led the
development of a range of key initiatives to strengthen and position CSH and its
portfolioc for the future,

Proposed New Regulatory Clause
e Counierparies betier able 10 achieve regulaiory compliance
anced informano Jolby having regard o tenan: welfare) in addiuon o
existing lease rransfer and assignmenst rights
Unchanged lease and properry values supported by strong underlying demand

improved Governance

S-otmes of 50 residents who hve in Civitas properties
Iy independently compited and written
~xiensive number of interviews with residents, their famihes, friends and their carers

Phase two work with E.ON
Conurged waork across 120 propernes

S1on N carkon em

e Asset Management

» Tinance and operations

& ‘Transaction sourcing and execution
« Housing Benefit

CIVITAS SOUTAT FTOUSING PILE
REPORT AN ACCOUNTS 2022
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Civhas Social 1-19' sing p:.c (CSH) is the market leaderin

Introduction

Civitas Investmen: Managemens: _imited {C.M), the invesimen: Adwiser :0 CS=, advises on a range of ethically based
soctal and healthcare real estate funds with commited capizal of c.£5kn. 1V advises these funds on behalf of vanous
global investors wogeher with a wide range of local authonty pension funds and dedicated impact investors

The increased scale of 178 operations has enabled CIM 1o create a large team of dedicated professionals in the specialist
healtheare sector and 1o make this expertse avallable 10 each of the adwvised funds, including CSH

On behalf of the nvestment Adviser and CS=, we would hike o offer our thanks o all of our parners whe have continued
0 provide high-qualizy care. suppors, and housing. and o our inves:ors who enable the provision of over 4,500 quality
homes for some of the mos: vulnerable people in society.

Overview of Results

(C8H 15 the market leader in the delivery of much-neaded long-term housing with care in the LK and leading the charge
for ethucal investmens: in ~he sec:or. These full year resuits show a number of key achievernans and themes:

o  Approaching six years of consisien: rental grow:h and e An acavely managed por:folio with a secior-leading
progressive drvidend paymern:s tha: have mmcreased ream of professionals assisting and enabling high
from an irutal 3p per share o 555p per share quality and longevity of homes and incorme.
reflecting dividend grow:h ahead of inflation. ¢ Profegsional suppor: to enable Approved Providers 1o

¢ Rentsindexed in-iine with the Consumer “rice index enhance the quality of their dehivery and demonsirate
as Approved 2rowviders are able o claim mflaton long-term financial and operational independence.
adjus:ment paymen:s from local authontes, and with e Ownership of properies hat faciliates the dehivery
no disruption from COV™2-19. of high levels of care with 40% of residents recewving

e A high-quality invesimen: cred:: raung from “1ich over 30 hours of care paer week.
daiungs of A secured and A- unsecured, that has been s Anactive programme working with 20N o
matn:ained over ume. permanently reduce carbon emissions across the

e Jegsign, negotiation and announcemen® of a new porfolio leading 0 lower energy cos's for residen:s
marke: leading regulatory clause, to be implemented and a more carbon neural portfolio.

over me on a relfrospecive basis, assisting
Approved Providersn regulatory discuassions with no
diminuiion to lease or asse: values.

2207 SLNDODOV (INY LECIEH
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CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLUC
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Market Commentary

As outdined in the Chairman's Statement, CM s pleased
10 note tha: the secior has contnued 10 see progress in
terms of the beter delvery of the Specialis: Supported
Housing (3SKH) model with quality commissioning at the
hear: of projec:s. This 15 essential 10 ensure tha: each
property is suitable for *he needs of individuals and o
mee: the abjectives set by the relevant local authory.

—aving dedicated considerabie ("M resource 10 working
closely with the Company's Approved Providers we
have seen continued progress in the quality of their
performance which has wranslated (nto greatly improved
financial resulis and governance

Several Approved Providers who had previously stepped
saking on new properies 1o focus on sirengthening their
own teams and sysiems have now begun 1o consider
new opporiunities in a disciphned manner, consisten®
with the objecuve of further perfermance enhancement.

At the same e 1218 farr 20 say that Approved Providers
have moved a: different paces and while some have
seen rapid success, others stll need 1o make further
operanonal and financial improvemeants, C.M s
supportive of these ambiiions and having seen matenal
Improvements in the gector remains focused on
offering 1%s assistance to drnive forward standards for the
Company's parners.

What 1z clear1s tha: demand for ¢ualty
commuanity-based housing remains strong and mos:
commentators believe thar providing valnerable people
with an opportinizy o Iive in ~heir own home or in
smaller facilizies near o farmily 1s the best solution

for them

While working closely with Approved 2roviders

and specialis: care providers, CV. has coninued o
focus on the core fundamenczals of ensunng that the
por:foho operazes at 155 very bes:t. for instance ensurnng
comphance for all key property memces and collecing
rental Income tha: s due

The year saw modes: addinons to the porfolio of around
£37 million 1n new properies including “he provision

of a number of properuies for those seeking asylum.

The properies are backed by tong-rerm governmen:

conracis with COUNI_rpariies -ha: have SITONg Covenarwts.

Arthe same ume the Company coninues "o develop
and implemen: high standards of social impact,
which 1s independenly measured. as well as forging
leading relanonships with key charties and other
sec:or bodles. The commizmen- o "ackle tha challenge
of decarbonisation contunues wth the further
implementanon of -he propery retrofir programme

Background

The sectorin which the Company operates s subsiantally
funded by the S:ate as par of he long-standing
commizmen: -0 provide support for vulnerable adualts.

The UK 15 not alone in this approach and indeed the
United Naucns developed polices that have been adopted
by the UX, the European Union and 183 States 1n to:al that
provide a framework for the provision of this suppor:. The
“Convension on the ugh:s of Persons with Disabilities” was
signed by the then UX Government in 2007 and enacted
inso law in 2008

The Convenion sets ourr broad nghss for those considered
cdisabled in Article 1:

“To promore, prozect and ensure £l and equal enjoymen:
of all human ngh's and fundamen:al freedoms by all
persons with disabilizies and o promaorte respec: for their
inherent dignry”

Aracle 19 specifically covers housing, including the righss
to hve independenily and be mcluded 1n the communuty,
Arucie 20 refers <o personal molity, Aricle 26 10
habilization and rehabilitation, and Aracles 29 and $C o
the nght o paracipate m pohical and public life, culraral
Iife, recreation and spors.

Speacalist Supporied Zousing of the type provided by

“he Company 1s designed o fulfill these objacives and
predates the implementanion of the LN Convention. The
requirement to provide suppor: for vulnerable people
was further enshnned in:o UX law by the Care Act 2024
which confirms the responsibbihzy of aathonues o provnade
appropriate suppor: and care There 1s elling esumony in
‘he publicanon ‘A Place for /e (Sponsored by CS= and the
Nanonal Care Group?, highlighred later in thig repor:, on
“he ‘ransformational effec: $5= has upon people’s ives,

‘nerms of curren: legislation, the Health and Care 311l was

“he rends of joining up N=8 heal:hcare services with
social care through the formatnon of niegrated Care
Systems {{C8s) This s supporve of the furms of care and
communy housing delivered by the Company.




Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Government Policy

The newly combined Governmern: Depariment

for Levelling Up, Housing and Commamities, is a
demonstration of how vital the Governmen: believes
decent housing 15 to 118 central levelling ap agenda.
ndeed, the Levelling Up white paper, published 1n
“ebruary 2022, makes clear that the provision of high
quality, affordable housing 15 a major Governmen: prionty.

Crvitas was founded in the belief that private capnal,
shoughtfully and responsitly invested. 1s a key elemens

o this provision, especially in the area of the Specialist
Supported Housing Sector in which CIM specializses

‘Thiz i1s because the large ~ousing Associations consider
chemselves poorly sunted to delivenng these bespoke and
adapted properies. which are often located on brownfield
land within communiiies, whereas the larger —ousing
Associanons tend o focus on multi-umt, urnform new
developmen:s. Civiias, therefore, fulfils a need for which
there 15 a clear marke: gap and a huge and growng
demand.

n addinion, the ias: few years have seen a renewed focus
from the RSH on the requiremens: o listen carefully o
residents’ voices and take their views and needs into
account This 1s something in which Civitas already
excels: CiM has close and proactuve relationships with
our Approved *rovider and Care partners, and, through
chemn, with the residen:s themselves. Svidence for this
can be seen n the high levels of satisfaciion amongst our
residen:s, the high levels of health and safety complance
and ren: collecuon: and the low levels of COVID-1G
shroughou: the pandemuc.

Demand for Social Housing

n September 2020 the Nauonal Housing lederarion
estuimated that there were 8 milhion people 1n seme
form of housing need, tha: 1.6 million households were
on official waiing hsis and there were a: least 129.000
children ving in t:emporary accommodation.

Supply for new affordable housing 15 very low and
significan:ly lower than demand. 'n addinon. supply

is further constrained by the demands placed upon
existing large developing housing providers in meeting
*he costs generated by fire safery measures post Grenfell,
remediation of cladding. the cos: of reducmg carbon
emissions and addisional consumer regulation proposed
n *he White Paper on social housing “A charter for social
housing residents”

When 11 comes 1o Specialis: Supported Housing, “he
long-sianding and ongoing rise in working age adul's
with complex physical, mental and soclal care needs,
requiring suppored housing with care. means tha: the
demand for high quahity $8= of the sor: provided by
Civitas is expecied 10 continue ¢ grow.

Summary & Outlook

Civitas 1s the leading mmdependent operator in a sector n
which there 1s enormo.ig and growing demand and. due
<0 the highly specialised nature of the work being carred
out, high barners to entry. Civitas 15 acknowledged o ke
commited o providing safe, ugh qualty homes with
care for its residents, with active and granular day to day
por:folioc managemen: being carried cut by its large team
of sector specialists. ‘n addizion, we are working with

the relevan: counterparies =0 introdiice new contraciual
provisions which we beheve will better position our
Approved Provider partners o achieve comphance under
the RS¥'s Governance and Tinancial Viakbility Standard.

We are coniunuing o evaluate further porticho
acquisitions. no: only i pur core competency Ut also in
areas such as high quality housing with care for asylum
seekers and those affected by homelessness.

We remain commrzed 1o generaung grow-h and
enhancing shareholder value through socally impactful
ethiucal inves:ing We are passionately commizzed o this
for the long erm
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Specialist Housing

All leading mdependen: commentators agree tha:
demand continues o nse for community-based housing
{(Mencap Annual Report 2022, This 1s dniven by the
general nse i the population, beter birth ourcomes and
improved life expectancy, in rurn sumulated by more
commuanity-based housing of the type the Company
provides. Trends in mental health also conmbute 10
demand. According to the Royal College of Psychiains:s
referrals 1o mentai health services have risen to an
all-nme lagh of 4.3 million people durnng 202,

Laing3uissen, & large healtheare consultancy. in s

Adult Specials: Care Report 5th edizion published 1in
January 2022 esuimates thar in the learning disabilcy
marke: for ¢care 1in the community. over 96% of providers
come from the independent geciorn Jor specific menzal
health services thig riges 10 97% and reflec:s the fact thas
over “he past $0 years almos: all specialist care has come
to be provided by the private sector and paid for by the
State, whereas 1t was previcusly provided by the N=5

Whar 15 also clear 1g that the prnincipal of commuanity-
based housing 1g being extended o groups with other
care needs, beyond men:al healh 1ssues. This irend was
remnforced by the —=emelessness Reducnon Act of 207
which placed a staturory duty upon local authoriiies o
find homes for those at nsk of sernous harm caused by
homelesaness

nior to the pandermic. the leading homeless charny
and campaign group Crisis estimated “he cost of stree:
homelessness ‘0 The Siate was over £20.000 per person
per year, not mcluding soclal losses and losees w0 the
stlate In tay revende.

A the star: of the pandemic, the =veryone 0’ campatgn
ensured aver 37.000 people sleeping rough were
housed in :emparary accommodanion, mosty hoels
The challende tha: now remains 18 how 0 ensure

‘hose people are permanen:ly housed with the suppor:
requiraed to overcome ofien complex neads. Thig 15 the
purpose of 3armets —omelessness Scheme supported by
(8= which will ensure a secure and szable home with
exiensive suppor

The clear advan:ages are the same as housing for
disabled greoups: beter social outcomes within a
community 2eting and reduced cosiz o the taxpayer

Financial Review

As at 4% March 2022 the [I'R§ ne: asse: value of the
Company was £675.5 million, being 110.3C pence per
share, a 7.85% increase on the "08.30 pence per share

at 3 March 2020 A net fawr value gain on wnvestment
properues of £12.3 million (2027 £5.5 million) was recorded
i the year. Operational cash flows of £47.5 miullion were
an increase on the prior year.

The por:foho was independently valiued on an

individual [FRS asse: basis by JLL at £968 8 muthon as at

20 March 2022 (2022 £9.5.6 milhon) reflecting a ne: intal
yield of 5.28%. This compares 10 an average purchase
vield of 590% (prior 1o purchase cosg:s) and reflects

the ability of the Company o use 175 scale and marke:
position o buy well, ofiten off-marke:, and generally avord
raking par in auchons

Net ren:al income of £50.7 million was generated i the
penad, a 674 1inerease aver the corresponding period
{31 March 2027: £47.8 mulhon). This increase has been
generased as a result of on-rrack indexauon of rents, the
effect of renzal iIncome on properues purchased in the
prior period being included for the full twelve months
and a smalt number of new tnvesimen's 1n ‘he penod.
Strong ongoing ren:al colleciions throughoat the year
suppored the Company's heal:hy operaning cash flows.

Jurning the reporting pernod, the Company paid four
dividend distnbunons including one diidend of
“350p and three instalments of ~.3375p each dunng the
period, fully in ine with the disinbunon targe: of 5.55p
annauneced for the year to 3° March 2027,

The Company also extended the manirny of 118

£.00m toan facility with =53C 3ank ple to November 2023
a1 SONA plus 2.02% margin. Since the year end, the
f&0m faciliy with “loyds 3ank plc has also been
extended to July 2021, at SONIA plus L67% margin
Together, these financings connnue 1o underpin the
srong haquidiy pesiion of the Company. The Company
has also maintained leverage at 34.45%, comforiably
within the Company's self-imposed cap of 40% of

t0:al assets. inally of note the Company retamned 18
premiam Srch ranng from the pnior year ar "A’ secured
and "A-" unsecured.



Investment Adviser’s Report continued

The CSH Investment Portfolio — Overview

The Civizas porifolic is one of the largest 38H portfoliog in the UK and 1s diverse geographically in property size, type

of care and wirh muliple counzerparies, The overall abjecave 13 to have a high-qualty porfolio providing long-term
accommodaton and stable rerurns. All C/M's work with care providers and Approved Providers 1s collaborative and par: of
C.M’s commuiimen: 1o mprove the sector and assist 11 parners mn becoming more mdependent.

Portfolio
Largest private porifolioin the country.
FS Do
f\) . ,-‘ O E‘T‘
( = 2 AN oy
I bedeam L-LL . ’
High acuity with 40% of 130 care providers 18 approved 178 local authority
residents living in Civitas providers pariners
properties receiving over
50 hours of care per week

Team

Sstablhished eam of specialisis across the country.

Activities
Ley acuvines comprise of future proofing. optimising quality for care providers. ensuring Approved Providers benefr: from
economies of scale, and introduction of the new Regulazory clause.

Outcomes
3enefrrs denved frorn the combinartion of porifoho. team and acivities.

“ach vear a small number of buildings require future proofing where the Company and CIM idennfy adaptions Thar
are required. or in a few inglances a change of use. tha: wall ensure longevyy of cccupaton and tha: cpnmal residen:
sansfaciion 1s mamntamned.
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

The Portfolio — Rent Roll

The annuahsed rent roll as at 3~ March 2022 increased ©
F54.7 mullion from £5C.8 millon in March 2020 and this s
expected 10 Increase further as addinonal indexation 18
apphed (refer 1o chart on page 3).

Ren:al income 18 generazed from leases with
18 Approved Providers (refer o page 9 for furher details),

Tymcally, properies are located cloge o local communiy-
based facilities o suppor: tenans, families and staff with
minimal ravel requirements.

Portfolio Characteristics

‘The key fearures of -he CS= portfolio can be summarnsed
as follows:

e Properues are fully converzed and speciaily adapred
for care use

e =igh acutly with 40% of residents iving n Civizas
properias receving over 50 hours of care per week

o Median rents tested/compared against marke:
equivalen:

e Jroperies always well located within the commuaniy
and with commigsioner suppor:

e Ovwver one ‘hird of the porifolio on back-o-back 25-year
leases with ¢are providers murroring *he obhgauons mn
the lease 0 Approved “roviders

e An’‘own fron: door pohicy

e Over one "hird of properiies bough: when new.
without developrmen: or forward funding nsk

The high quahty of 8= por:foho reflects the Company’s
abtlity 10 source off-marke: rransactions -hrough s
exwensive network of care provider relanonships, with the
aim of achieving value grow:h over ame.

Regulation

1 October 2027 the Reqgulator of Socal Z“cusing published

1:s annual sector nsk profile, which seeks 10 set out 115 ViIew

on he sources of nisk o providers ongoing compliance

with regulatory srandards The keys areas 1t highhghrs for

“he whole secior are

s _ncreased scrunny as se? oulin the Social —ousing
Whiie Paper

e ncreasad costg assoctated with fire remedianon pos
Grenfell Tower and meenng the demands of the Tire
Safety Aot 2027

s The cost of meenng the 7zero-carbon agenda

e ncreased deb: requirad o subsidise improvements o
exISUNg $:0Ck

Cs= always welcomes the engagemen: of the 8- with
our Approved Srovider counterparies and we suppor: the
work the RS+ has underiaken in making recommendatons
for improvemen:s in the sec:or over the pas: five years.
The 5= conunues o engage with all Approved Providers
inchiding those with which Crvitas works.

Since the las: repor, the 23+ 18 now engaging with mine of
“he Company s Approved Providers, set ot below:

Approved Provider 7£_radmg Type of pubiication . Roule
Auck.and Home N/A Regu aory Reactive
solutions ‘udgemen:  engagement
Bospoxre S.opcrave N/A Regu.aory Reacive
Tenancics Judgemen:  ongagemen:
Encirc.e Housing N/A Reqg. atory Reactive

Judgemen: engagelncn:
Falcon Housing N/A Regulatory Reactive
Association Judgemen: engagemecn:
Hi. .da.e Housing N/A Regulaiory Reactive
Associaion Judgement engagement
[nc usion Housing GI/V3 Regu.aory DA and

ladgemen: reaciive

engagermen:

My Space Housing G3/V3 Regy
S0 Lnons

Reacive
engagemen:

Reacive
engagermen:

L30Ty
Cadgemon:

Pivoia Housing /A
Aggociation

Regu.aory
Judgement

“rinlty Housing G3/V3 Regoiatory Reactive
Associaiion _udgemren: engdaderment
Wesimore.and G4 /V3 Reg.. aory Reaciive
Suppored Hoossing cudgement  engagamen:

s clear that the RS= will, nghily, publish informanon as
-0 the improvements 1t wishes (o see and whenever “his
occurs CS5= will provide suppor: 10 15s parners

as appropriate.

Throuagh C., CS8= has been at he forefron: of
addressing the 257's concemns abous the long-"erm

risk planming of Approved Providers by ploneenng the
implementanon of the force majeure clatse and caps
and collars on the indexaion of rents of between %
and 4% We will conunue 0 work with the Company's
counterparies and the 3= o ensuare tha: the Company
fulfills 17s iIntentions as one of the largesT owners of 55=
in the country 1o enable ~he secior -o evolve and "o
matnzain the improvemen:s alread; made.




Investment Adviser’s Report continued

New Regulatory Clause

during 2027 and 20272, CiM has engaged with relevan:
counterparties, iInclading several shareholders of CS=.
lending banks. valuers and the RSH and underaken
detalled negonations with several Housing Assoclation
parmners, 1o explore how the Company carn assist

those orgamsations 1o be etter posinoned to achisve
regulatory complance under the R8s Governance and
Snancial Viakihty Standard

(zhe "Srandard”.

The consensus resal: of these discussions and
negotianons s the developmens: of an approach with a
new draft regulatory clause whose principal objectives
are o enable Housing Asscciations to:

e« achieve greater alignment between mcome receip:s
and lease habilitles

¢ set achievable capiial solvency requurements agains:
lease oblhigauons

e demonsirate a further degree of nsk shanng

“ach with the cbhjecuve of seeking o demonsirate
comphance with the Standard (exprassed as
gradings Vi - V4 and G1 - G4}

Meanwhile, the draf: regulazory clause will provide the
Company with:

e counterparties beter able 10 achieve regulatory
compliance

e enhanced informaton and step i rights thaving
regard 0 tenan: welfare) in addinon to exisung iease
cransfer and assignmen: nights

¢ nchanged lease and propery values supported by
sirong underiying demand

The draf: clause once enacied will operate on a property-
by-propery basis 1o provide for a temporary pass through
of lease rent in cerzain hmized circumstances when the
Sousing Associatton 1s not in receipt of full payment
whilst at the same time ensuring tha: the Company does
no: become responsible for obhganons tha are nghtly
owed by others such as voud cover by care prownders.
Parthermore, thig apphes only afier an immial penod of ume
durmg which all rents remain the responsibiiy of the
Vendor/Housing Association and -hen only if paying the
ren: 1in fall would cause the “ousing Association o fail o
meet the 2egulators standards.

The draf: clause also contains prowvision for he
reimbursemen: of rental income if thatis subsequenty
recovered by the Zousing Associaion,

.mplemen:aton of the clause will codify much of *he
general asse: management work and the Company's
approach 1o geczor collaborancon thas already Takes place
on a day-to-day basis and 1s reflected in the Company's
exisung ren: roll bur which has to dare not been included
within the terms of the Company's leases and so have
not receved formal recogninion. 115 anticipated that

the clauase will only be relevant to a small number of
properties at any ume and will not have any matertal
mpact on the Company's rent roil.

‘he Company has sought and abtamned formal wntien
confirmation from valuers that the inclusion of the clause
within the Company's new and existing leases will notr of
self cause a diminution in the value of those leases or in
the underlying asse:s. .ndeed, the Company considers that
enhanced regulatory ahignment would be consistent with
asset appreciauon cver the medium term.

Az the presen: iime the clausesin draft form and s
subjec: to further discussion and refinement with several
~ousing Association boards assisted by leading secior
lawyers together with other relevan: approvals.

‘t1gintended that the clause will be incorporated
inally mto a limited number of exisiing leases on a
retrogpective basis commencing with properties that are
unencumbered.

On the assumption tha: 1718 well recerved by relevan:
parties within the sector and has the potenual o achieve
the objectives set out above it will be further rolled ous

n a controlled manner over time o other Approved
Providers and in respect of new and exisung leases on

a retrospecive basis. The Company will provide further
Jpdates in due course once the final form of the clause
has heen setled.

Social Impact and Social Value

The Company’s la:es: independen: reper: frem The Good
Seconeray was pablisked in June 2022 and provides dezails
ol CSH's porifclio and “he conunuded success in dehvenng
measarable sccial iImpact Sindings include:

e 7/ properaes. houasing up o 297 pecple, have been added
10 the C3H portfolhio witkin the period

e 4°% of C5-4's 68¢ properues have been broughtinio the
social housing secior for the firs: ome

e CSH's regular engagement wih its Approved Providers
{28} to mennor the guality of s siock conunaed through
the CCVID ¢ panderic

e _mprovemen. works have entanced ke energy efficiency
of hores, wiil §9.92% of homes having an £PC raung of a:
leas: T+

¢ (84 homes conunae w0 serve vilnerable individaals and
play ¢ signilican: role in improving resident welibeing,
parucalarly when mdmviduals are corung o4t of kigher
acuily tacihies

e Socizl value anatysis (March 2020 revealed that avarall
‘he poridolio generses £.27 rullhion of social value
per vear including hiscal savings 1o public badge:s of
£75.9 rullian per year

s 87% of respondenis .o the reswdent sarvey it March 2020
repcried hat they were saushed with the gaalhwy of thewr
rome. 8% reporied that they were nenker saustied nor
dissausiied

e 99% siatdlory compliance rae by hoasing provider
pariners s beter than the wider aftordable housing sec:or
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Investment Adviser’s Report continued

Environmental, Social and

Governance (ESG)

The E5G Policy is located on the Company's website.
It provides an overview of the Company's investment
procedures and sets out the Board’s commitment 10 a
continuous improvement process in its approach to
ESG integration.

ESG Rating Providers

As part of this commitment, CIM engages with ESG rating
providers to set out the activities that are undertaken by
CSH and to ensure this is profiled correctly. This includes
increased disclosure by CIM in respect of various policies
that have been promoted on the CIM website. Notably,
actve participation in the 2021 GRESB Public Disclosure
Assessment has resulted in CSH achieving an A score
which is an improvement from a B score in 2020, whilst
the peer group average score remains at C. GRESB is an
investor-driven glokal ESG framework, Meanwhile, the ESG
Risk Rating Score for CSH by Sustainalytics of 16.6 (Low Risk)
is marginally lower than was reported in March 2021
Sustainalytcs measures how well companies manage ESG
igsues that are most material 1o their business.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

CIM has been leading the sector in improving the
environmential performance of the portfolio and is working
with E.ON (a leading UK energy and solutions company)
under a national framework agreement in parmership
with CSH tenants The Tabric first” approach to reducing
the porifolio’'s carbon footprint includes the installation

of cavity wall insulation, loft insulation. external watt
insulation. air source heat pumps and solar PV and battery
storage to identified properties. The installation of these
energy efficient measures, utilising availabie Government
grants and other funding sources, maximise value for the
Company and for our counterparnties. The cellaboration
with E.ON is delivering significant environmental
enhancemenis without any cost to our Approved Providers.

As a result of active asset management and property
improvements works, renovations and scheduled post
completion works, the overall energy performance of the
port{olio, as identified on Environmental Performance
Certificates (EPC} reports data has improved over the last
twelve months. The proportion of properties with EPC
Rating A-C has remained at ¢.52% (532% in March 2021) and
carbon footprint (egtimated from property characteristics)
has reduced by 3% per Civitas renancy {from 2.73 tonnes
of COZ/tenancy 1o 2.85 tonnes of COZ/renancy). The static
year-on-year proporion of homes rated A-C was due to
he acqguisiton of a significant number of properties which
were acquired with D rating. These homes are subject (0
Improvement works which should improve their energy
performance in coming months.

Charities

The Company has supported and worked with the
following Charities since IPC.

Crisis

Civitas has supporied Brilain's biggest homelessness
charity over the past five years and Lhe two organisations
regularly collaborate on the emerging knowledge required
1w undertake advanced homelessness schemes. These

are vital to enable people who have been at risk of or
experienced homelessness 10 rebuild their lives but who
require considerable care and suppor: in addition to a safe
home in the community.

Choir With No Name

Civitas is proud to support this charity that runs five

cnoirs across the country for people who are homeless

or marginalised. Rehearsals have been moved back
indoors foliowing the pandemic lockdown, and members,
volunteers and staff are reported (o be over the moon!
Alongside the choirs, the charity runs a free online
workshop 1o members, the wider homeless sector and
anyone who wants 1o attend. The charlty has also provided
team-puilding events for the CIM team.

Impact Highlighls 2021-22

e Big increase in average weekly attendance since return
10 indoor meetings post COVID-19

e New Cardiff Choir launched in November 2021

e Steady progress with establishment of new community
choirs in Watford and Coventry

House of St Barnabas

A social enterprise and charity that works 10 support
peopie affected by homelessness back into long-term
employment. Its vision is of a future where lasting

good work. a secure nome and supporiive network are

a reality for those affecied by homelessness. Civitas
specifically supporis the relationship-based mentoring
programme focused on developing interpersonal skills and
communication.

This heips to underpin its mission of ‘Good Work. Good
Home' for all its graduates. The Empioyment Academy staff
ar House of 5t Barnabas work with victims of homelessness
who have successfully compleied the employmeni
preparalion programme into work and helps them o
Progress in work.

Impact Highlights 2021-22
Employment Preparation Programme:

« 17 participants successfully graduated from EPP 18
and CPP 19

* 100% of graduates were successfuily matched with
a menier

Employment and Progression:

& 33% of working graduates are earning
London Living Wage

& 23% of working graduates are in good work and a
good home

& 70% of mentor relationships with graduates iast for at
least 6 monins

¢ HOSB has supported a total of 93 people over the year.
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Women in Social Housing (WISH)

WISH promotes the benefits of being part of a networking
community and equips its members to succeed, advance
and flourish in the UK housing sector. Civitas support
contributes to the championing of positive cutcomes for
women working in the sector

Care Workers Charity

CWC recognises that care workers face everyday
challenges such as loss of income, inconsistent hours, and
lack of adequate resources. It helps care workers in the
UK {c.2 million workiorce) through crisis using financial
support and suppon centres. CWC provides support
through one-oif crisis grants, COVID-13 Emergency Fund
and a Mental Health Support Programme.

Little Sprouts

Little Sprouts promotes the heaith and wellbeing of
communities through delivery of targeted cooking and
food education workshops, surplus food collection,

and other activities. The charity places a particular

focus on supporting deprived communities where the
socio-economic position ~ housing, employment, or
education - has had a massive centributory effect on
well-being and health. [t has also provided meals for those
with mental health issues affected by the pandemic.

‘A Place For Me’

The Company has from its inception been very keen ¢
understand how residents iiving and moving inte homes
owned by Civiias beneiit from their environment, the
quality of care they recetved, what bensefits they and their
family derive and how society and the taxpayer benefits.

‘We have rigorously challenged ourselves to ensure the
social impact ot the Company is maximised and measured
independently through the Good Economy and Social
Profit Calculator.

We worxed with a journalist and photographer who
published a book ‘A Place For Me' which tells the stories of
50 residents who live in Civitas properties. The interviews
were carried out on site and in person and have also
involved families, care workers and other stakeholders.
The book was published in December 2021, and we believe
it is the largest independent project ever carried cut into
the lives oi those with learning disabilities and mental
health issues. The book is co-sponsored by a major care
provider.

Governance

CIM continues 10 engage actively with the Company’s
Approved Provider partners and care providers, providing
advice and shared learning. This has helped to facilitate
continued high level operational performance on
occupancy rates, property compliance matters, and health
and safety.

The Board carres out an annual Board performance
evaluation exercise. All of the Company’s policies and
procedures have been reviewed and, where appropriate.
updated.

The Board has five independent non-executive Directors
and has commenced a recruitment programme {o recruit
a sixth director with asset management skills to reflect the
scale of the portfolio. the growth of expertise within the
Investment Adviser and to assist with succession planning
in the future. Both skills and diversity will be important
considerations with this recruitment.

Summary

Care for the vuinerable being delivered in homes or

small residential settings in the community 1o promoite
independent living and better social outcomes is clearly
the long tenm focus of Government policy in this sector
with considerable cross-party support. In this objective,
the private sector, both in terms of service delivery and
investment, has a pivotal and essential role to play. Civitas
is at the forefront of this investment and brings the skills
and experience required 1o further expand the delivery of
this critical service and to be influential in enhancing the
development of sector counterparties.

We remain committed to generating growth and
enhancing shareholder value through socially impactiul
ethical investing. We are passicnately committed o
ensuring this is maintained for the long term.

Civitas Investment Management
Limited

Investment Adviser

29 June 2022
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Civitas Investment Management

A Growing Team of Specialists

Throughous the pandemic, C.v has continued an acuve recruisment programme aimed at increasing the levels of
resource and experase within the team. Of particular focus has been the dedicated Asser Management team which
is charged with mamiaimng the gualy of the CSk porsfolio and working closely with Approved 2roviders and orher
sector enties including care providers.

Tuning the year 1o March 2022 a number of senior recraits have joined the team. The Asser Vanagemen: team is led
by Tom Falconer, a former local authorty $5= commissioming officer. This has been par: of a broader recruttmen:
programme. Selecred profiles are set ou: balow:

Asset Management

Matthew Filkin, Investment Advisory Director

Previnusly CQO at Almacantar (Property investimen: and development company)

Mait has over 20 years of real esiate experience coverng invesimen:, developmen:, finance
and corporate maters. AT C:M, he has an active day-to-day involvementi in the operatons
of the ex1sung investment sirategies working closely with the asset managemen: team ‘o
provide a broad real esiaze overview, =e ig alsc engaged with a number of specific asset
maragemen: projects.

Tom Falconer, Head of Asset Management

Previcusly Group Property Manager a° Lifeways {leading UK specialis: care provider)

Tom 1# a former local authony commussioner with over 17 years experience i asset
management, speclalist housing delvery. rogether with health and social care integraton
across “he UK AT C7V, Tom leads the asse! managemen: team, working closely wath local ’
authorties and housing associanons supporing them in their requirement to mee: the demand . %'
for 35= and residenual care accommodation.

Sean Corney, Director, Asset Management

2reviously an execunve within Savills Asser ¥anagemen: Team

Sean 1 a specialis: in the delivery of asse: management with over 2C years' experience within

the propery industry. including suppored hiving and care environmenss. =e1s an Assocate of
the Royal nstnize of Charered Surveyors (R.CS)and a member of the .nstizunion of Residennal
Property Vanagemen: {RPM) At CIM ag par: of the assel managemen: team he1s responsible for
the oversigh: of capizal works ha: supporns the enhancement of the Company's porfolo.

Portfolio Management

Connell Grogan, Senior Portfolio Manager

Previously 3enior Porfolio Yanager at Resonance _id {leading speclalis: impac: inves or

Connell 1s a Chartered Sarveyor and expenienced senior portfoho manager with over

20 years experience in real estate. e hag worked previously with a leading impac: fund
manager with a focus on homelessness and specialist supporied housing. &7 CV, Connell
wrorks withun the asser managemens: “eam focusimg on dehvening enhancements w0 the
propery porfohios.
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Charles Reid, Partnhership Officer
Sreviously Lead Aousing 3eneht Officer a: l.ondon 3crough of Southwark Council

Charles 15 a housing benefi: specialist with a 30-year track record in assessing housing benefit

claims and appeals across many of the larges: ~ondon local authoriaes. At CIM, he works

within the asse: management :eam 10 assist proper:y due diligence and 10 suppor: the work

' of Approved Provider partners i determuning housing benefit claims and seting approphate
ren: levels.

Daryl Quarry, Senior Portfolio Manager

Previously “ead of Change & Transformarion at Talcon Housing Asscclatnon C.o.C.

Daryl has worked within the social housing sector for over 16 years in business developmen: and
change managemens:. Jaryl works collaboranively with the asset managemen: team toc suppor:
Approved Providers in implemennngg software and developing internal processes 1o contnbue w©
achieving opumal performance as par: of increased independence.

Finance and Operations

Dipesh Devchand, Group CFO

Areviously Managing Director, Head of “und Minance & Operatnons for .CG plc
(FTS= 100 hered alternatve asser manager:

Oipesh hag over 20 vears’ expenence in finance a: a senuor strategic level within a financial
services and mves:men: managerment environmen: A° CIM Dpesh leads the finance funection,
working closely with CM's founders and shareholder pariners to deliver the strateqic mission
of the group. He brings a wealth of expenence covering financing, regulatory reporing,
taxarton and operational maiiers,

Siu-Wai Ng, Commercial Director
brevicusly 2armner. Globhal =ead of roduct Developmen: at BlueBay Asser Vanagement

Siu-Wai has over 20 vears of experience in the investment rnanagemen: mdus:Ty, bringing
products :o marke: and building business platforms in both puklic and private asset classes.
A: C'M, she s the Commercial Direcior with her remir encompassing all aspecis relating o
she implemennng and admimsienng of new fund launches, assisung in the design of new
Ccommercial sirategiles.

Nazlin Nazri, Associate Director
Ireviously Head of Mtnancing Reporang at Tritax Group
Nazhn has over fifteen years of expenernce in real estate finance, includimg financal reporting

under vanious GAAZs, financial management group consolidanon and fund accounung. At
Cv . she works wizhin the finance team as an associate director on Civizas Social Housing 2LC.
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Asset Management Case Studies

As part of the ongeing active management of the CSH porttoho CIM has developed an extensive asset management
resource that covers alf the key dmciplmes that are apparent within specialist supponted housing and the residertial
care sectors.

] Cap;tal works are undertaken on a ral}mg basis with much of the work being undertaken around the time of initial

acquisition and pidid for by the original vendors as part of the purchase agreement: This ensures that appropriate
adaptations are made to delivera bespoke property that is suitable for the user's needs over the long term. Capital

" works dre also undertaken, from: Hme to time, dusing the life of the property, with some 'or all of the casts being bome by

whege it is deemed appropriate to undentake inprovement works or reposaitio the ssset, In some cuses this
alyy ledds to an immediate uplilt in rent roll and a commemzaw incresse’ in capital values. . .

Sét ouf below are & mzmbe*r oi examples of projects that have hes: undertaken

Mill Lane, Weeley Heath, Clacton-on-Sea (5 beds)

Successful sransformaton projec: to suppor: house tenants with challenging behaviours. The property required
enhancemern:s relaung to energy efficiency, improved securty. carefully constructed we: rooms, speciahst furniure

and redesigned layouss to assist the care provider in supponing the new renants. Thig asser was acquired as par: of a
wider portfoho. plans were already in place with he care provider and local authoriy commissioner to underake munor
configuraton works with some notable enhancements given that 1m was a much needed service in the local authonty
area. The care provider coninbxted to the overall cost of the works ¢ demonstrae the long term commiimens o the
service.

snhancements within the asset are highlighied below. and notably the energy performance improved from an F rating ©o
a 3 ratng for the parpose in which the asset 1s bemng used for C2 requiremencs.

New suitable furniture
thraoughout

New wet rooms and a
specialist spa bath

EPC rating from
anEtoaB

New boiler and
heating system

New stud walls
and insulation

Communal lounge

Staff and
security office

New kitchens

New flooring and

decoration throughout Communal dining area and sensory room




Asset Management Case Studies continued

Delrose House, Southampton (9 beds)

The care provider approached CSH seeking permission o underiake a
refurbishment program within specific areas of the propery. ‘s plan was to
move tenants from one type of care service to anathear for long-term

full ooccupancy.

The works were approved by C8% and paid for in full by “he care provider.
These included general redecoraton and replacemen: floonng o enhance
appearance. works 1o “he hf: o permir disabled access, refurhishmen: of we:
rooms and replacement kitchens to bhe sutzable for use by the tenants.

Redecoration

New floonng in the majonty of the
reoms and commiunal space
Communal bathroom
refurbishment

Mew kiichen, repairs o subfloar,
new flooning

Repairning and replacing subfloors
1n ceriatn bathrooms

Heathfield Apartments, Swansea (15 beds)

The propersy is situated close 1o the centre of Swansea, averlooking the city
centre rowards the harbour Given the close proximity to the city centre it
provides easy access for staff, tenants and family members.

Following the acquisiion of this asset in 2079 an overhaul of the extenor was
plantied o enhance the exiernal appearance and make same minor repairs,
mncluding *he rendenng and decoranon The inttal s:ages of works were
covered by the vendor, with the care provider enhancing some of the m:ernal
parts of the building as par: of a planned internal refurpishment

C™ on behalf of C8H completed a review of the works and underiook some
further enhancemen:s 10 key areas of the higher elevauons of the buillding with

the aim of fuureproofing areas of she roof. renderning, windows and decorazion.

This shouald prevent disruption at the propersy 1n the upcoming years.

CS5H provided some addinional invesimen: into the asse: as par: of the wider
scope of works 1o allow the addrional enhancements o happen and dehver
an asset of a higher s:andard to the care provider and tenants. This 15 a pnme
example of positive collaborative working to achieve a desired outcome.

=xternal overhaul and
refurbishmens:

New windows and doors tnstalled
Rendering replaced and
redecorated

Roof upgraded whilst scaffelding
inplace

New ramp fitted externally for an
addizional fire escape route
Redecoranion 1o nternal areas
affected by propping equipment
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company 1s to provide long-
serm suiiable homes for indmviduals with care needs:
actng 1in a sustamable manner s key o achieving

this aim. Properties tha: are owned by the Company
are tallored o mee: the future neads of the tlenanss
and, where requited, are acuively asse: managed

o provide long-erm funcinonalty and value 1o the
wider commaunity.

Environment

Dunng the invesimen: due diligence phage the Company
Iooks closely at the envirenmental impact of each
poienial acquisimon, and encourages a susiainable
approach for mainenance and upgrading properues.
Through collaboraung with specialis: developers and
vendors. the high standards the Company expects from
each investmen: In the care-based housing secior 18
adopred by other companies in the secior

Once within the porifoho, the propertes of the Company
are acuvely managed, and the nvestmen: Adviser
assesses whether there are opporiuniues o improve he
environmental effictency of the propernes, in addizion <o
other asset management imuvanves, Marther detals can
ke found on pages 45 1o 54

The 3oard has considered -he requiremenss o disclose
the annual guaniy of ermgsions, further detall on shig g
ncluded in the Report of the Nreciors on page 62

. .
Diversity

The Company does no: have any employees or office
space and, as such, the Company does notoperate a
diversity policy with regards to any adminisiraave and
management funcions.

Whilst recogmsing “he imporance of diversty in “he
boardroorm. the Company does no- consideriz o be

in the interas: of the Group and vs shareholders o ses
prescnpive diversity criteria or targes. The 3oard has
adopied a diversizy policy i respec: of appointmern:s
w0 be made 10 the Ioard and will conunue :0 montor
diversizy, taking such s:eps as i considers appropriate
0 MainIain 1is posrion as a meriocranc and diverse
business. The 3vard's obrectve 1§ 1o mam:an effeciive
decision-making, including the impac: of succession
planning. All 3oard appoinumnen:s will be made on merr
and have regard 1o diversity regarding factors such as
gender. echnicity. skills, backgroand and expernience. See
Comporae Governanee Staement on page 67

The 3pard comprises three male and two

fermnale non-executve Jrectors. Throughous the year,
the Company comphed with the Sampton-Alexander
Review's targe: of a minimum 33% represenianon of
women on 'TSE 350 boards.

The 3oard 1s aware of the recommendations of the
Parker Review, which will Le aken in:o consideration as
par: of the 3o0ard’s succession plannming. See Corporate
Governance Statemen: on page 57

The 3eard of Ditectors of the Company’s subsidianes,
which are non-operattonal, each comprise one female
and up to four male Directors

Human Rights

Given the Company's turnover for the year under review,
1t now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Act 20°5. The Company pubilished 1:s modern slavery
statemen: on 22 Seprember 2027

The Board 1s satisfied “haz, 10 the bes: of 1is knowledge,
the Company's principal adwvisers. which are listed 1n
the Company Informaron sechion. comply with the
provisions of the UX Modern Slavery Act 20.45.

The Company's business s solely in the U< and therefore
15 considerad o e low nsk with regards ‘o human
rights abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company's properiaes enable the provision of care
0 some of the mos: vilnerable people in the community.
ensunng safe and secure accommodation. ratlorad 1o
meetindividual care needs. The Company has increased
“he provision of care-based housing, brninging new
supply 0 the sector and providing homas 0 over 4,500
peopie, All of "he Company's properies enable the
provision of high levels of care, generating local jobs and
helping o suppor: lacal economies.

‘The Company has no employees and accordingly no
recpIrenien: o separately repors on this area

The ‘nvesimen: Adviser 18 an equal opporunizes
employer who respec:s and seeks 10 empower each
individual and the diverse culiures, perspecuves, skills
and experniences wirhin 12 workforce



Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Mreciors’ overarching duaty 1s <o act n good farrh and
1 a way that 1 most ikely 10 promote the success of the
Company as set ous In section 172 of the Companies Act
2006, ‘n domng so, D1reciors mus:t ke nto consideration
the interes:g of the vanous stakeholders of the Company,
thearnpac: the Company has on the community and the
environmens:, take a long-term view on consedulences

of the decisions “hey make, as well as alm o maimntain a
reputauon for high standards of busimess conducet and
fair treatmen: between the members of the Company.

=alfilling this duty natarallty supports the Company

in achieving 115 iInvesmen: objectve and helps 1o
ensure that all decisiong are made 1n a responsible and
susiamable way n accordance with the requirtemen:s
of the Compantes {(Miscellaneous Reporung! Regualations
20.8, the Company explams how the hrectors have
discharged ‘heir duties under secuon 172 below.

Toyensare thas the Directors are aware of, and
uandersiand. their dunes ‘hey are provided with the
perrnen: mformason when they firs: join the 3oard

as weil as recewving regilar and ongoing uapdates and
craming on the relevant maters. .nduction and access

o rraining s provided for new Jirectors. They also

have conunued access o “hea advice and services of the
Company Secretary, and when deemed neceszary. the
Directors can seek independen: professional advice. The
Schedule of Vatrers Reserved for the 3oard. as well as
“he Terms of Reference of 11s commutees, are reviewed
regularly and further descnbe hreciors responsibilinies
and abliganons and include any stanory and regalatory
dunes The Audis and Managemen: Tngagemen:
Commltee has the responsibilizy for the ongoing review
of he Company's rnisk managamen: systems and 1narnal
controls and, to the ex'ent *hat *hey are apphcable 1isks
relaed 1o the maters se: cutin section /2 are included
mn che Company's risk register and are subjec: “o penodie
and regular reviews and monutonng

Long-term Success

The strategy of the Company can be found on pages

34 10 37. Any devianon from. or amendmens: o, that
strategy is subject to 3oard and. if necessary, shareholder
approval The Company's business madel, which can be
found on page $4, provides that the 3oard considers the
long-term consequences of g investmean: decisions

The Company granis long-erm leases, generally 2C years
In lengsh. 1o 178 tenants. The Company seeks 1o mainam
lasting relationships with 138 tenants and suppor:s s
cenarn's in adapting properieas to meet their neads,
parmicularly improving and enhancing properies. Jurther
details can be found on pages 45 10 55

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered o
comprise 1= shareholders, 1is employees, 118 cusiomers,
1*s supphers as well as the wider communizy 1n which the
company operates and umpacts. The Company is different
In that as an invesimen: :rag & has no employees and.

in terms of supphers. the Company receives professional
sarvices from a number of differen: providers. principal
among them keing the ‘nvestmen: Adwviser

Through regular engagemen: with 1ts stakeholders,

she 3oard aims o gamn a rounded and balanced
anderstanding of the impac: of 115 decisions. “eedback
from stakeholders 1s gathered by the nves men: Adviser
i the firstinstance and communicaed o the 3oard n1is
regular quarerly meeungs and ocherwise as required.

The imporance of stakeholders 1s raken mnto accoan:

at every Board meenng, with discussions involving
careful considerasion of the longer--arm consequences
of any decisiong and theiwr impheanons for stakeholders.
The following section explains why “hese stakeholders
are considered of imporzance o the Company and “he
achons taken o ensure that their intereste are taken into
accoan: by the 3oard as part of s decision making.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our stakeholders Key areas ol interest How we engage

Shareholders e Current and The Board weicomes shareholders’ views and places great importance
Continued future financial on commurnication with the shareholders of the Company. The Board is
shareholder performance respomnsible for the content of comimunication regarding corporate issues
support and e Strategy and and for communicating its views to shareholders. The Board aims to ensure
engagemernt are business model that shareholders are provided with sufficient information to understand

critical to the

-
existence of the Lorporate

business and the governance
delivery of the ¢ ESG performance
long-term strategy and sustainability
of the busginess. ¢ Climate Change

e Dividend

K

IRT AN ACCE

the riskfreward balance 10 which they are exposed by the holding of

shares in the Company. Active engagement with sharehoiders is carried out
throughout the year and regular communication is undertaken to ensure that
they understand the performance of the business. The Board is committed

to maintaining open channels of communication and to engaging with
shareholders in a manner which they find most meaningful. in order (o gain

an understanding of the views of shareholders These channels include:

Annual General Meeting - The Company welcomes and encourages
attendance, voiing and participation {from shareholders at the AGM, at which
shareholders have the opportunity to meet the Direciors and [nvestment
Adviser and to address questions (o them directly. The Investment Adviser
attends the AGM and provides a presentation on the Group's performance and
irg future outook. The Company values any leedpack and guesticns it may
receive from shareholders anead of and during the AGM and 1akes action,

as appropriale.

Al the Company's AGM on 22 September 2021. the Company received voies
representing 27.11% against Resolution 13, the additional 10% pre-emption
resolution. In compliance with the AIC Code of Corparate Governance, the
Board released an announcement on 16 March 2022 outlining how it. via the
Company's Brokers, had engaged with those shiareholders who had voted
against the resolution. It understood that these sharenclders followed PIRC's
or their own internal recommendation (o vote agains: this resoluzion as
when combined wiih the siandard 10% pre-emption disapplication resolution
it would have resulied in the Company having authority (0 issue up 10

20% pre-empiiveiy.

For the 2022 AGM, which will be held on 15 Seprember 2022, the Board aopes
that shareholders will be able (0 attend in person. Arrangements for the AGM
wiil be released in August 2022 and wiil take account of the lates: Government
guldance and advice at the time of publication of the Natice.

Publications - The Annual Report and Haif-Year Results are made availabie

on the Company's website. Tnese repors provide shareholders with a clear
understanding of the Group's portfolic and financial position. [n addition 1o the
Annual and Hall-Year Reports, regularly updaied information is available on
the Company website, including quarnerly facisheets, key poiicies, 1ne investor
re‘ations poiicy and details of the investment property portiolio. Feedback and/
or questions the Company receives from the shareholders help the Company
evolve its reperting aiming (o render the reporns and updates ransparent and
understandable.

Shareholder meetings — Shareholders are abie 10 mee” with the Investmen!
Adviser and tne Company's Joint Brokers :arougnou: ine year and the Investmen:
Adviser provides information on the Company on the Company's website
Feedback from ali shareholder meetings with ine Invesiment Adviser and/or the
Joint Brokers, and snareholders’ views, are shared with the Board on a regular
wasis The Chairman and other members of the Board. including the Senior
Independen: Director and Chair of 1ne Audit and Managemen: Engagemen:
Commiilee, are availanle 1o meel with sharehc ders to understand their views on
govemance and the Company's verformance where they wish 1o do so

CIVITAS SOCTAL He
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Qurstakehoiders Key areas of intetest How we engage
Shareholders e Current and Shareholder concerns - The Board gives due consideraton to matters
Continued future financial raised by shareholders. [n the event shareholders wish to raise issues or
shareholder performance concerns with the Board or the Investment Adviser, they are welcome
support and e Surategy and 10 write to the Company at the registered office address set out on
engagemen: are businass model page 137. Other members of the Board are also avallable to sharehotders
crilical to the if they have concerns that have not been addressed through the normal
existence of the * Corporate channels.
business and the governance
delivery of the e ES5G performance During the year, the Board noted that several activist shareholders had
long-term strategy and sustainability taken a short positien in the Company's shares. In response to this, the
of the business. e Climate Change Board sought to engage with shareholders directly as well as through

e Dividend the Company’s Brokers and [nvestrmment Adviser. Following this. the Board

published a paper to provide detailed responses to the questons which
were raised by the activist shareholders as well as specific responses to
the allegations made by the short sellers.

Investor relations updates - The Board regularly monitors the
shareholder profile of the Company. With the majority of shareholders
being a comkination of institutional investors and private client brokers,
the Board recerves regular updates on investors views and attitudes
from the Company’s Brokers and the investmen: Adviser. The results of
these meetings are reported to the Board as part of the formal reporting
undertaken by both the Investment Adviser and Brokers.

Inciuded in the Report of the Directors on page 60 are details of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular basis (sometimes weekly) and at Board meetings, the
Directors receive updates from the Company's Brokers on the share
rading activity, share price performance and any shareholders’ feadback,
as well as an update from the Company's Inves:or Relations adviser,
Buchanan, and the Investment Adviser on any publications or comments
by the press. To gain a deeper understanding of the views of its
shareholders and potential investors, the Investment Adviser maintains
regular contact with them and also undertakes investor roadshows.

Any relevant feedback ig *aken 1n:o account when Directors discuss any
possible fundraising or the future dividend policy.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Quti stakeholders

Key areas of interest

How we engage

Investment -
Adviser

Holding the
Company's shares
offers investors

an investment
vehicle through
which they can
obtaln exposure

to the Company's

portfolio of .
properties. The
Invesiment

Adviser's
performance -«

18 critical for

the Company

to successfully
deliver its
mvestment
strategy and
meet its objective
to provide
shareholders
wrth an attractive
level of income,
together with

the potential for
capital grow:h.

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectives with
the Company
Operaticnal
excellence

Long-term
development of
its business and
resQurces

ESG performance
and sustainability

The management of the Company's portfolic is delegated to the
Investment Adviser, which manages the assets in accordance with

the Company’s objectives and policies. At each Board meeting,
representatives from the Investment Adviser are in attendance to present
reports to the Directors covering the Company's current and future
activities, portfolio of assets and its investment performance over the
preceding period.

Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the
Investment Adviser is crucial as the Board and the Invesiment Adviser
both aim to continue to achieve consistent long-term returns in line
with the Company's investment objective. Iimportant components of the
culware of both the Company and the Investment Adviser are:

operating in a fully supportive, co-gperative and open environment
and maintaining ongoing communication with the Board between
formal meetings;

s encouraging open discussion with the [nvestment Adviser, allowing
time and space for original and innovative thinking;

s recognising that the interests of stakeholders and the Investment
Adviser are for the most part well aligned, adopting a tone of
consiructive challenge;

o drawing on Board members' individual experience and knowledge to
support the Investment Adviser in its monioring of and engagement
with other stakeholders; and

e« willingness to make the Board members' experience available tc
support the Investment Adviser in the scund long-term development
of its business and rescurces, recognising that the long-rerm health
of the [nvestrment Adviser is in the interests of shareholders in the
Company.

Other service .
providers

in order to
function as a REIT
with a premium
listing on the
wondon Stock
Exchange, the
Company relies on *
a diverse range of
reputable advisers *
for suppor:

in meeting

all relevant
obhgations.

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectives with
the Company
Operational
excellence

Long-term
development
of the service
providers
businesses

Sustainability

The Company's main functions are delegated to a number of service
providers, including the Admnistrator. the Company Secreiary, the AIFM,
the Registrar, the Corporate Brokers and the Depositary, each engaged
under gseparate contrac:s. The Board maintains regular contac: with its
key exiernal providers and receives regular reporting from them. both
through the Board and Committee meetings, as well as outside of the
regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views,
ate rounnely taken into account. Through s Audit and Management
Engagement Committee, the Board formally assesses their performance,
fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the
key service providers continde to function ai an acceptable level and
are appropriately remunerated to deliver the expected level of service.
The Audit and Management fngagement Committee also reviews and
evaluates the control environment in place at each key service provider.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Qur stakehalders

Key arcas of interest

How we engage

Care providers

.

Current

and fuiure
performance
Welfare of
tenants

Lease obligations
Void
management

At the outset, It is important to note that the Company does not have

any legal or operational responsibilty for the dehvery of care in the
properties within the portfolio. However, the Board and the investment
Adviser have taken the view that they wish to have a detailed
understanding of the delivery of care and the interaction with the major
care providers who deliver this care. Accordingly. the Investment Adwviser
maintains an active dialogue with many of the care providers to build
constructive and informed relationships.

At the same time, as part of transaction due diligence at the time of
acquisitton of properties, the Investment Adviser undertakes due
diligence with respect to the operational and financial performance of
all care providers who are propesed 0 deliver care inwo the particular
preperties. This includes the financial standing of the care provider, its
CQC rating and the nature of the 8LA agreement covering voids between
the care provider and the Approved Provider.

The Investment Adviser is noted as having demonsirated considerable
expertise and understanding of the care taking place within us
properties.

Tenants

Greater
independence
Maintaimng high
level of care
Improved
personal
outcomes

The Company's properiies are adapted for the use of individuals with
long-term care needs within a community setting with the specaific
aim of achieving better personal outcomes and independence for the
mdividuals.

The sector in which the Company operates is regarded as having
achieved significant success in delivering these positive outcomes
compared to long-term older style remote instuwtional care.

On a regular basts, members of the [nvesiment Adviser visit properiies
accompanied by Approved Provider and care provider pariners to see
first hand the nawre of the housing and care provision that is being
delivered. Whilst this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic,
the [nvestmen: Adviser has continued to engage with its tenants. This
15 supported by the regular Approved Provider seminars at which the
wellbelng of tenants ig discussed in detail.

In March 2022, the Board undertook a size visit to a number of the
Company's properties. The Board found this visit beneficial as 1t enabled
it 1o engage with the Company’s tenants and to see first hand the impact
the Company has had on their wellbeing.

In addition, the Company undertakes resident case studies through
careful and considered interaction via the care provider to assess the
positive 1mpact our properties and assoclated specialised care have had
on the individual and their wellbeing.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Ourstakeholders Xey areas of ipterest How we engage

Approved e Current The Company's Approved Provider pariners are an imporiant part of the

Providers and future investment model as the responsibility for collection of housing benefit
performance and subsequent payment of rent, the maintenance of the properties

+ Sustainability

+ Compliance
and property
management

e Welfare of
tenants

# Lease obligations

under the full repainng and insuring leases and, most importantly, the
safequarding of the underlying tenants through the above means, lies
with the Approved Providers.

The Investment Adviser works closely with the Company's Approved
Prowvider partners to improve standards and governance and to intreduce
practices and procedures that make the Company’s invesiment processes
ever rnore robust.

The Investment Adviser has a regular open dialogue with the Approved
Provider partners, liaising monthly on compliance, health and safety,
maintenance and future-proofing schemes, as well as hosting quarterly
serninars to discuss curren: themes/ trends affecting the sector, to
troubleshooct and this serves as an opportunuty to build relationships and
share best practice.

The Investment Adviser has continued 1:s regular and extensive dialogue
with Approved Providers which since the start of the pandemic includes
detalled repons on pandemic responsiveness. These reports have shown
a high degree of resilience to the pandemic with few serious cases of
COVID-19 reported due to the quality of the buildings people live 1n, the
attention and dedicazion of the one-to-one care they receive and the age
profile of the residenis.

The Investmen: Adviser supported the establishmen: of The Scmal
Housing Family CIC, a not-for-prefit community interes: company
operated independenty of :he Company whose s:ated aim is to enable
Approved Providers holding the Company's leases to increase skills and
experience and to provide fundimng to promote enhanced performance.
Membership is open to any Approved Provider that holds Civiias leases
and the effect of membership is 1o transfer ownership of the Approved
Provider to the soctal housing family. Auckiand Homes Solutions was the
first Approved Provider to join and has now recruited a very experienced
and senior executive team and board of management. Qualitas
community benefit society has also joined the CiC.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Our gtakeholders

Key areas of interest

How we engage

Regulator of e [inancial and The Company is net itself regulated by the RSH. but it is important to
Sociat Housing operational maintain open and regular dialogue to ensure that the Company and the
(RSH) viability RSH are working together o improve the sector.
* Governance The Investment Adviser has a regular and ongoing dialegue with the RSH
= Compliance with  3p9 with the Approved Provider partners regulated by the RSH.
health and safety,
and regulatory The Company also publishes responses to the regulatory judgements of
standards the RSH regarding the Approved Providers working with the Company as
e Safety and part of the RSH's general review of Approved Providers engaged in the
wellbeing of provision of property services for vuinerable people as announced
underlying in May 2018. This demonstrates the Company's desire to maintain a
rerants dialogue with the RSH and its desire 1o see tha: the positions improve
where needed.
Other regulatory e Compliance The Company regularly considers how it meets various regulatory and
authorities with statutory statutory obligations and follows voluntary and best practice guidance,

The Company can

only operate with
the approval of

its regulators who

have a legiimate
nterest in how
the Company
operates in the
market and treais
1ts shareholders.

and regulatory
requirements
Governance
based on best

practice guidance

Jetter reporing
10 shareholders
and other
stakeholders

and how any governance decisions it makes can have an impact on
its shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the
longer-term.

The Board receives quanerly regulatory compliance monitoring updates
from the investment Adviser.

The Board receves quarterly comphance updates from the AIFM regarding
the Company's compliance with its investmen: policy and the Investment
Adviser's compliance with the [nvestment Management Agreement.

The Board also has access to the advice of the Company Secretary who
provides updates and advice on regulatory, stawutory and governance
mat:ers for consideration by the Board at its quarterly meelings and as
and when required.

Local authorities

Provision of
safe and secure
properties of a
high quality
Sustainability
for long-term
placements

itis important for the Company 1© bwld and maintain relationships with
local authorities as they have an important role in identifying areas of
high dermand, agreeing ren:s and referrals to the Company's schemes.

The Company will engage with the local authomy commissioner either
directly, or through specialist consultants, Approved Provider and care
provider partners as part of the Company's due diligence te ensure that
each property being acquired has been commissioned by the relevant
local authority and that rent levels have been discussed and agreed.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

our stakeholders

Key areas of interest

How we engage

Lenders
Avallability of
funding and
liguidity are
crucial to the
Company's abihty
to take advantage
of investrnent
opportunities as

Current and
future financial
performance of
the business
Openness and
Transparency
Proactive

approach to
communication

The Company has arranged debt facilities from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meetings and
presentations to ensure they are informed on all relevant areas of the
business. The continual dialogue helps to supportt the credit relationships.

The Company has reaffirmed its Investment Grade High Credit Quality
Rating from Fitch Ratings Limited of "A” (senior secured} and a Long-Term
IDR {issuer Default Rating} of A- with a Stable Cutiook.

This will enable the Company to pursue 1ts suategy in relation to debt

they arise. T - ‘ e e
e Operational funding, in addition to continuing to work wrth the Company’s existing
excellence lenders, with whom the Company has built strong relauorniships.
Communities » Acceptance A key component of the Company’s portiolto is that the properties within

The Company's
assets relyon a
strong, positive
connecthon

with the local
communities in
which 118 business
operaies.

of care in the
community
Availability of
local facilities far
tenants

i are set within community environments so that individuals are able as
part of their care plan to interact with the local community rather than
being isolated.

This is achieved in consultation with lecal authorities in determining
that the initial settings are appropriately diversified within the respective
community and are no: clustered 1n a way that would lead to isolation.

This agsists the individuals and also ensures appropriate integration
within the community. On a day-ro-day basis, care providers and
Approved Providers operate polictes 10 ensure positive relationships
with neighbours and surrounding dwellings. The activities within the
Company's proper:ies create employment within the local commumty for
both housing and care workers.

Charity partners

Delrvering
needed suppor:
10 vilnerable
adults

Improved
well-being of
vulnerable adults
ESG performance
and sustainability

The Company supports a number of organisations whose objectives
are 0 provide improved ourcomes for vulnerakle adults affected by
homelessness and other care needs.

The Corpany commits targeted financial support to fund specific
programnmes which help those affected by homelessness by teaching
-hem skills and offering support te prevent them from being n that
positilon again.

The Company ensures regular calls and meetings with our charity
partners to update on progress and projects being underzaken. as well as
attending events 1n suppor: of therr work.

n 2020, the Company amended its invesimen: objectve and investment
policy t0 enable 1t to enter into long-term leases with the NES and with
regisiered charities operating within areas of invesiment interes: to the
Company. The amendments will allow the Company access to a wider
range of pipeline oppormuniies and will assigt in providing the currently
Junmet demand 1n these areas.




Section 172 (1) Statement and
Stakeholder Engagement continued

Principal Decisions

Principal decisions have been defined as those thar have
a marenal impact o the Group and 115 key stakeholders.

_naking these decisions, the Direciors considerad their
dunes under secnion 172 of the Ac. Principal decisions
made durning the year were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause Initiative

‘n 2022, the 3oard considered and agreed a new
approach to the Company's lease model wnth the goal

of supporting addimonal requlatory comphance and
addressing percepaons of nsk. ‘The new regulatory
clause will enable Approved 2roviders 10 achieve greater
alignment berween income receip:s and lease habihities.
gat achievable capital solvency requirements against
lease obligations and demonstrate a further degree of
nsk shanng. This will assist the Company's counterparies
o demonsiraze comphance with the Regulator of Social
Eousing's Governance and Tinanaal Viabithy Standard
{refer 0 page 7.

The new regulaory clause would operate on a property
by propery basis and provide for a temporary pass
through of lease rent in certain hrnited circums:ances
when an Approved Provider 1s not in receip: of full
payment and would ensure that the Company does
no: become responsible for obligations tha: are ngh-ly
owed by others such as void cover by care providers.
The new regulatory clauzse vall provide “he Company
with counterparties which are berter able 1o achieve
regularory compliance, enhanced information, sep in
rights and unchanged lease and property values.

Publication of Market Update

‘nresponse o the unfounded commenss by an activis:
shor:-geller whoe ook up a postion in the Company's
shares, the Board ook the decision <o pubhsh a Varket
Lpdae paper on o~ Ociober 2027 to provide a detalled
response and also address principal areas of discussion
“ha* had been brough: outin conversaions with
shareholders.

The Company and <. v have coniuraed ‘o make
‘hemselves available "0 speak and meet with both new
and ex1sting shareholders following the release of the
detalled marke: updare

3oth *he 3oard and representanves of the nvesimen:
Adwiser conanae o0 he avatlable o engage with
shareholders.

Buyback Programme

Dunng the vear, the 3oard moniiored “he decline 1n the
Company’'s share price which, 1n 118 view. was assocated
with acuvity from an activis: short seller and subsequent
press coverage, the conient of which the 3oard contunues
to believe o be baseless, incorrec: and/or migleading.

‘n response 10 the decline in the share price, “he

Board agreed the implemen:aion of a share buyback
programme under certain parameters, which 18 being
operated by the Company's join: brokers. The impact of
share buybacks continue 0 enhance (FRS NAV per share
by 0.26p a: & March 2022,

“urther informanon on the Company's buyback

programme can be found on page 59

Agreement with E.ON to reduce
carbon footprint
n June 2022 the Company entered in7o a national

framework agreemen: with energy providear —.ON 0
underake environmental enhancements that would help

o reduce the carbon foorpnn: of the Company's por:folio.

The agreemen: was focused on those propernes with
lowrer 5°C ranmnygs and formed par: of the Company's
objecuve to reach carbon newsrality. The agreemen: built
on successful ptlot projecis already underzaken by the
Company and =.0MN. 't benefiis the Company's Approved
2rovider and other non-for-profit parrners by reducing
main:enances cos: and energy blls withouat any costs
bemg incurred by them and enabling them to contnbute
w0 a reduced carkbon footpnnt

The projec: draws on the RCO35 funding scheme, and
the mamienance costs benefired from the Domes:ic
Renewable Heat ncentive.
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Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established in 2026 with the purpose
of defivening long--erm responsible, stable renurns to
inves:ors and achieving postive measurakble social
impacst and 253G benefizs on a large scale. 't should
achieve this as a result of introducing long-term equty
caprial into the soclal housing sec:or with a pariacalar
focus on care-based community housing. 3y doing so,
“his would form a bridge bemween ety inves:ors and
<he social housing secor and bring together aspec:s of
healthcare with social housing

The Company has since developed “he larges: portfolio
of care-based communizy housing in the UL tha: provides
long-erm homes for more than 4500 indwviduals across
half -he local authonnes in =ngland and Wales.

As a resuls of This success, the Company has recently
exrended its mandate "o be able 10 enter o
ransacions directly with the N=5 and with leading
charizes with aninzeres: in the provision of specialis:
housing that has a strong care or suppor: element, 1s
consistent with public policy and whose ¢osts are me? by
“he pubhc purze for which it offers vatue for money.

Investment Objective

The Company's mvesimen: obeciive 1s 10 provide
shareholders with an atiraciive level of iIncome, togeher
with the potenaal for capiial grow:h from invesang in a
porfolio of Social Homes, which benefits from inflazion
adiusied long-term leazes Or OUCURDANCY agreements with
Approved “roviders and to dehver. an a fully invested
and geared basis, a argeted dividend vield of 5% per
annum-, which the Company expects o increase broadly
i hine withanflaion.

Investment Policy

The Company's inves:imean: policy 15 10 IMvest in a
diversihed portfolio of Social “omes ~hroughous

“he United £ingdorm. The Company intends ‘o mee:

‘he Company's invesimen: objeciave by acquinng,
wopically indirectly via Special Pumose Vehicles,
porfolios of Sacial “omes and entenng 1o long-rerm
inflaston adjus:ed leasss or cocoupandcy agreements

for :erms primarily ranging from ‘G years 10 40 years
vwith Approved ?roviders. where all managemen-

and mainienance obhganons will be serviced by the
Approved Jroviders. The Company will not underake
any developmenr ACTIVITY OF AS5UMe an’y ('](-IVG]O])TN{—IIY 0T
COnSIrICTon risk. “owever The Company may engags in
renovating or CUIIOmisIing ex1sing homes, as necessary.

The Company may make pradsn: use of leverages <o
finance the acquzion of Socal Zomes and 0 preserve
capital on a real bass.

The Company is focused on dehivenng capital growth
and expec:s 1o hold 115 2orifeho over the long term and
-herefore 1715 unhkely “ha* -he Company will dispose
of any par: of the 2or:foha in the unhkely even: that a
par: of the Porfohaeis disposed of the Directors intend
o reinves: proceeds from such disposals 1n asse’s in
accordance with the Company's invesimen: policy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company invests and manages the 2ortfoho with the
obijective of delivering a high gqualizy, diversified “ortffoho
‘hrough -he following mvesimen: resiricions:

e he Company only inves:s in Social —omes located in
‘he United Xingdom;

e -he Company only inves:s i Social —omes where the
counterpary "o the lease or occupancy agreemernt 1s
an Approved Zrovider:

e o lease or ocoupancy agreemen: shall he for an
unexprred period of less than 'C years, unless the
shorer leases or oUCUpRancy agreamen’s Tepresen:
pars of an acquisiion of a porifolio which the
nvestment Adviger intends o reorgamse such thas
‘he average term of lsase or ococupancy agreemens 1s
mmcreased To 15 years or abhove;

e  “he aggregate Maximuam exXposiare o any single
Approved Provider 1s 24% of the Gross Aszer Value,
once the capral of the Company 1s fully invested;

e noinvesimen: by the Company 1in any single
geographical area, in relation *o which the houses
and/or aparmen: blocks owned by the Company are
locared on a contgaous or largaly contguoas bases,
exceeds 20% of the Gross Asser Value of the Company,

e he Company only acguires completed Soclal Zomes
and will not forward finance any developmen: of new
Social “omes;

« ‘he Company doegnoinves: in other aliernauve
investmen: funds or closed-end inves:imen:
compantes: and

s he Company s no: engaged in shors selling.

The inveszmen: himis detalled above apply at the nme of
“he acarnsimon of the relevan: inves'men: in “he forfelo
once fully invested. The Company would not be required
-0 dispose of any investmen- or 1o rebalance the Yorfoho
as a resulr of a change in the respective valuanons of 11s
assaTs.

Gearing Limit

The nrectors seek 10 use geanng so =nhance equlty
retarns, The level of borrovang 18 set on a praden: basis
for the asse: class and sesks o achieve a low cos: of
funds, whilst mam-ainng the flexibiliy i che underlying
secirty reqarements and the storuacture of both the
Poriioho and the Company

1 The chividend vield s based om the anginal [PO price of 100 penee per Oreinary share The target dvidends are targets unly and do nat iepresent a protit lerecast
There can be ne 45suranase that the targers ran orf will be mar and shouid not be 1aken as an indicaton af the Conpany s expected ut actual nire sy
Avcorchingly potennal imvestors should oot place any reliance on these taigets in deciding whether o1 nod to nvest e the Company at assume that the Company
will make any distnbunons at all and should decide ko themselves whether or not the target dividend yields gt reasonable o actusvable



Strategic Overview continued

The Company may. following a decision of the 3card,
ralge debhs from khanks and/or the capizal marke:s and he
agggreqgate borrowings of the Company 1s always subjec:
o an absolute maximum of AC0% of Gross Asse: Value
calculated azthe n1me of drawdown. Current geanng 18
34.43%.

Debts zecured ar asser level. whether over a particular
proper:y or a holding enuiy for a pariciular senes of
properies, withours recourse to the Company and also
potentially a: Company level with or withour a charge
over the 2or:ffolo {(but not agains: paricular assets),
depending on the opaimal structure for the Company and
having consideration o key menes inclading lender
diversity, cost of debt debt rype and maturiy profiles.
Otherwise there will be no cross-financing between
investments 1 the Porifolio and the Company will not
operate as a common treasury function between the
Company and 1's Investmen:s.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose 1o uilige denvatives for
afficient porffolioc management n parucalat, the
Owrectors may engage n full or parial interes: rate
hedgmmg or otherwise seek 2o mitigate the nsk of interes:
raze moreases on borrowings incarred 1in accordance
with the geanng limitg ag par: of the managemen: of the
Portfolic.

Cash Management

Lnol the Company s fully invested, and pending
re-invesment or distnbution of cash receipts. the
Company inves:s in cash, cash equivalents, near cash
Instraments and money marke: msruments.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs")

Measure
ncrease in [ZxS
NAV per share

_Explanation

Target lo achieve capiial appreciaiion whils
9

matniaining a low risk straegy frem enhzancing

REIT Status

The Direciors conduct the affairs of the Company so as o
enable it to remain qualified as a RE7T for the purposes
of Par: 22 of he Corporanion Tax Act 2070 (and the
regulations made thereunder).

Culture

The Drecrors agree that establishing and maintaining

a healthy corporate culiure among “he 3o0ard and in its
interaction with the ‘nvestmen: Adviser, shareholders
and other stakeholders will support the delivery of its
purpose, values and strategy The 3oard seeks o promote
a culwure of openness. delbxate and integny through
ongoing dialogue and engagemen: with its service
providers, principally “he ‘nvesimen: Adwviser.

As detarled in the Corporaze Governance Sratement,

‘he Company has a number of policies and procedures

In place to asgsT with mamnaming a cubure of good
governance, including those relating o diversity and
Oirectors’ confhicts of interest. The doard assesses and
monors comphance with these policies as well as the
general culzure of the 3oard through Board meenngs and,
m parucular, durning the annuasl evaluanion process which
18 undertaken by each wrector {for more information, see

‘he performance evaluaion section on gpage 70}

The 3oard’s culture uself is one of openness.
collaborazion and consrucive debate 1o ensure the
effective contribunoen of all rectors. parucularly in
reapect of the 3oard's decision making. Consideraton
of our Stakeholders ¢ emmbedded in the 3oard’'s decision
making process. Please gee our secion /2 Stalement an
vage 245,

) Resu’l’l’ . o
[RS8 NAV increase of 123p per share "2.60%
from PC {2021:10.3p per share "0.56% from [PQ).

the queality of cash flows from invesiments, by

physicel improverment of properties and by

creanng a significan:ly diversified. hugh -quality

portfcho.

Svidends i:)r‘er '
share

targeied a dividend of 5.55p per share.

Number of _ocal
Authonnes,
Approved
Providers and
care providers

porttalio {(once [ally invested) with no more

single Approved Provider and no more than
exposure 10 any single geograpiucal area, o
ihe capital of the Company s fully invesied.

Loan o
(ross Asses
{(Leverage)

gross assels.

ar ‘he year ended 3. March 2022, ‘he Company

Target risk mrtiga:ion through a diversified

than 25% exposure (o any ¢ne Local Authority or

Targe:ed .0ial deb: drawn ne more than 40% of

Tozal dividend of 5.55{3 per stare declared for the
year 0 37 March 2022 2021: 5,40;3):__

As a' 31 March 2022

178 Loca: Aathorly pariners (2021 164 Local
AuLthority pariners)

18 Approved Providers (2021: 15 Approved Providers)
13G Care Providers {2021: 118 Care Providersj

20%
nce

The Company's largest single exposure 1s (o
Auckland Home Sclations CIC and currently
stands at 16% (2027: 24%). The largest geographical
concentraion 1s tn the So4th Wes:, being

L6% (2027 16%)
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7Leverage as at"31-f§f1a-rch 2022 of 34.43% ot gross
asse:s (2027 34.48%).
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Strategic Overview continuea

EPRA

The Company 15 a memizer of the Suropean 2ublic eal =state Associaton {("5PRA". 2PRA has developed and defined
~he following performance measures (o give ransparency. comparabilizy and relevance of iinancal reporiang

across enunes which may use different accounung standards. The Company 15 pleased o disclose the following
measures which are calculated in accordance with 522A guidance. These are all Allernative 2erformance measures of
-he Company.

g EPRA Earnings EPRA. Net Reinstatement EPRA Net Tangible Assets EPRA Net Disposal
- ‘ Value (“NRV”) {“NTA™") Value (“NDV™)

| tarmngs from operational _ . - ) . )

T acuvities. 2PRA NAV metnic which EPRA NAV mesric which EIRA NAV meric

g agsumes that enities never  assumes tha: entities buy which represents the

sell assets and aims to and sell assets, thereby shareholders’ value under

represent the value required crystallhising cer:ain levels of a disposal scenarno,

‘o rebuild the enzity. unavoldable deferred ax. where deferred tax,
financial instrumen:s and
certain other adjustments
are calculated 7o the full
extent of their hability, net
of any resulling tax.

% Akeymeasureofa The EPRA NAV set of metrics make adjustmen:s 1o the NAV per the [IRS financial
g. company's underlying statemen:s *0 provide s:akeholders with the most relevant mformation on the fair
E operating results and an  value of the assets and habilities of a real eszate investmen: company, under differen:
mndication of the extent 1o scenaros.
which carren: drvidend
payments are supported
Ly earnings.
¢ EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
E . £ 7 £
5 2052 2022 022 2022
Ff 29.810.000
& 2021 2021 2021 2021
30,630,000 674,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000 |
2020 2620 2026 2020
28,814,000 671,042,000 671,042,000 667,360,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share  EPRA NTA per share = EPRA NDV per share
(Basic and di w..ed) pence (dluedy pence idi.ied; pence wlisied) oenee
2022 2022 2022 2022
4.82 109.96 109.96
2021 2021 2021 202
493 108.38 108.38 107.97
Pisriy 2025 AN Z0Z0
4.63 107.95 107.95 107.39
Jast performance 1z not a rehable indicator of future performance. “or detalled workings reconciling the above

measures "0 the 735 rasulis. pleases see Appendix | 1o these financial s1azemerics on pages 229 0 737,




Str ategic Overview continued

g EPRA Net Initial Yield EPRA Topped-up Net EPRA Costs Ratio EPRA Vacancy Rate
- iti ] “
E (“*NIY"™) Initial Yield ( NIY™) Admimstrative and Egtimated Market Rental
S Annualised rental income This measure incorporates operating cos:s {including Value {"EtRV"} of vacant
=] X an adjistment o the and excluding cos's of space dwvided by ERV of

based on the cash rents - v . .

passing a* the balance EPRA NIY in respect of direct vacancy) diided  the whole portfolio.

sh;e‘ datt; less non- the expiration of ren-free by gross renzal income.

) P . periods {or other unexpired

renov%rable property lease mcentves such as

0?‘?‘“““9 SXpEnses. discounted ren: penocds and

divided by the marke: . \

) stepped rents).

value of the property with

(estimated) purchasers’

Costs.
@
8 A comparable measure for portfelio valuations. A key measure to enable A ‘pure’ (%) measure of
8 These measures should make i: easier for inves:ors meaningful measuremen: Investment property
a ‘o judge *themselves, how the valuanon of porifoho of the changes in a space that is vacan:,

X compares with portfolio V. company's operating costs.  based on &RV,
¥ EPRA NIY EPRA Topped-up NIY EPRA Costs Ratio! EPRA Vacancy Rate
g % % % 2
5 2022 2022 2022 AC22
;s s [ 2020 0
& ozt 221 2021 2021

8.24 5.24 20.33 4]
2020 2020 2020 2000
8.26 . 826 21.48 ]

as: performance 1s not a rehable indicasor of fature performance. “or detailed workings reconciling the above
measures 10 the (7R85 resulis, please see Appendix © o these finanmal statements on pages 29 1o 130

1 The tanios iniusive of vacancy cosls d1e the same as the rauo oxclisive of vacanay costs lor 2022, 2021 and 2020
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S SOCIAL
AND

Principal Risks and Risk Management

The 3oard considers that the nsks detalied below are the prineipal nisks facing the Group curren:ly, along wath the rigks
dezatled in note 510 to the financial statemenss. These are the nisks that could affect the abiliy of the Company o deliver
1is strategy The Board confirms that the principal ngks of he Company, including shage which would threaten 1:s future
pertormance, solvency or quidiry, have been robusily assessed throughou: the vear ended 37 Varch 2022, :aking o
accoun: the emerging nsks such as the evolving Ukraine-ussia conflicr ngk, chimate change nsk, cyber secunty nsk and
recrurtmen: of staff at counterparies nisk, and that processes are 1n place to contunue this assessmen:.

The Audiz and Managemen: sngagemen: Commitee has divided the Company's risks in:o :he following nsk sype
caegores:

« Sralegy and Competlivensass;
¢ Operational, including Cyber Cnime,
& nvesimen: Management and

¢ Accouning. “egal and Reqgulatory

~ach nsk contamnadn each category 1s reviewed for its impac: and probabuiy by the Audir and Managemen:
~ngagemen: Committee at least twice dunng the year

The Audr and Managemen: sngagemen: Commpres lakes regponsiblliy for overseeng the effectiveness of nisk
managemen: and inzernal contral systems on behalf of the 3oard and adwvises the Joard on the prnincipal nisks facing
“he business.

Tarther details of nsk managemen: processes that are in place can be found in the Corporate Governance Stazemen”
on pages Y0 and /2 The prnincipal and emergimg nisks and unceraintes relaung o the Grou ars regatarly reviewead
by the 3oard along with the internal conirols and nsk managemen: processes tha: are used 1o miigate these

rizks. The 3oard has identfied four new pnnaipal nsks durnng the year ias et ous in the st of principal nisks and
unceramnaes), with the nisk associated with share price disruption due "o an acrvig: ghareholder being idencified as
having “he tnghest impac: and hkelthond. The rigk assomated with the fallure 1o montor and ensare “ha: conangens
activines are being completed by Approved ’roviders was removed as a pnncipal gk by the 3oard dunng the yvear
“urther detatls on thus and the other principal nsks and she managemen- of those nisks ars descnbad below:

Impact
2
1]
o
=
3

Low

Very
unlikely

Unlikely Possible Likely

Probability




Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1 Strategy and Compehhveness risk hmpact How managed/mityated

The Company's share price is The Company is targeted The Board is commiited to maintaining Impact:
disrupted due to an activist 0y a sa0rt se.er or aclivist  open channeis of communicarion with High
shareholder. shareho.der leading o shareholders and engaging in ways
. L . afatl in e Company's sharenolders find most meaningfui, in
Th]s_; Tisk was newty ideniitied share price and a order 1o gain understanding of shareholder Probability:
during the year. widening of the disco.un: views. Further information on the Board's Likely
0 WAV, engagement with shareholders can be

found on pages 25 to 33
Significan: numnoers of pag

snares may need (o ne The Board seeks (o provide full disclosure
repurchased eading o on the counterparties and ‘he structure of
afa.. inhe size of ine transactions so that ali stakeholders are
company and iguidiy kep: reliably informed on the Company's
o ications business dealings.

The Board regularly reviews the
Company’s buyback policy 10 ensure this
18 in alignment with the interests of the
Company and sharehoiders. The Board

is a.so mindfu. of the possibility 10 issue
shares and regularly reviews its poiicy in
this area to ensure thaz: it is consistent with
the Company’s sirategy. It receives regular
updates from the Company's brokers 1o
hep inform its decisions in this regard.

2 Strategy dnd compeltitiveness nsk inpact How managed/mitigated

The Company and is operations Any change in e The Company [ocuses on niche real estate Impact:
are subject to laws and regulations aws. reguiaions and/ sectors where it believes the reguiatory Very high
enacied by national and iocal oI JOVAININCN: 00.ICY framework and underlying demand
governmentis and government affecing the Company dynamics 1o be robust.

olcy. s aperalinng nray ) i Probability:
b ¥ and it O_.)P,Fdj].)t!h fay The Investmen: Adviser has strong mdustry Uniikel
— . nave a maleria advorse contacts and has good know’edge on niikely
This risk remained at the same = . : g :

offectonthe aoiiity of :n¢ poiicy opinion and direction.
2021 Company o successi.
sl DurS.e IS inves men: The Board obtains regular updates

from professional advisers o monitor
developments in regulation and legisiation.

level as the year ended 31 Marcn

noicy and niee. 18
nvesimon: onjoclive

and on tnevalue of te
Company and the snares.

3 Suategy and competuvencss nsk How managed/muigated

par sk ]mpa(:l______ R
As a result of competition from Theraw ol capita, The Company nas strong .inks with vendoers  Impact:
other purchasers of social housing  dep.oynran: wou.d dron, and a robust pipeline of future acguisitions.  High
properties. ine Company's abi:ity decreasing r'etarns 1o

. S S . The Board regularly reviews the pipeiine
to deploy capital effectively within  shareho ders, ) g Y 1@ plpe:

a reasonabic imeframe may e of poteintia} acquisitions and monitors the Probability:
restricied or the ne: initial yields at market landscape. Unlikely
which the Company can acquire Tne Board is aware of the current
properties may decline such that competitive social housing market and
targe: returns cannot be met recognises the impac: this may have on
the Company’s ability 1o dep.oy capizal
This nsk remained a: :he same effectively.
‘evel ag the year ended 31 March
2021,
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Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

4 Investment management fsk

Tenant defaulting under the ‘erms

ol a leasge.

This risk remained at the same
level as the year ended 31 March
2021

5 lnvestrnent mapnq(;pjénf tigk _
The value of the invesimenis made
by the Company may change from
time to time according 10 a variety
of factors, including movements
in interes: rates. infiazion and
genera. market vricing of similar
Investments

This was iden:ified as a heightened
risg during the year

b luveshuent management sk .
Due diligence may no: reveal all
facts and circumsiances that may
be relevant in conneczion with an
mvestmen: and May not prevent
an acqulsition being matcrially
overvalced or renia. sireams neing
da: risk.

This risk remained at (he same
level as the year ended 31 Marcn
2C21

7 Investunent management 1sk

Loss of xey staff a4t the Investuren:
Adviser.

This risk remained at the same

.eve! as 1he year ended 31 March
2021

AN aledy and compentyeness .
The Company fais ‘o respond o
issuesrelated o c.imate change,
eitner direc:ly as eniancemen:s
o0 properiies or indirectiy via 1ts
c.imale cnange reporing.

This was a newly idenified nsk
during (ne year.

_ hmpact
Loss of relvta. income in
W0 SNorT lerm,

How managed/aurngated

The portfolio is highlyizr:rve'r'éiiiéa 1o reduce

‘he impact of default. Extensive diligence is
underaken on all assets, which is reviewed
and challenged by the Board.

The [nvestment Adviser works proactively
with Approved Providers 1o address any
potential concerns.

The Board is provided with reguiar updares
on the tenants with any conc¢erns raised for
discussion.

The Board has noted that the Company's
historic level of defaults has been
immateria..

THe vaLLaian ot e
Company's asseis would
fa .decreastng 1o

MNAV and vio'ds of ing
Tom pany

Inpact

Company wo..d
overnay for asse's
inpairing snarelo.der
vaLLa reducing ren a
meorre and srerefore

I2lLIns.

lipact

Hew manaded/nutigated

Impact:

Medium

Probability:
Likely

The Company inves:s in projecis with
stable. predetermined, long-term leases in
place with CPI or CPI plus 1% indexation
and its siraiegy is no: focused on sale of
oroperties.

The Board receives reguiar updates on
faclors tha: might impact invesiment
valuations.

The Company undertaxes deiailed due
diligence on the properties, mneir condi:ion,
the proposed rental .evels - benchmarking
against comparab.e schemes using bomn
exierna. consulian:s where required and

irts own proprietary database - and on the
Approved Prowiders and care providers
involved in eacnh property (@ ensure that the
purchase price is ropust

How manasged/mingated

The Board considers the due diligence
underiaken when approving acquisitions

How managed. mihgated

Naegative inves:or
scnimens .zading o a
red oion in shara oriee
Fed.cuonm ani iy o
soLroe ofl mar<e: and
taroarao.e deass

Impact
Deoreas
ne Comoany = a
a4 Neganve Imoact on e
Coumpany's g 1ars pnon

AL Of

"he Board considers the risk of the
Invesiment Adviser losing xey siaff and the
SUCCEesSIoN pians the nvestment Adviser
nas in p:ace.

The Board has noied the ongoing
expansion of he Invesimen: Adviser's
SUDDOTT [eam:.

Impact:

High

Probability:
Possible

Impact:
High

Probability:
Unlikely

Impact:
High

Probability:
Unlikely

= and

How managed. nongated

Reguiar review and consideration by
tne Board inc.uding the inp .t of climate
change specta.isis a: e Invesiment
Adviser

Advice recewed from cxiernal orofessiona:
advisers

Impact:
High
Probability:
Unlikely




Principal Risks and Risk Management continued

9 Opetatronal. including cyber crine
Serious accident or poor
managemernt amongsi Approved
Providers due (o staff shortages.
ioss of competence and
vacecination up:ake.

Impact

Repatationa. damages lor
e Company

This was identified as a heightened
risk during the year

10 Suategy and compeuniveness .
The Company is not promoied in
a way which generates investor
demand. especially with regard 1o
ESG focus.

inpact o
A redacaon in the
Company’s s1are price
and a widanming of tne
discoan: o NAYV

This was identified as a heightened
risk dunng the year.

Emerging risks

smerging riske are considered during the regular

nsk review. and would be specifically discussed and
evaluated as they anse dunng ‘he year. npa: from “he
nvestmern: Adviger on emergmg ngks ¢ considerad by
“he Audlr and Managemen: fngagement Commiiee.

ey emerging riske 1dennfied and considered dunng the
vear inchide

e Ukramme-2ussia Conflicr - theimpact of Ukraine-
Russia conflies Although the Company has no direct
eXpPOsUrs ‘o 1US81a 0T @a8Iern TUropean ermnones, the
Joard conniriaes o closely monitor this,

« _ong-Term Climate Change - the impac: of climate
change. over the longer-ierm on the business. The
Company s commuiized to underzianding =5G nisk,
inchiding the parmcular impae: of cimate change
on the business Climate change poses an mdirec:
rigk 1o the Company's operations, the environmen:
and society, and the 3oard 12 aware That appropriae
acuon 18 requred o reduce 1rsampa

e Cyber Securiwy - “he immpacr of a cyber secartty breach
within the Company or 158 service providers Junng the
year, the 3oard was made aware of A minor daza breach
within the Jeposirory The breach has had nompacs
on the Company’s operatons and no personal daa was
compromised. The Board 18 sausfied that the Jeposirory
has taker appropriate immediaze remedial acion and
hag adeqguate safequards in place

How managedAmiugated

Reporting frem Appréved?’roviders_and Impac;
monitoring of Approved Providers by the High
Investmen: Adviser. Probability:
Unlikely

How managed/mmaates o
The Board monizors the marketing and Impact:
disribution activity undertaken by the Medium
Investment Adviser and the Corporate Probability:
Broxers at each meeting as well as Unlikely

Treceiving regular reporis from its PR adviser
Buchanan.

The Board urilises discount control
mechanisms to support promotiona.
acuvities.

Tne Board engages The Good Economy and
Social Profir Calculator and reports findings
10 snareholders.

The Board considers ESG reporting in the
Annual Report and Accounts carefally.

Mease see The Company's =5G eport on pages 4% 70 b
for furrher derails.

The Lisuing Rules requnire premuum-lisied commercial
companies 10 discloge in therr annual repor: whether
‘hey have reporied on how clima-e changes affects

sheir business m a manner consistant with the
recommendaiions of the Task "orce on Chmaze-related
I'inancial Nsclosures {"1'C72, and to provide an
explananon and other informanon if they are unable

o do so. n addimon, the LK Govarnment intends o
mnroduce mandazory chmate-related disclosdres "o
supplement the raqiremen:s under the nisiing Rules. The
Joard has chosen not 1o adop: the requuirements early
and expec:s these “o be applicable 0 he Company in the
financial year 2024

=
m
=
=
=
=

=
=5
=
=
B4
E
z
Z

41



Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The Board regularly reviews the posiiion of the Company
and 175 ability 10 continue as a going COncern as 1§
meeungs. The financial grasemen:s ser ous the currens
financial posiion of the Company.

‘'he Company acquires high-qualiy property with a
parcular focus on property providing care for the long
erm. The properies acquired are on long-—erm fall
repatring and msunng leases in a gector of the marke:
wizh very high levels of need. The cos: base of the
Company 18 proporaonately low compared [0 revenue
and there 13 a high level of cerrainty over cost o be
mcarred. On this basis, the Company s expected "o be
wable well beyond she five-year term considered m the
Company's restindg below

As ar §” March 20722 -he Company held cash balances of
£u3.5 milion ine of operaung and financing amounts
duel. The 3oard has evalaated the financial position

of the Company and has maintained 17s premiam
mvesimen: grade ranng from T1iich Raungs L1d - a well
estabhshed rating agency with a strong famihanty o the
alrernauve healtheare real estate space, which gives the
Company confidence i the abilizy to raise future dels:
and/or equity capiial in order to fund the Company's
imvestment:s for the long term and o facilzate the
paymen: of dividends -a shareholders, 2ased on These,
“he 3nard beheves that the Company 1s In a position o
manage 178 financial risks,

Yanous forms of sensivty analysis have been
performed. in paricalar the financial performance of
senants and a reducnon n rent Ag at 3 arch 2022, the
ren: would have o drop by approximasely 29% before s
loan covenant s breached Arthe date of approval of “his
repor:. the Company has subsianial headroom within

s financial loan covenants. The Comparny also benefiss
from a secure 1mcomes sveam from leases with long
average unexplired term leases.

~everage 18 pradenily mamniamed at a level of less ~han
40% of GAY.

The Company's aricles of associanion nchide a
requuirement for the 3oard to propose an ordinary
resolunon 4t the anmual general meenng following the
fifh anniversary from -he imnal pablic offering of *he
Company for the Comparry T0 COnTne 1N s curren: form
i*he Conunuaton fesolyqont This s the firs: conumuanon
voTe since “he Comparny vas setup

fthe Conunmuanon rResolution 1s passed, the Company wall
connne ts business as presently constizuted and propose
-he same resolation at every fifth annual general meeung
rhereafier if -he Continuanon Resoluion 1s not passed. the
Oireciars will be required, within six months after the dae
of thig annual general mesting, to formulate proposals

for consideratuon by the shareholders for the voluntary
Lirndanon, uniisation, rearganisaion, or recongrucion
of -he Company. Afier making appropnate enquiries of the
Company's brokers and invesimen: Adviser, pursiuant o
“heir recen: discussions with a numkber of the Company'¢
shareholders, the Directors are of the view that the
Conunuanon Reselution will e passed az the forthcaming
annual general meeing. This reflects the strengzh and
nature of the Company's pordoho, and specifically “he
provision of long-rerm accommaodaiion for more Than
41.000 valnerable indiwviduals. Accordingly, the Direciors
expec: thatif the Conunuanon esolanon s nar passed.
an even: which the Jreciors consider 0 be highly remote,
formiulanng and implemening any such proposals would
reduire the Company o conunile operations for a penod
of a7 leas: "2 months from the date of approval of the
Company's financial sazements.

The 3oard s, therefore. of the opinton that the going
concern hasis adoped in the preparanon of the
consolidaed financial starements 1= appropnate.

2 sy
Viability Statement

The Jirectors presen: the Company's viability statemen:
which summanses the resulis of their assessmen: of
the Company's current posiiaon, its pnncipal risks and
progpects over a penod 1o 47 Varch 2027

The assumprons anderpinning the forecas: cashflows and
covenan: comphance forecas:s were sensmsed o explore
“he resthence of the Company o the potennal impac: of the
Company s princieal nsks and anceraimnues.

The prospec:s were aszesged over a five-year penod for
she fnllowing reasons.

i}y -he Company's long-term forecas: covers a five-year
period,

ii) -heleng:h of service level agreemen's between
Approved Providers and care providers s ypreally five
years, and

iii) “he Company's leases are wypicaily 25 years on fully
repatring and insuring l2ases, enabhing reasonable
ceranTy of iIncame aver the nex- five years




Going Concern and Viability Statement continued

The Company's five-year forecas: incorporates
assumpuons related o the Company's investmens: sirateqgy
and principal nsks from which performance results, cash
flows and key performance indicators are forecast The
principal neks are set ous on pages 38 to 42, Of these risks,
those which are expected o have a higher impact on the
Companys longer-ierm prospec:s are those related o
fawure governmen: housing policies. The Company has
considered s strategy over a longer erm and, in ligh:

of the inherent demand for the Company's properies

and the vulnerable nature of the ulumate tenant, the nsk
of change in fawure housing pohey is considered o be
limized. The principal ngks are mitigated by the Compary's
rnigk managemen: and mnternal con:tol processes, which
funciion on an ongoing basis.

The 3oard. via delegaion 1o the Audir and VManagemen:
tngagemen: Commites monrors The effectivenass

of the Company's nsk managemen: and internal

control processes on an ongoing basis. The monnonng
aciviies are described in the Report of the Audit and
Vanagemen: Sngagemen: CommilrTee on pagess b2 10 65
and include direct review and challenge of the Company's
documented nisks, nsk raungs and con:rols. and reviewr
of performance and compliance repors prepared by
“he Company's advisers and the independen: external
auditors.

The 3oard of Directors has carnied out a robus:
assessmen: of the principal and emerging nsks facing
the Company, inclading those thar would hreaten 1is
business model. futare performance. solvency and
liquidy. Where appropnate the Companys forecas:s are
subjec: o sensvity analysis, which involves applying
severe condmons and flexing a number of assumptions
simulranecusly

The sensiavities performed were designed o provide
the Directors with an underszanding of the Company's
performance in tha even: of severe b plausible
scaenariog, taking fuil account of mnigating aclions
thas could be ~aken t0 avaid or reduce the impac: or
occurrence of the underiying nsks outhned below:

e 04 ofenants defauling under a leaze. The outcome
of this scenano reduces profits on average over the
five vear forecas: by 5% per annum and reduces cash
by £20 millbon. =owever, the 3oard 1s sull comforiable
“hat dividends could be poid as there 15 sull sufficien:
level of cash in the business; and

e deenoranon n econormice owvtlook, change in
governmen: housing policy which could impac: The
fundamentals of the social housing sector incladimeg
a negaive impacs on valuaions and a 5% reducnon
m annaal rents The outcome of the severe downside
scenare was tha: the Company's covenan: heacdroom
on exisiing deb {Le the level at which the invesmmen:
propery valies would have o fall efore a financal
Lreach oceurs reduces by " 3%, pnor "o any rmigating
acuons such as asse: sales which indicates thas
covenanis on exizing faclmes wolld no: be hreached.

I'he doard has noted that the Company s due ‘o hold

115 firg: contnuation vote gt the AGV n September 22,
This would be an ordinary resoluton requinng approval
from 50% of the shareholders voing. Turther dezails as
0 how the Company has considered the impact of the
connnuainen vore can he found in the Going Concern
gecTion on the previous page.

The remaining principal risks and uncertaintes, whilst
having an impact on the Company's business, are

no: considered by the Directors to have a reasonable
likehihood of impacting the Company's viabilizy aver the
five-year penod, therefore the scenanos outlined above
are the only ones that have been specifically tested.
Jased on -he results of their assesgmens. the Jireciors
have a reasonable expecianon tha the Company will be
able *o continue i operaton and mee: 138 llabiliies as
shey fall due over the five-year penod of thewr assessmen:.

Approval of Strategic Report

The Group Strategic Repors was approved by the 3oard
and signed on 17s hehalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

29 June 20272
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Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP Ratings

Civitas Portfolio idomestic and non-domestic) Energy Performance

Certiticates (EPC) — March 2022.

Alongside increasing supply of social housing for vulnerable adults, Civitas
continues to improve the overall energy performance, with a strong focus
on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset management,
including property improvement works, renovations and scheduled

post-completion works.

As shown in the table below, the energy performance of Civitas portfolio compares favourably against the
performance across all housing tenures as reported in the 2020/21 English Housing Survey (EHS). Civitas SSH
properties have a larger proportion of detached and semi-detached properties compared to social rented and

private rented dwellings.

Energy Performance Certification Band

"
8
5
2
g
8

TVIJ0S "TYINIWNOHIANT

Mean

SAP
- ~ A/B c D E ~F G Rating
Owner occupied 31 392 464 86 22 08 655
Private rented 24 394 443 9.6 34 09 647 % o
Socialrented 29 626 309 26 08 02 698 if
All tenures 29 432 434 78 22 05 661 -
Civitas domestic 15 380 373 131 0.0 6 il

1 suuree Cnghsh Housing Survey 2020 Energy elficiency raling bands by lenure (Annox Table 2 8) & Mean SAP raling by tenute (Annex Table 27)

-
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RTAND ACCOURNTS 2022

AN SOCTAL HOUSING Pl

The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint

as at 31 March 2022

Tonnes (TCO,) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2022

2.65

snergy “erformance Cerificates (2Cs) are detailed reporss
o the energy efficiency of a propersy or bulding. 2
requires rrained assessors o examine the key izems in the
property such as any heanng and cooling systems. the
presence and levels of the insulanon, the wype of glaring
and mazenal of the window frames. as well as the hor
water and hghting systems. »2Cs are civided o swo
furher subcaregones, Jomesac and Non-Jomesuc.
DJomesac 5205 lustrate the efficiency ranng of
zelf-contamed houses and aparimenss. Non-Jomesic,
prowvide ranmgs for bunldings with more exengive

March 2021
2.73

Suurce Crvitas retamed [PC data

communal areas tha: are usually served by more complex

heasing and conling systems i
The anerdy assessmen: for non-domeslic haldings -akes

much longer than a doemesie bulding to inspecs, evaluaie

and produce The inspecion and data mputing 1s more

dezaited than a domestic property and will include precise

Trhung vpe. bulding onenianon, solar gain, window

frames exc. Consequenty. the resuliing recommendanons

are more dermled than with a domesac 220

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) - March 2022

8 Non-domestic/Higher Acuity [l Domestic/Homes

0.0
0.0
0.0
Glo.

n

.
Domestic/Homes

These refer 1o dwrellings, whether a house or aparimens
where one heanng sysiem serves a single household -or
Civiias, “hese properies have speclalisr adapranons and
care provision bat are s1ll regarded as domestic homes
Jomestie properies ypweally ase less energy and have
lovrer carbon foopninss than non-domesic/higher
HIOU1TY PrOperies.

426

Suuree Cvitas retalned EPC data

Non-domestic/higher acuity

These are larger properies which generally have
addrional speciahist/communal facilinies with higher
energy Jdge 'This mclades indusinal krchens, back house
faciries plas exiengive rehabiihianon services




E.ON Project Results (Phase 1) and Next Steps

Jollowing the successtal cnvitonmenzal improvetnen.,
puor studres, Civizas worked with E.ON o dennfy

55 properties acrogg the porsfolio tha: could henefi

from energy improvement measures inclading Solar 2V
{Solar Photovelaics) panels. A framework agreemen: was
signed with BON I June 2020 ro deliver enhancemen:s
at no cost *o undeariving Approved Provider parners and
"hase T commenced in August 2027 with desailed rerrofis
surveys targeting ritial measures mclading:

s Cavity Wall insulanon

e Loft nsulaion

e Sxrernal Wall ‘nsulatnon

e AT Source —eat Jump

e solar PV and batery sworage

The mmmanve offered 15 a grea: oppormunity for our
residents o really benefi: from longer term savings on
energy lls - ar no addimonal cos: 1o them. Civitas 1
actvely working towards a nes zero targes, and this s
another imporiant milestone o lowernng ~he porfohio
carton foorpnint s to also ensura residents are geming
“he mos: our of These free works.

Twas recognised at the onset thar detanled consideranion
of each indwidual dwelhing s the key o making large.
cos-effective carbon dioxide emissions savings Jor
example, suable sires for golar panels are usually on sitong
roof sinuctires where the panels can be installed facing
south to south-east and with a good means of access.

The retrrofis surveys and detailed assessments underiaken
by =.0N have helped o refine the "hase T implemen:anon
programme and den:ify the bes: method for reducing
“he oral carbon dioxide emissions (and fuel coss)
associated with individaal properies over the medium

or long term. J1agnoses has been broadened o inclade
cansideration of:

The detailed retrofit surveys exercise

14 properties
Confirmed adeqguate
CWI1 Insulations (post
retrofit surveys)

101 properties

Completed Surveys

e fawure improvement opporninities, which should not
be blocked by more immediace projects

e opporuntues for mtegraung energy measures with
other bullding work as required

This has enabled S.0N o provide improvement
recommeandanons that are aligned with the leng-lenm
needs of the binlding and of t's occupants

Despie ace congTaints o protec: vulnerable residents
at the properaas durnng the COV™)-19 resmmicuons, .0ON
garveyaors completad 07 retrofiz surveys as at 3. March
2022, ''he number of surveyed properes was increased
primarly o replace properues that were erther deemed
unviable for the proposed energy measures or where
the meagures were already 10 place it had not keen
caprured on the =nergy ‘erformance Ceruficates.

The completed sarveysidentified himited opporuaniies
-0 casr-effectively undertake ingzallation of Zxternal wall
-nsulanion and Air Source meat pumps during Phase &
The installanion of solar *V and batiery storage has been
completed at 14 properues with further installanions
nsiracied at 29 properaes bu awaring installaaon of
1solator swiiches. The onergy Regualasor (OFGEN) shpulate
thar igolator switches can only ke mnstalled by the bill
payers energy suappher.

Cwizas acuon is helping to reduce household energy ills
w0 i3 vulnerable residents and ease finanwial pressures
paracilarly in the ight of even steeper increases projecied
o comenio force in the Autumn when the energy price
cap1s se o nse further. This 15 eszennal o help people
with OsIng energy coss and 10 mingate agams: nsing
prices *hat could leave many vilnerable people in fuel
povery

43 properties
Solar PV and Battery
Storage (completed/

underway)

20 properties
Confirmed adequate
Loft Insulation {post

retrofit surveys)

"The delivery of the imzial phase of the programme has sireng:hened the collaboration betweern ©.ON and Civitas. The
learmngs have bl the sohd foundanon and road map -o move forward with furure deploymen: of enerqgy saving

measures 1o achleve Civiias ne-7ero targer’

Mark Antcliff

Jusiness Jevelopmen: Manager - = ON nstallation Services.

Environmental improvement
works underway

‘ONM
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HTE 2024

Case Study

Detached House -
S bedrooms
Solar PV ingzallation Solar 2V installation foliowing post

acquisition works

W all black panels I
ergy 3.6W Hybrid inverer

h batery

& tpreviously B)
SAP Score

iy

Clean Energy Strategy to achieve minimum EPC “A-C”
by 2030 — 5 years ahead of Government deadline.

2022 2024 2026 2028

‘Detached House — . : : Detached House —
' 6 ¥ ensuite bedrooms ] "I 5 x ensuite bedrooms

2030

(Phase 10)

(Phase 4) (Phase 6) (Phase 8)

Phase 2 Programme Improvement Measures:
e Commenced Aprl 2022 s Cavizy Wall nsalaton
e A0 measuras across e _Of msuianon

L v EeT 2 - :
60 properies e =xternal wall nsulanon
¢  Targe::oreduce carkon

ans a: bl properies

e Al Source =edat umip

e Zolar PV and 3atery STorage

>

2,000 TCO,

Target Carbon
Emissions reduction

Government Grant Funding Sources:

e Souclal —ousing Jecarbomsganon Cund
e snergy Company Obhgation (2:COY 4

o  Oher Grants Annicipated

Towards Net Zero



Social Impact

Social Impact - Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published

June 2022

The Good Economy (TGE) — June 2022

TGE, independent social impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas' performance against its stated
impact objective and the target cutcomes to which the Company aims to contribute.

TGE considers that
Civitas has made a
positive contribution
to meeting its impact
objectives in the past

12 months.

9

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

40% of residents
living 1n Civitas
properties recelve
over 50 hours of
care per weck

82% of residents
aged between
20 and 49

“The Fund is moving
in a positive direction
in ts contribution to
increasing the supply
of social housing.”

Impact Objective
Supply Quality
increase the Improve the

supply of
social housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
people

41% of properties
new to social
housing at the point
af acquisition

69% of properties
n the 40% most
deprived loca]
authorities

quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked
with APs. signing

off on adaptions to
cnsure properties
continue to meet the
changing needs of
resicents

87% of respondents
reported that they
were safished with
the quality of their
homes

“Civitas’ portfolio provides homes
for people with an identified
need for housing and support.”

Contribute
Towards

THE
GOOD

ECONOMY

“The retrofit effort should
contribute to improving
the energy efficiency of

Civitas' properties.”

Outcomes

0Qo
sl

Wellbeing

Improve the
wellbeing of
residents

G

Value

Offer value for
money for the
public purse

53% of respondents
reported an
improvement in
their independence
between

their previous
accommodation and
their current home

£3.51is created
in sccial value
for every £1

of annualised
investment
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Book Launch for “A Place For Me”

‘A Place for Ve challenges preconceptions and llusraes
how he provision of a decen: home, with Tallored care
and suppor:, promoe:es the independence of some of the
most vilnerable peaple in our socety. Through the lens
and words of the storytellers, 1w helps ‘o ighlight ssues
so many could easily 1ake for granzed and haopefully
sumulare fresh deas Tha: contnbure 1o seluheons.

The buok launched a: the Wellcome 'Trist on Tuaesday,
7 Jecember 2627 offered the opportamy o mesat and
hsten o some of the families and individaals atthe
hear: of the stones. The even: didn's disappoin: - from
the &7 year old cover woman having het first keys o
hear own home 1o 2avid and Lauren - childhood friends
now engaged 0 he marned ‘The common thread s
the unsung heroes ~ the carers and heuwr families who
believed 1in them and became their advocates pressing
on agains: all odds.

“I love my job,’ says June, the manager of
Cornwall Court. ‘1 would work seven days
a week, because this isn't just a job, you're
making such a difference to people.’ She is
a great believer in the ethos of supporting
people to live independently in the
community. T've been in the world of care
for 37 years and have seen a lot of older
people put in institutions., Anyone who
was “mad” was locked up...and left under
the radar. We've made such a difference
to Ruth,” June continues. ‘She was buzzing
the day she got into the bath on her own.
if things like that had happened when she
was in her late teens, she could have been
living on her own now. She might have
been married.”

Jane, uth's manager

“David and Lauren chose
their engagement ring
from F. Hinds, a jeweller

in Redditch. We threw

a surprise engagement
party for them at Lyn's
house at Christmas. David
went down on one knee in
front of friends and family
and proposed to Lauren
officially. It was lovely. If
everything goes fine, they'll
get married in a few years.”

Jyhine



An extract from “A Place for Me”:

Hope (a pseudonym), 33 shorly after 20am on a snowy morning irt the
winier of 2027, two policemen and two dociers knocked on the door of mope’s
home i Consett, County irham Sope, than 24, was insiracied to gerin the
car. ” didn’t even have iime o get ready’ she says, now. Zope was sectioned.

She was driven for an hour 1o a psychiasnce hospiral where she was detatned
n a locked ward. This was 10 be Yope's home for five years. Hope grew Up in
S:anley near Gateshead, m County Jarham, the second of four girls.

Her father worked 1n a fish and chip shop and her mother was a carer for
=ope’s grandmother. When she was severn, eachers began "o suspect she
had mild learning disabihues and she was moved to a special school.

A7 16 she found a class for young people with learming disabiliies at a
ndins.realt college in Congett 337 the size of the college was o0 much for
her, and she dropped out abier a year

n 2009, aged 2., Hope left home and moved ino suppored accommaodaton
In Stanley. She was evicted afier two months, A resident hit her, and she gave
him a shove, =& went flying. e mus: have not been good on his feex. She
lasted rwo days in her second home.  got sexually abused by one of the lads
hwing “here, she says,

The “hurd home was hapier, and “ope seled down 3ut afier a year or so.
Hope broke down during a session with her counsellor @ ranspired she was
bemng groomed by a member of staff who had sexually assaulied her twnce.
" ~hoaghs he was a friend, she says.

3y now she was in a fragile condimon. . was a mess. Lashing out, kicking ouar,
jus: really huring people because everyone hur: me ~ was cons:antly gemnng
arrested and going o cours’

She ned ;0 take her life. Afer being admizzed 1o “he psychiatnic hospiial in
2022, she wasg cdhagnosed with paranoid schizophrenia, emononslly unstable
personality disorder. and post iraumanc siress disorder. “ope was no: a
docile patient. U wag angry with the world, was upset _ had no-one o turm
-0 She savr her mother once a monzh, but she says, " didr't see my dad or
sisters for nearly five yvears 1 would just look at four walls, and think, wharam
Chighang for? There was nothing, jus: thas feeling of being sad. vulnerable
and lonely’

1 2076, he hospral psychiams:s planned o ransfer —ope ¢ a high secure
anisan Wales, 3ut one consaliant ook her aside. ‘She said, "If you take your
medicanon. do youdr counseiling sessions, you could be our of here. fyou
carry on, youll be sen: away.” She changed mv hfe’

n 2077, only a year later, aged 29, mope was able to move into Clark “ouse
She hves in a one-bedroom fla: on the ground floorn surrounded by her
arrwork and mouvational guotes: 3eheve 1n yourself You can do 12" "My social
workar smid, "1 find a good, safe place for vou™ and honestly. " love 17 here/
she says.

She likes drawing, making things, baking =ope has a carer 24 hours a day.
Somendrmes she'll wake voun the night, says Vichelle, her sapport worker,
‘Lecauase she’s having flashbacks and needs reassurance and we ¢ge? up and
have a cup of tea. - don't wan: people to go through whart - wen: through, sad
with no hope, she says 7 thoughs there was nothing out there for me, un-i
Ccame here. Mow, T wanT other peaple to know, there 1@ a place out thers for
VoL

Paul 3ndge launched A 2lace for Ve”
at *he Wellcome Couandanon

“Stories matter, Many stories
maitter. Stories have been
used to dispossess and to
malign, but stories can also
be used to empower and to
humanize. Stories can break
the dignity of a people, but
stories can also repair that
broken dignity.”

{Chimamanda Adichie “The danger of
a single story, T2 Global 2009
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Social Impact

Charitable Partnerships

The Company has supporied and worked with the following chariies since 1200

Crisis

Crisis is a national chanty for the homeless that works :0 provide viial suppor: so that people
can rebuild their lives and are supported ou: of homelessness for good. Cwvitas has sponsored
Crisis over the last five years and “he two organisations regularty coliaborate on the emerging
knowledge required to undertake advanced homelessness schemes. These are vital to enable
people who have been a: risk of or experienced homelessness to rebuild their lives but reguire
considerable care and support in addition to a safe home in the community.

The Choirwith No Name 1s an organisanon that ruans chowrs for people who have expenenced
homelessness-and other forms of margmalisanion.

« 3ig ITicrease 1N average weekly artendance since return ‘o indoor meeungs post COV . -9

= New Cardiff Choir launched in November 2020

« Steady progress with establishment of new community chors in Warford and Covenry.

The House of The House of St. Barnabas

St Barnabas The House of St. Barmabas is a social enterprise memkber's club that helps London’s homeless
- people back o work, through 115 mployment Academy.

Employment Preparation Programme:

17 parucipams successfully graduated from 52218 and PP 9

» 100% of graduates were successfully ma:ched with a mentor

« Employment and Progression

= 3%3% of working graduartes are earning London Living Wage

« 23% of working graduates are in good work and a good home

= 70% of mentor relatlonships with graduates last for at least 6 months

» HOS3 have supported a otal of 93 people over the year.

"

WISH

‘ . WS= s a membership-based network for women working across every discipline of L hausing,
’ with a focus un champloning positive sITeomes for wormen warkimg m the secror Sivieas suppor:

conrbies o the champloming of posiive vurcomes for women working in ~he secior
4 .
WS H
THE NETWORK FGOR WwOMEM
WO HE N SOC AL HOUS'NG
L i ttl e Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity
AL

Lirtle Sprowuts Sealth and Wellbewing Charity are dedicated to improving the healh and

Sprouts wellbeing of cur community through cooking workshops. recipe bags, community food shops.
“check and chatuter” programmes and surplus food collection and disinbuton. Civitas suppor:s
hitde sprouts with the operauonal costs of the charity. particularly dunng COV:2-19. The funds
were used 0 open a further commanity shop which uses food as an engagemen: ‘ool 0 help
addresg physical, soctal, menzal and financial issues.

The Care Workers’ Charity
Thea Care Norkers' Charty (OWC exisms 10 help cars and suppor workers through cnas using
financial suppor: and suppor censres Cwviras suppor: fands raimmyg of up o 28 men-al health
firsr aders ~o provide one "o each O3 C mermber company. providhng shem wnth the rainmg and

ools o provide beer mantal heal'h suppor o the care workars

the
care
WOTRCTS
charny




Governance

Frameworks

In addition to the ESG indices, Civitas participates in the follov\;ing_ frameworks
which don't issue a grading. :

IMPACT © Operating Principles for
MANAGEMENT *- Impact Management
PROJECT

Impact Management The Operating United Nations
Project Principles for Impact Sustainable
The ‘mpac Managemen: froject Management Development Goals
15 o The Operanirg rincies are g n 2005, UN countnies adopied
+ Global forum for bullding framework for investors the 2030 Agenda for Susiamable
CONgensus on how o measire, desim and implemensanion Developmen: and s Y
manage and repor: impact of therr nnpact mar sgemean: Sustamable Developmen: Goals
= Praciiioner Commuamty of St {8MGs"
aver 3000 orgamesanons and « Glebal forarm for Balddime
Vesiors ConEen UGN T O TR AT, ACION AMMONT GOVETTHTIEN S,
« frovides a set of norms MO AT a11ed T2 00 1IMpacT business and il society 1o end
and a shared and holisuc o rovDdes o 2o of orms povary
undersianding of impac: driel g sheired end hohsnae « Create a hife of dignity and
+ “ve core dimensions of impagh derEran N onmpac oppormny for all. wathin the
wha? Who? ~ow much? s re dim=1ne ns of o houndanes of the plane:
Conmnbanon and Risk What W o mach” « No official process for
Corrnlnmoen and ek supporing the S3Gs

= Cumpanies are encouraged o
gselect which goals are aligned
wirth their business aciiviies
and repor: on how “hey are
working o achleve Them.

Sector Specific

5= 15 an early adoper of the Susamabiliry Reporing Standard for Sacial —ousing (Che S:andard). The Standard,
developed through a collaboraion between houang associasions banks, lenders and ivestors. has over "00
signed up early adopters and endorsers,

= Owver 90 signed up adoprers and 20 endorzers

= ‘2 themes and 48 cntena for 258G reporing by housing associatons

« Qualranve and guantzanve and are idenufied as core and enhanced reqaurements 1o demonsrae

srong =5G parformance

Will help the secior establish a credible. meanmgfil. and conmsien: approach 10 reporing s anvironmen:al,
gsoclal and governance (3G performance

Aligned o mrernanonal frameworks and standards inchading the United Nauons S
(LGNS 2Gs) Global Reporang 'mitanve (G SASS (Sustamabiley Accorcomeg Slandards Soard), ]CMA (nternaional
Caprral Marke Asgocianont and LA Coan Varket Association} Principles

ranable Jevelopment Goals

]
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United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals (“UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives UN SDGs
R
Acttire High ?rowdmg }_ugh quahty_. ene;gy efficient homes
Quality-Homes incorporating adaptations for people with
ualty lifelong care needs

Target properties which address the needs.
and improve health and wellbeing of
vulnerable individuals requiring a high leve!l
of care

Local job creation during consiruction

Q Q Q Satisty Social Need Employment via Approved Providers/
@ refurbishments and care providers on
responsible empleoyment terms. including
living wage
Cifer local apprenticeships and contribute to
local community events

Providing Value for Money for public care 1 :vxnr
nd } 51 et enabling vulnerab!
Provide Value for Money and housing budgets by ena g nerable

[ ]
individuals to move out to institutional and Mi

residential sethings
Buy and convert existing and newly AR

Increase Supply compieted properties [rom privare to social )
housing sector in perpetuity

Ensure Approved Providery and Care
Providers have the capability and capacity

. ]
to deliver high-quality service and outcomes 13 ]
[@ Build Quality Partnerships for residents over the long term

Green lease terms Lo be agreed with the @ 9

counterpdrties

Adopt sustainabiity policy at govarnance leve,

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM, the Company's Investment Adviser, has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partniers throughout the last

year providing shared advice and learning through:
—— i =
i Monthly and quarterly Regular seminars
! meetings to review
strategic priorilies
and key performance
Y/ indicators

Weekly meetings with Monthly compliance

key operationai staff monitoring
This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM are able to proactively work with its Approved Froviders with
any matters arising o support a continued high level of operational performance. This support builds on our
long term relationstip with the senior managemeént and helping to build resilience within the organisations.

.
Monthly Seminars

W has aonrmmraed o anderaks monthly qovearnanos S hoste eprarierly Approved Sronnder reminiary or
andd healh and safery maorroning acrozs “he porfolio reqalar basis Th ST SermInar i3 expacied tu be hield

IRPL]

Approved Croviders have demong rated resilisnoee
and corrinuaed high levels of complianae w-h healh
fosafery wrandards




Governance

Indices

CIM's implementation of the Board’s commitment to continuous improvement in its
approach to ESG integration remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last
year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such as GRESB (formerly Global
Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International),
Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.

s
':-" )
G R ESEB

What is it?

GRESB iz the leading
sustamalnhsy benchmark
for the global real estate
2ECIOT ASSEessments take
place annually and are
gquided by factors thas
inves:ors and the indusiry
conzider 1o e masenail
1su1es 1n the sustainabiliey
performance of real

asset inves ments The
benchmark assessmen:
covers more than 8450
DFOPErty comparnies,
RETs, fund and
developers. are covered
within GRESS Public
Msclosare.

How is CSH
rated?

= achievzd

foolleariing “he
“abhe sc

;o SEessmenT
s eer Girenap e
oo of O
= mprovemen” oo 3

SO0 I T re 00 E

sk Pt

LTI ks
{ Zedirlanmial

msc: T

What is it?
MSCI ESG Ratings

rovvide g hinto w3
nigks and Gy
wrhin mal-
porfonos Ve
COMIpAlres 1CoTineg o
“her exprosare tondusry
aigrfican S ngks and
“herr alshry to maniage
“hose ngks relatnie o

sty peers

How is CSH
rated?

= O85= /RO E8G ranng of
BB.

« (21 has made relevan:
policies availablz to
VS0 and other rating
agencies through
hostieg on the C7V
wrelisie

« ‘This should e reflecied
I fusure Tating
ASEAIIMENT

. SUSTAINALYTICS
JTr=————

What is it?

Sustainalytics measure
how well companies
proacively manadge The
environmen:al. sooal
and governance 15sues
that are mos: matenal
0 thelr business. (11
based on a sractared.
obhjective and rransparent
merhodology. The 55G
ratings provide an

ASSessmsSiT O CO]’TH’.\-aIHES‘

abiey to muigare
rsks and caprahse on
ORPOTUNIT TS,

How is CSH
rated?

e 5= s gt -3G Gk
Rty sonre of
16.6 (Low Risk) .11

RN ER N AR aTa

EPRA

EURDPEAN PUBLIC
REAL ESTATE ARIOTIATIGN

What is it?
EPRA sBPR Guidelines

provids 4 consgTenT

vy of measanng
Fastanalnhy
performanee The -2/
332 are rasneg he
sandards and conssTeney
of suz aindalaluy reporing
for iered real esrate
COMMPANISE JUTORS U0 s
Poreadnnition of LroperTy
cOMmant=E that hive
cesafully adonad the
S0 32R Guadelines aned
wihich have zabrm=d for
A1 azzeszinent of thewr

o s

Arircnal s

Tre earvet = oreanes
ara rar ted erhar g Gelod

Stleer or v re Avrard

How is CSH
rated?

= CS- omubrission o S238
for agsessmen: under
the guudehmes remamns
undear consideranion
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Corporate
Governance

Corporate Governance
Joard of Directars
Aepor of the hireciors
epor of -he Audi- and /anagemen: ~ngagamen- Commisee
Sepor: of the Hominanion and emuneraion Commiies
Corporate (Goverianse satemern”
JNreciors AemUnaration epor

S-atemen: of Jiecrors’ esponsibilrey

Alernatve nwvestmant und anacers hrective

ndependen Sadirors




Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michae. has over 40 years' experience in Lne invesinien:
indusity as a perifo:ic manager and running instiaiiona.
b.sinesses and retail businesses ai Fide 1ty and Garimore. He
serves as a irusieo direaior of the BAT UK Ponsion Fund, tne
Beuische Bank UK pensgion $onemes and ag a oruses of the
Cooner Gay {(Ho.dings) Limited Retiremean: Benelits Scneme
Michac! das previcasly scrved as a Non-Txec.aove Direcior of
several investimen: (r.s.s and a namoer of indusiry agsomalons
Michae: nas an M.A 10 Economics from Camoridge Universiy

Male 60%
Female 40%

Micnae, was apoomied 1o the Board on 24 Octoper 2015 and has
sarved as Chairman singe his appointmeant

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Caroline is 4 cnariered accoun:an: wiin over 25 years' cxpeoriencc a: Lrnst & Young LLE aterly agan
exec..tive direcior hetore eaving in 2612 During tnat lme. sae speclaased in 1o asser managemen:
sector and developed cxrensive experience of invesimen: irus:s. Sq¢ was a nemoer ol various wecanica.
commiiees of 1ne Assomadion of Invegimen Companies Snoig 2.90 a non-excculive dirccior and a.dil
commisee chalr tor 1P Maorgan Cloha Tmerging Marcae:s Incone Trust p.o niernationa. Biotcchno.ogy
Trugt oic and aprdn Elroonean Logistics Income p.g.

Caroine was appoinied (o e Board on 24 Ociocer 2015 and has scrved as Aadn and Managemen:
Tngagenren: Commiiiec Chairman since aer anpoinimeani.

Peter Baxter, Director

Impac: Managemen: I.d. a social impact invesinen: organisation. and a rusee of Trust tor London, a
cnarizane foandasion. Ie is also a non-cxec.tive direcior of B.ackRocs Greater Lurogean Invoesimen:
Trus: poc Previous.y. ne served as Coael Txecdiive of Old Mutuas Assc: Managers (UK) Lid. and has
worced for Senroders and HiL Sam el a vaney of invesimen! ro.es. He ho.ds an MBA from London
Business Senoo and g an associate of the Sociey of Inves men: Professionas

Poier was anooinied Lo the Board on 24 Ocioper 2015 and is the Senior Independent Direciorn

Alastair Moss, Director

Alastair is a propeny develooman: awyer wii over 20 years experience and 15 Co-Hoead of Rea. Fsiale
a: Memery Crysia. He was a non-cxccuive direcor of Notang ., Gen Tr.st. Hels asoa tormrer
Chairman of the Invasinren: Comirites of (e Cliy of London Corgoration. Its Praopeny Invesinten: Board
and 118 P anning and Transoorianon Commeicee Teis a Truasice of Marsaa., s Cnaty. He nas a $0 ocen
a noard memper of Soho Howsing Assocation and was a memoct of 1o Area Board ol Cloywes: Homes.
He wag a Couancilor at Wesimins:or Ciiy Counet: for 12 vears, ine wding is lencre as Cnairman of tne
P.anning & Cry Deve opman: Comrmitiee.

Aasiair was annoinied 1o 11 Board on 24 Oclooer 20158

Alison Hadden, Director

Adson has over 30 years experience in ac housing indwsry and nas ao.d a namoar of Lrecuive
posiiions a: severa. ma’er nowsing associations. inclading CRO at Paradigm Housing in (nese ro.es, 8o
nas warged wiit many of the stakenoiders in 2ne industry ineoading e Rega. aor of Sooa. Housing.
Sae s currenty a non-cxecuiive direcior and Viee Chair ol Yorgaasire Howsing, a 20.00C-home nowsing
associalion operating in the Yoresure area. Viee Coair and a memoaor of Tie Governance Comirritties of
Pocacs and Prams Howsing and Char ol Heytord Regeneraton a for-profi: Housing Association aonerating
m e Cherwe, arca

Algon wasg apooiniced @ ne Board on 2l Fovamoor 2319

Pelor nas over 30 yearg experience in e invesimen: managemen: indusiry He s a director of Snowpall
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the yvear ended 31 March 2022.

Principal Activities

The Company s a closed-ended inves:men: company
and s a R5]T which was incorporazed in Sngland and
Wales on 23 Seprtember 20°6. The Company 1s the holding
company of a number of subsidiaries and s Ordinary
shares were admitted o trading on the Vamn Marke:

of the London Stock =xchange on 18 November 2076,

The Company Invegis In properiies or propersy-holding
SPVs, erther direc:ly or via a wholly-owned subsidiary,

n accordance with the Company's invesimen: objective
and policy.

Business Review

A review of the business and future developments i
con:amed i the Charrman's Statemen: and .nvesimen:
Adwviser's Repor’. The principal nisks and uncerainies are
detatled on pages 38 1o 42, See note 330 fora summary of
“he post balance shee: gvents

Results and Dividends
The results for the year are shown on page 3

The following dividends were patd on “he Ordinary
shares d:irmg he VEAT

Fourth Quarterly ".35p per share

dividend caid on U [une 204
First Quarterly '777”7”71,38'/513 p:—‘-r_thare
dividend _ paid on (0 September 2027
Second Quaﬂe-r]y-rm ’ ﬁ;;;;er share
dividend 3 paid on 13 December 2077
Third Quarterl;m - *3B75p p_er share
dividend pald on ” March 2022

Since the year énd. *he Company has declared the
following dunidend:

Fourth Qua_rterly
dividend

- o 58’f5p-pér. share
paid on 28 lune 2022

Mo final dividend 1s being recommended on ~he Ordinary
shares

Directors

The members of the 3oard are higted on page 57.

All Jwrectors served “hroughous the penod under review

The 3oard consis s salely of non-execiutive Jiraciors.
each of whom g independen: of the .nvesimen: Adwviser,
The Company has no execuuve direcors or employees.

‘naccordance with 3vard poliey. all Jirectors will retire
and. being eligible, vall stand for re-eleclion a7 “he AGHV,

Cerformance evaluanon of the 3oard. s Commaiees and
indmvidual Jireciorsas carned ous1n accordance with the
procedare ser oar on page /0

No Director s under a conirac: of service with the
Company and no Jirector or any persons connecied
with them had a marerial inarest in the rransactions
and arrangemen:s of the Company. Details of ireciors
remuneralon are set oy in the rectors Remuanerasion
Repor: on pages /31676,

The keneficial interes:s of the Directors in the securiies
of the Company are set oyt 1n the Direciors’ Femuneralion
Zepoti on page /b,

Through sheir Letters of Appoiniment, the Company
has provided indemnities to the Direciors, 10 the exten:
permitzed by law and the Company's Articles. in respec:
of labihities which may arise 1in connection with claims
relating o their performance or “he performance of the
Company whils: they are Directors. There are no other
quahfying ‘hard party indemnittes in force

The general powers of the Jirectors are contained

wi hin the relevan: LK legiglatiion and the Company's
Aracles of Association. The Directors are entiled ‘o
exarcise all powers of the Company, subjec: 1o any
hmeanonsaimpoesed by the Arnicles of Association or
applicable legiglauon. As et ol on page 59, the Arcles
of Associanion may only be amendead by way of a special
resolanon of shareholders

Capital Structure

Issue of shares

Arthe AGY held on 27 Seprember 2020 the Direciors were
authorisad [0 1ssue equlTy SECUTIEs P T0 an aggragae
nominal amoun: of £.244.922 (being approximazely 20% of
‘hessued Ordinary share capizal)

The Company was alse authonsed (o disapply
pre-empion nights in respec: of equity secunies and
t0 188Ue ety gecurniies for cash up 10 an aggregate
nominal amoun: equal to F622,467 (beng approximasely
0% of the ssued Ordinary share capial).

Dunng the year, 565000 Ordinary shares were 1ssuead
from Treasary undet thase aurhonnies. These shares were
1zsued ar a pnice of not less than the ne: asse: value per
share ar the ume of 1ssue plus an amoun: 1o cover the
cost. "ollowing these ransacions, the Company held ne
shares in sreasury

The equaity 1sguance was made with a view -0 halanong
“he premudm o NAY and gansfyimg marke: demand for
addinonal shares in the Company.

A the AGV held on 27 September 2020 the Company
sought approval for a resclunion to disapply pre-emplion
righzz on an addrional *8% of -he Company's 1ssued
Ordinary share caprzal This rasoluson farled as voles
represaning 37 7% of “he toral vores cas™ were received
agamns i

Sollowing the AGWV, the Company, via 173 COrporate
lrrokers engaged with 135 largess sharehnlders who had
woted agams: this resolunon.




Report of the Directors continued

The 3oard undersiands thaz these shareholders followed
PIRC'e or their own internal recommendaton to vote
agatnst this resgluion as when combined with the
standard 10% pre-empuon digsapplication resolusion i
waoald have resulied in the Company having authonty to
1ssue up o 20% of 173 own shares pre-empnvely

A the AGV n 2022 the 3oard proposes o seek
shareholder approval for a standard (0% pre-empiion
disapphcanon resoluuon,

The authonty to1ssue shares will expire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming AGHM. roposals for the renewal of

the Directors authortty 1o 1ssue shares will be set out in
the Nouce of AGM for 2022, which will be airculazed o
sharehclders in due course.

Purchase of own shares

At the AGM held on 72 September 202, the Jireclors
were granted the authority 10 buy back up 0 93306960
Ordinary shares. being -4.99% of the Grdinary sharesin
issue ar the ame of the passing of the resolutuon.

Juring the year, as the Company's share pnice fell

below Net Asse: Value per share, the 3oard instigated

a share buyback programme, under which a to:al of
“0.025000 shares have been purchased into treasury as a-
37 March 2022,

The authonty to buy back up 10 95,306,960 shares wnll
expire at the concluswon of the forrhcoming AGM, when
a resoluton for 1is renewal will be proposed “urther
informaton will be contained 1n the Notice of AGM,
which will be circulated o shareholders in due course,

Current share capital

As at $1 March 2022, there were 622,467 580 Ordinary
shares 1nn 1ssue, of which 10.025,00C shares were held in
reasury. The 1otal voting righss of the Company as as
3 March 2022 was 612,436,380

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary shares

“ach Ordinary shareholder 1s enutled o one vole cn a
show of hands and. on a poll. to ona vote for every Ordinary
share held The righ t0 anend and vore at general meenngs
of the Company may be restneied where a shareholder has
falled -0 provide iInformaton pursaant 0 a noice served
under section 7495 of the Companies Ac- 2006, The Ordinary
shares carry the nghs o recerve dividends declared by

“he Company. Provided the Company has sazisfied all of 128
habihnes, durnng a winding-up of <he Company, the holders
of Ordinary shares are enirrled 0 all of the sumplus asses of
the Company.

Transfers of shares

There 1 no resmncion on the ransfer of the Company's
shares other than transfers o more than four joint
transferees and rangfers of shares which are no: fully
paid up or where “he transferor or any other person
whom the Company reasonably believes to be interested
1 -he ransferors shares has been dulv served with a
netice pursuant o secuon /95 of the Comparues Act 2006,

There are no special rights with regard o control
arrached 1o securines no agreements between holders
of securines regarding their ransfer known to the
Company; and no agreements which the Company

1§ party to tha: migh: affectits control following a
successful takeover bid.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolution a: a general meenng of
~he sharsholders.

Ag at the date of signing this Report, the total voung
rights of the Company was 60,736,380,

Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The Board has appointed *he ‘nvesimen: Adviser, Civitas
‘nvesiumen: ¥Managerment “amited, 1o provide mvesimen:
adwvice and o asse: manadqge the properny por:folio

and the azsociated day-ro-day acuviies, including
managemen: of tenanted properues and marketing
acivines. C1Vos o specialhist investor 1n soclal housing
propery. with a focus on specialist social housing and
has ex-ensive experience n socal housing and real
a5tate InNvesimen:.

The danes of C2M include the sourcing of invesimen:
opporiunnes thar mee: the invesimen: cntena of the
Company. controlhing the acquisinon of approved
properies, asset managemen: of all propernes within
the porfolio, ongoing monitonng of the properties and
renants, maimnzalning compliance with all relevant rules
and regulanons, and providing markenng and inivestor
relazions services 0 the Company.

Detalls of the fees pavable 10 the nvesimen: Adviser are
descnbed in note 8.0 of the financal stazemenss. The
basis for the calculation of the invesiment Adwviser's fees
15 based upon the 7R3 NAY.

The agreamen: with CV 15 zerminable on not less than 22
months notice by erther party, s1ch NoIce not 10 eXpire
earlier than 30 Vay 2024

The performance of The .nvestmen: Adviser has

been reviewed on an engoing Lass throughout the
pernod by the 3oard ar s quarerly meenngs A formal
ann.ual evaluanon 1s also carned ous by the Audi and
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Report of the Directors continued

The 3oard considers a nurmber of faciors including
mvesimen: performance. the gualiy and quanuty of
nves men: opporiuniies presented, the skills and
experience of key staff and the capabihity and resources
of the investmen: Adviser o deliver sausfaciory
performance for the Company. The 3oard ts sausfied with
the performance of the ‘nvesimen: Adwviger and considers
118 contunued appointment o ke 1in the bestinterests of
the Company and us shareholders.

AIFM

G0 Caprral "amited {"G!0" or the "AIFV.") has been
appointed as the Company's ALV with effec: from

24 Aagnrs: 2007 The A7V currently receives a monzhly
fee of 2.7 basis points of the tozal Company NAV for

138 sarvices and the agreemen: 1s “erminable on three
moriths nonce by erther party.

Depositary

ndog Minanaal imited was appointed as “he Company's
Denositary with effec: from 7 June 20°8 The Depostiary
provides cash montonng, safekeeping and asse:
verficaion and oversigh: funciions as prescribed by the
Alzernanve nvesimen: Tund Managers Jirective The
Jepostary receives an annual fee of £59.000, net of VAT,
plas 8.006% of the firg: F450 mullion of any new equity
capial raised per annum and C.0058% of furher equity
raiged per annum, subject 1o a maxamuam fee of £F'50.000
per annum. The agreemens s termimnable on g1x months’
nofice by erher pary

Administrator

The Company has appoimned Lnk Allernaive “und
Admimsirazors Limited {(Lank’ as the Adminisirator

of the Company and s subsidianes. with effac: from

28 “ebraary 2078, 10 under:ake “he accouarnzancy and other
admurustranive dunes of the Company. Link 15 a spemahs:
adrministrazor for investmens: funds. provniding suppor:
funcions and expernse tatlored for “his induasiry.

The Adrminigraior receves a fixed hase fee for the
provision of 17g services to the Company as well as an
entlemen: to addional vanable fees for dunes relaiing
o corporate acuviiies The agreemenst s serminable on as
leas: 51x months nouce by erther pary

The dunes of the Admimtsrator include the mainienance
of all Company and subsicdiary books and records,
excluding those man:amned by “he nvesimen: Adviser.
maononng complance with appheable relevan: ruies
and regulanions and other admimsirative dunes as
reguireacd

Company Secretary

ank Company S/avers Limited was appomnted as the
Company Secretary ‘o the Company with effect from

28 “arch 2028, The Sacretary receives a fixed fee for the
provision of 17s services to the Company. The agreemen”
was for annrial penod of one year and “hereafer
auromanically renews for successive periods of 72 months,
unl cerminated by erher pary on at leas six months’
notce

Review of Service Providers

The performance of the service providers is reviewed

on an ongoing basis throughout the period by the

Auadir and Management Zngagemen: Commities and
formally once a year. The Commitiee considers a namber
of factors including performance of duties, the skills

and expenence of key staff. and -he capabilily and
resources of the service provider to deliver satisfaciory
perfermarice for the Company. The 3oard is sanisfied with
‘he performance of the service providers appointed by
“he Company and considers their conunued appoiniment
o be in the bestinzerests of the Company and 11s
sharehoiders.

Substantial Shareholdings

AT 3 March 2022, he Company had been informed of
“he following dizciosgakle interests in the share capral of
~he Company:

Number ot Percentage of
wrdinary Total Voung

. Sildlf:&}__ R _qul\ts
V'Vnrvestec 'Wea];n”ﬁ;éstnlent JImred 652,7559.8°5 00
Skandinawigka “nskilda Banken A3 56485034 922
Srandard Life Aberdeen plc 30,492,544 4498
Vassachusetis Tinancial 30,300,744 19%
Sernices Company
3lackRock nc. 27799476 348

Continuation Vote

naccordance with 178 Aricles, the 3oard will propose an
ordinary resolinon that the Company shouid continae in
s curren form o shareholders ar the AGY o be held on
°5 Sepemhber 2022, and at the AGM held every five years
“hereafier 'f the resolution 13 no: passed, the Jireciors are
required o formuilate proposals 2o Le put o shareholders
within six monshs of such resolunion being defeated for
che valuniary liuidanon, uniisanon, reorganisaion or
reconsraciion of *he Company.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The hsting rale 9 84 outlines a senes of requirernents for
hsted companies 1o disclose cerain irems. The Direciors
confirm tha: there are no disclosures regaired in relanon
tooLEing 2uale 9 8.4,




Report of the Directors continued

Financial Instruments

The Company ulilises financtal instraments in 1.
operations. The financial insirrumenss of *he Company at
3" March 2022 comprised rade receivables and payables,
cther deb:ors, cash and cash equuivalenss, non-current
borrowings, current borrowings and derivanves.

Othor than s iiked interes: rate deb? facdities, s the
Direc:ors’ opimon thas: the carrying valae of all inancial
insiruments on the Consclidated S:atemen: of inancial
Position 1s equal o their fair value

ror a more detailed analysis of the Compary's financial
rigk managemen:, please refer 10 note 3.0 of the financial
slalements.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered he requiremern:s o disclose
the annual quantty of emissions in tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalens for acuviiies for which the Company
15 responsible The 3oard believes that the Company

has, from a formal reporing perspeciive, no reporialle
emisgions ag ‘g reporing falls under the lessees’
responsibilizy as par of the terms of their fully repamnng
and imsunng leases: emissions produced from erther

the requstered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed 1o fall under the
responsibility of other partes; and the Company has not
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the GHG Zrotocol Corporare Standard n relation 1o
the Swreambined cnergy and Carbon Reporing (SECRL
implemented by The Companies (Direciors’ Repor:} and
imited Laabiity Jarmerships Gnergy and Carbon epors)
Regulations 2078, for the year ended 3. March 2022 the
Groupas considered o be a low energy user.

Regardless of the obligauons of other partes, the
Company takes thessue of environmental enhancemen:
and emissions sertously as par: of its overall =56 strazeqgy
and 18 evaluaing the por:foho, working with housing
managers, ‘0 consider where 1t can bning abour furher
enhancemen’s and improvemen:s.

“urther details can be found in the snvironmeansal, Social
and Governance repor: on pages 45 10 55,

Charitable Donations

nt addition o s directinvesimenss, the Company plays
a proader part within “he communinias in which 1
works. Whils: recognising the practical imizations thas
all financial inves:ors face, Civitas suppoers volantary
organisations tha:t are acuave withun the breoader housing
and homelessness environment. Civiag also Intends. as
par: of 128 broader financal and operational reporing, o
provide a commernzary on the posiave social change
and impac: that resulig from she investments that have
een made.

The following chariable donations were agreed dunng
“he year

_Chanty

Donation
Choir with No Name - B ;“:5,00(}
Tittle Sprouss £5.000
WisH b OLU
“Total 28000

Independent Auditors

‘n the case of each Direcior in office at the date the
epor of the Direciors 1s approved:

e 3o far as the Dirscioris aware. there 1s no relevan:
audi: informaton of which the Group and Company's
audiior is \inaware; and

e ‘hey have taken all the steps that they cugh: 10 have
taken as a Drecior in order :o make themselves aware
of any relevan: audit informanon and o es:abhish that
the Group and Company's auidizors are aware of that
informanon.

“ricewaterhouseCoopers .7 has expressad s
willingness to continue o act ag auditer of the Company
and a resoluncn for g re-appoinimen: will be proposad
at the 2022 Annual General Vesting.

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Statement, the Repor: of the
Audit and Management Sngagemen: Comrmut.ee and the
Directors’ Remuneration Repor: form par: of the eport of
the Jirectors.

Approval

The Repor: of the 1reciors has been approved by The
Ioard.

By order of the Board

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secretary

29 June 2092
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Report of the Audit and Management

Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audir and Managemen: Sngagemen: Commiee {the
‘Committee”) oversees “he financial reporing process for
‘he Company, with consideranion of the internal controls
and risk managemen: of the Company, and oversight of
‘he Company’s compliance with accountng siandards
and regulatory requiremenss. T also oversees the
performance of the invesiment Adwviser and the Company's
adminisiralive and company secretaral support.

Composition and role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commiee 1s chaired by Carohne Gulhver and
comprises all the Directors. The Commutes operates within
wnien terms of reference which are avalable on the
Comparny's websre as determined by the 3oard.

The pnncipal funcaons of the Comminee are o

e oversee the financial reporing process for the
Company and monizor the imtegryy of the financual
statements of the Company and the Groap. including
their comphance with accounung siandards and
reqalazory Tequirements;

e 0 adwvise the 30ard, where requested, on whether
“he Annual Report and finanaal statements, taken as
a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the informanon necessary for sharehoiders
‘o agsess the Company's pestion and perfarmance,
business model and strazeqy;

e review and monnor the infernal financial control and
nsk managemen: systems of “he Company:

e monior and review annually whether an mrernal
audiz funcion g reguired;

e review the nvesimen: Advisers whistleblowing
arrangemenss;

e approve the appoinimen:, re-appoIntment or
removal of the external audrior, and approve their
remuneraion and terms of engagemen:;

¢ manage ‘he relanionship between the Company
and the exiernal audior including reviewing thetr
independence and objecuvity and the effeciivensss of
the audl” process,

» develop and implemen: a policy on ~he engagemen:
of he external audizor “o supply non-audr: services:
and

e« review and monuior “he performance of. and
contrachaal arrangemenss with, The ‘nvesimen:
Adwiger, the AT and other seriice providers,

s ywthin the Commises’s termis of reference for1ts
members ‘0 seek independen” professional adwice. at the
Company's expense, as regrurad in the furherance of s
datles,

Meetings

The Commitee mee:s twice a year on bath ocgasions,
part of the meening 1s held with the external audizor
without the nvesiment Adwiser pregent. The Commitee
me: *wice n the financial year and the mee:ngs were
attended by each member as ser out on page 69,

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluation of the performance of the
Commitiee ts disclosed on page 70.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an ongoing process for idenafying,

evaluating and managing the principal and emerging rigks

faced by the Group Farher detals can be found on pages ]
70 and 7

The prineipal risks and unceriamnies denufied from the nsk
requgter and a degcnipuon of the Group's risk managermen:
procedures can e found on pages 38 10 42,

Activities during the year

The Comrmuree considered the anmial repor, inenm
repors, any other formal financial performance
announcemen:s and any other maters as specified
under the Commi:ees terms of reference and reporied to
the 3oard on how 10 discharged s responsibilities.

The Commiee discussed and considered ‘he exiernal
audiz performarncea, objecavity and independence. the
external audiior re-appointmean:, accounting pohcias and
Alrernanve Performance Measures, significan: accouniing
radgemen:s and ezumares the need for an ucernal audne
funcaon and the nsk reqiszer.

The Commuiiee concluded thar annternal audi:
fanciion would provide mimimal addisional comfor az
considerable extra cost o the Company. The exisung
sygtem of monronng and reporing by third paruaes
remamns approernaze and adequate.

2unng the year the Commizee also conducted a
comprehensive review of “he key agreemente with

118 service providers, and a detailed review of the
performance, compostion. personnel, processes and
mrernal control sysrems of the A7V, a review of all of
“he Group's other corporate advisers and key service
providers, The discussion imcluded an assessmen? of
performance and surabihicy of the services providad
irt the conex: of the feez paid o each provider, and a
review of the terminanion penod of each agreemen:

The Commitae considered “he ~erms of the nves man:
Vanagemesant Agraement, 1o engure 1T connnaes 1o reflect
~he commercial arrangemenss agreed betvreen the
Company and “he nvesimen: Adviser and was salshed
‘har-his was the case



Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continued

Letter from the Financial Reporting Council

Dunng the year the Company received a letter from

the mancial Reporting Council {'2C7) requesung
Imformanon following a limred scope review of

the Company's 202! Annual Repor: and Accountgin
accordance with Par: 2 of the M'RC Corporate Reporing
Review Operaing Procedures The letfer primanly
focused on the accounting treaimen: of lease Inceniives,
relazed pary disclosures and 7R3 8 'Operating Segments’

The Company provided he information and explanatuons
o the 'RC as regquested to1ts sansfacuon. The JRC
subisequently advised that s review had been brought
0 a saustaciory conclusion.

The Group has made addisional enhancemen:s o the
disclesures in this annual repor: on the maters raised by
“he “RC. The Company had also published a

Marke: Updaze on I* October 2027 addressing these, and
other, points.

The FRC's review was based on the 2027 Annual Repor:
and does not benefiz from detalled knowledge of

our business, or an anderstanding of the underlying
transaclions entered into. [1s correspondeance provides
no assurance that the repor: and accoun’s are correc:
in all masenal respects; the “RC's role 18 no: o venty the
mformanon provided bus to consider comphance with
reportmg req‘;]iremems.

The TRC accep:s no habiley for rehiance on its leters by
the Company or any third pary. including but not hmited
o mnvesiors and shareholders.

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Commiritee considered the key aCCcOourning esiumaes
and judgemenss underlying the preparaion of the
financal statemenss focusing speacifically on:

Significant Financial Reporting Issue — Valuation of
Investment Property

The valuanon of the propery porrffohais crucial 1o the
statemen: of financial posimon and repor:ed resulis.

Afrer discussion with the investmen: Adwviser, the
Commiiiee has determined tha: the key nisks of
rmisstatemen: of the Company financial statements relate
to the valuanon of invesimen: property.

The valuatons of the invesiment properies a* *he end of
‘he financal penod were independently performed by
lones Lang wasalle ("]} whom the Commiszes considers
0 have sufficien: experise, experience and local and
nazonal knowledge of social housing and supporzed
housging o underake *he valuatons.

J 7. also conducts immal valaatons of properass on
acouigimon. The Directors have ensured “hat J'.0 has
appropnate procedures in place 1o ensure thare are no
independence confhic:s wiath the services provided 1o
“he Company.

The Invesimen: Adviser confirmed to the Commiitee that
she method of valuasion has been applied consistently
during the year .t further confumed tha:, dunng the
course of the penod. |L. was regularly challenged by
‘he nvesimen: Adviser on the assumpons used in the
valuanon of the Company's inves:men: properiues 1o
ensure robust and appropriate methods were beling
apphed. The nvestment Adwviser discusses rthese areas of
challenge with “hie Cornmitige,

The Auditer me: separately with JLL and repored back

to the Commitiee on 115 challenge of the valuations

and assumpiions. The Auditor was sausfied that the
valuancns had been prepared using appropriate
methods and assumprions, and had been prepared in
accordance with R'CS Valuauon - Professional Standards.

As explained in note 5.0 10 the financial statemen:s.

-he approach adopred by the Company 1s 10 recognise
nvestmearit propertes at fair value, with the fair value of
“he property being based on vatuatons performead by J7.L.
The revaluanon of the INvestmen: properies gave Tise 1o
a revaluation gam of £°2.3 million in the period.

Continuation Resolution

The Company's araclas of association include a
regrairemen: for the 3oard o propose an ordinary
resolusion a: the annual general meeng following the
fif-h anniversary from the immal public offenng of the
Company for the Company "o continiue in 155 curren: form
{(zhe Contnuation Resolution). This 1s the first contiinuaton
vore since PO

The Commuitee has considered the effect “he
Coninuanoen esolunon would have and has agreed

shar 17158 a significan: accouning issue for the Company.
given iz 1mpac: on the preparation of the consohdated
financial statements on a going concern basis, f the
Conminuanon Resolution 1s passed, the Company will
coninie 1ts husiness as presantly constituted and
propose the same resclunon at every fifth annual general
mee:ng thereafier .f the Conunuanon fesolinion is no:
passed, the Jiractors will be required, within gsix months
after the date of this annual general meenng, ‘o formulate
proposals for considerasion by the shareholders for the
voluntary hgquaidatlon, Unitisatlon. recrganisaion, or
reconsgiruction of the Company.

Afrer making appropriate enguiries of the Company's
brokers and nvestmen: Adviser, parsaans: o “heir
recen: discussions with a number of the Company's
shareholders, the Commitiee 12 of the view tha:

the Conunuanon Reselunon will be passed at the
forrhcoming annual general meelng

The Commitee s, therefore of the omimon thar the
going concern basis adopred in the preparanion of the
congohdated financial statemenss 1s appropnate,

“urther informanon can be found i note 272 of the
Consohdazed Yinanoal S:atemenss.
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Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continued

Maintenance of REIT status,

There are a number of condintons thar a comzany {(or
prinaipal company of a group RaT) needs to satisfy
order 0 become a RZ.T and remain withun the regime.
The LLRET rtegime affords the Group a beneficial 1ax
reatment forincome and capnal gains, provided ceram
criteria are met There is a nsk tha: these LT conditions
may not be me: and additional tax becomes payable by
the Company. The 3o0ard regularly reviews the 7T tes's
<har are performed by the Adminisirazor,

The Board 1s saushed tha* the Company has main:ained
128 Rz stamas throughout the vear.

Misstatements

The nvesimen: Adviser confirmed 1o the Committee thati:
was not aware of any matenal or immatenal rms SIMEents
made intenucnally w0 achieve a paracular presentation.

Conclusion in respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presentanons and repar:s from the
nvestmern: Adviser, the Comminee 18 satisfied thart the
financial statements appropnazely address the crincal
jadgements and key estimares. both in regpect of the
amounts reported and the disclosures.

The Commiiiee 12 also sanusfied that the sigmificant
assumplons ased for dezermining the value of asses
and habihies have been appropriately scruintsed and
challenged and are sufficien:ly robus:. Accordingly, the
Commiziee has concluded that the Annual Repor: and
financial statemente, laken as a whaole, are far, balanced
and understandable, and has recommended their
apuroval o the 3oard on thar Lasis.

Auditor Appointment and Tenure

As aresul: of the UX's implemen:aiion of the Sl s
mandatory audr firm rotainon reguirements, the
Company s required to ensure tha: the external audrors
CONTACT 18 muT Ot ta tendear art least every W years,

with the proviso that no single firtm may serve as the
Company's external audiror for a penod exceading

20 years. PwC was first appointed as “he Company's
avchmor with effec: from Varch 2077 s intended thas the
exrernal addis will ke s out 2o tender no later than for
‘he hnanaal year commencing - April 2026, which is

10 years afier the Company's tunal heing

Satra Choudhry s “he audy parner allocated 0 the
Company by 2wl The audi? of "he finanoal statements
for the year ended 37 Varch 2022 are her firs: az semor
sranrory auditor of the Company.

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and

Auditor Independence

As par: of s annual review of the effecuveness of

*he exzernal audl’ process. the Commitiee obrained
agsurance on the qualiy of the external audit from its
own evaluation, the audit feedback documentation and
from correspondence and digcussions with the audis
parner, investment Adviser and the Adminisrazor. The
Audror demonsitated a good anderstanding of the
Group. and had idenafied and focused on the areas

of greatest financial reporiing risk. s repor:ing ‘o the
Cornmittes was clear, open and thorodgh. The Commitiee
has assessed the profescional scepnicism and challenge
of managemen: judgemen: by <he Audizor and 18 sansfied
“hat the Auditor has demongsirated these. The Committee
considered the advice incluaded in the Z2C Practice Awd
on Audir Quality when making this jadgemen:.

The “RC's Audr Qualizy nspecions Report on the audis
carned ou: by 2ricewarerhougeCogpers -..2 was also
considered by The Commirtee On the basis of These
facTors and assessments. the Comrmrttes has concluded
*hat the external audi: process has been effeciuve.

The Commitiee assessed the external auduvors
Independence, qualificanons, relevan: expernience, and
effectivaness of audi; procedures. n advance of each
audiz, the Commicee obrains confirmanon from the
external audror that 1z remains ndepanden: and tha: the
level of non-audi: fees are not an independence threas



Report of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee continued

Non-audit Services

The Commiitee has put inte place a pohcy for the
provision of non-audi services 1o the Company by the
auditor The general intantion of the Committees to
avold the provision of non-audrr services by the auditor,
other than the review of the half-yearly report, as these
have the potential 0 compiromise the indspendence of
the audizor. The Commiiiee acknowledges that in ceriain
gituanions 17 may be appropriate for the external auditor
o provide such services o the Company for a variety of
reasons inclading cos: effecaiveness, depth of knowledge
and the ongoing relanhonship berween the 3oard and
‘he external audurzor All non-audit fees are approved by
the Committee in advance. Where non-audi: fee levels
are considered significan:, the Commitiee considers the
appropniazeness of the independence safeguards putin
slace by the auditor

The wo1al fees paid 0 ricewarerhouseCoopers .2
dunng ‘he period, net of VAT, rotalled £402,000

(20270 F367.000) of which £44,600 {2027 £57,000) was
concerning non-audit services for the review of the half
vearly repor: and £62,000 {£Eml for non-audi: services
concerning a plannad 3ond ssue which was posponed.

The audizor was =selected for the nan-audr services
relaning o the posiponed 3ond ‘ssue following careful
consideration by the Commiee. The Commitiee beheved
“hat the abilizy for the auditor to audit the Company's
financial statements independern:ly would no: be
mmpacted by this work. [11s standard practice for a
Company'g external audiror zo underiake this ask.

Note 5.0 10 the consohdated financial siatements
details all services provided and (otal fees paid o
ricewaterhocuseCoopers LL2 for the financial year
ended 4. March 2022 The Commiziee consilders
PricewaterhouseCoopers _.2 :0 be independent of the
Caompany.

Re-appointment of the Auditor

Taking into account the performance and effecuveness of
the Audnior and the confirmanon of “hewr independence,
che Commiitee has recommended o the 3oard that a
resolunion 10 re-appoin: “ricewaterhouseCoopers L2 as
the Company's audiror be pat 7o the shareholders at ~he
forhcoming AGM.

Caroline Gulliver

Chairman, Audy and Vanagemen: -ngagemen:
Commiee

29 june 20622
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Report of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Nominanon and Remuneraton Commitee presents ihe
Report for the vear ended 31 March 2022,

Composition and role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

‘The Nominauon and Remuneration Commitiee comprises
Zerer 3axter, as Chairman, and the entre 3ocard, all of
whom are Non-sxecitive Jirecors. Terms of Reference
have been estallished by the 3card and are available on
he Company's website.

The Nominaton and Remuneration Commitees's pningipal
dunes are as follows

Nomination

e o review the siructure, size and composimion of the
3nard, including 1ws skills, knowledge, expenence and
diversity, inclading gender and ethnicity:

e o consider The succession planning of Jirectors,
raking ino account the challenges and opporamniles
facing the Company and “he skills and experise
needed on the Beard in the Rinure,

e 0 be responsitle for wenufying and norunaing
candidares to fill 3oard vacancies as and when
‘hey anse:

e 0 review anmaally the iime required from
Non-Ixecuiive Direciors;

e oreview the resulis of the 3oard performance
evaluation as 1 relates 10 3oard composinon and
success1on planning:

e -oreview annually potennal conflics of inzeres:s of
directors as disclosed "o the Company and develop
appropnate proceszes for managing such confhems: and

e orecerve and consider updates from the nvesimen:
AQVISOr 011 1I8 OWN $CCeSS10N Blanning acivinies,

Remuneraticn

e o desermune and agree with the doard, a formal
and rransparen: procadure for developing policy
on the remuneraton of the Company's Chairn Audn:
and “anagemen: mngagemen: Commiee chalr
and Non-sxecinive JIreciorns.

e o rake o accoun: all factors when considernng
‘he Femunerazion 2olicy which 17 deems necessary,
nchuding relevant legal and regulatory requiremens.
“he provisions and recommendanons of -he 2°C Cade
of Comporate Governance and associated guidance:

e o review “he ongoing appropriaieness and relavance
of “he Femuneration ~olicy:

e o obzain rehiable up-to-date mformaion abous
remunearaion m other companies of comparabls
scale and complexity and markea: pracice generally:

e o beresponzikle for estabhshing the selecion
crizena, selecing. appoininng and sering “he terms
of reference for any remunerasion conzubanis who
advige "he Commi—ee, and

& 0 ensare that contractual ierms on termination, and
any paymen:s made. are fair to “he individaal. and the
Company, that faillure 1s no: rewarded and :hat the
duaty to mingate loss 1s fully recognised

Activities during the year

The Commiiee mee:s ar leas: once per vear. Juring the
year, the Commitea has:

e considered the 3oard's remuneration in view of the
responsibilicies and tume commiimen:s for overseeiny
she affairs of the Company, in hght of the Arucles of
Assoclanon ag well ag the level of dwvidend paid o
shareholders dunng the year;
reviewed the Direcror's skill manx,
considerad the 3vard’s current succession plan, and
agreed That 1t would be pridens for the 3oard to
phasge the recruizmen: of addimonal Dreciors going
forward 10 allow progressive rotaon of directors and
facthizaze effective succession plannming;

¢ appointed a Jub-Commatiee o be responsible far
conduenng the recrarmens process o dencify a new
candidate for appoimiment <o the Soard:

s  engaged arecruiimen: agency 1o assist with the
search for a candidare:

o reviewed the resul's of *he 3oard’s 20272 performance
evaluanon process, "he details of which can be found
on page 70 and

e satisfied 17self that each Non-mxecuave director
serving at the end of the year remams independen:t
and continues ‘o have sufficien: ime 1o dhscharge
chew responsibihines o the Company

The Campany 15 supporiave of the new a1sting Rudes
Leing issued by the Mnancial Condae: Authony

on diversiry and inclusion on company koards. The
Caommitee i considerning a range of candrdaes from
diverse backgrounds The Company's diversizy policy can
be found on page 69,

The Directors’ fees were considered by “he Commiies
N “ebraary 2072 Please see ~he Direciors’ Remuanarasiaon
Repor on pages 72 10 76 for detalls on Director
remnuneraion

Peter Baxter

Charrman, Nominaion and 2ermuneration Commiiiee

29 fane 2004



Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The "CA Lisuing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules require listed companies (o disclose
how they have applied the principles and comphed

with the provisions of the corporaze governance code

ro which the 1ssuer 1s subjec: The provisions of the UX
Corporare Governance Code ("U% Code™. asissucd by the
FRC 1 faly 2028, are applhicable 10 the year under review
and can be viewed a: www frc org.ak.

‘The Board has considered -he principles and
recommeandartions of the AC Code of Corporate
Governance {"A.C Code”) as 1ssued by the AICn Jebruary
2019. The AC Code addresses all the prinoiples set out 1in
the UK Code, as well as setting ous additional principles
and recommendanons on 1ssues that are of specific
relevance 10 the Company ag an Inves:mearnt Company.
The YRC has confirmed that A'C member companies
who repor: agains: the A'C Code will be meeting ther
abligations 1n relatnon (o the LXK Code and the associated
disclosure requurements of the "CA. The A'C Code can ke
viewed aT www.theaic.co.uk.

The 3oard considers tha: reporting agams: the prninciples
and recommendatons of the A.C Code provides
shareholders with full details abour the Company's
corporate governance complance.

Statement of Compliance

=xeepi as sat our below, the Company has complied
with the provisions of the AC Code shroughou: the year
ended 37 ¥arch 2022

Provision 23: Jirectors are not appoimnced for a speacified
term, as all irectors are non-execuive and the 3oard
helleves that a Direcior's performance and their
conunded contribution o the running of the Company
15 of greater importance and relevance to Shareholders
‘han the leng:h of 1ime for which they have served as a
Jracior of the Company. mach recror 1s subkjec: 1o the
elecion and re-elecion provisions set ourin the Aricles
which provide ~hat a Director appomnted during the year
15 required to renre and seek electuon by Shareholders
at the nex: Annaal General Veenng following their
appomntment Theraafier the hrecrorg inzend o offer
-hemselves for re-election annuaallty and will aim “o not be
on the 3oard for more than nine years

The LX Code tneludes provisions relanng o

e herole of the chief execunve, and

e execunve directors remunearanon

The 3oard considers that these provisions are not relevan:
to the pogition of the Company, being an ex:ernally
managed investmen: comparny. .0 particular all of the
Company's day-to-day management and adminisiranve
functions are outsourced to third parues. As a resuls,

~he Company has no execunve Directars, employees

or mternal operasions. The Company has therefore nos
repored furher in respec: of these provisions.

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the 3oard

18 responsible for the effecuve stewardship of the
Company's affairs, including corporate strategy.
corporate governance, risk assessment and overall
invesimen: policy. The Directors have overall
responsibility for the review of investmen: acuvity and
performance, and the supervision of the investmen:
Adviser which 15 responsible for the day-io-day asse:
managemen: of the Company's porfoho.
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The 3oard consists of five non-execuiive Direciors 1
seeks 1o ensure that 1t has an appropriate balance of
skills and expernence, and considers thar. collecavely, 1o
has substanaal recent and relevant experience of pukhc
company management, the LK real estate sector social
housing and mvesiment companias All the hreciors are
ndependent of -he nves'men: Adwviser and the A7V

The 3oard has adogred a schedule of maters reserved
for decision by the 3oard, inclading inzer aha.
derermning the Company's invesimen: objecave and
policy, and geanng and dividend pohcies. This schedule
of matzers reserved for the Board 1s available on the
Company s website

The Direciors ensure tha: nsks are effecavely managead
‘hrough robust policies and procedures, supporaed by
the nght values and calture. The 3oard's pnimary focus
15 the sustamable long-term success of the Group o
deliver value for shareholders, :aking into account other
srakeholders.

The deard 15 responsibkle for invesimen: decisions, other
shan o the exten: delegated o the AWM and/or the
nvestment Adviger, and the appolntment, Supervision
and monuonng of the Company's service providers,
including amongs: others. he AV and the nvesimen:
Adinger The Board g rezponsible for the menm and
annual financial szazemenss of the Company and, in
conancion with the ALV algo approves the penodic
caleuianion of the Net Asser Value.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Chauman. Vachael Wrobel, was independent of

the ‘nvesimen: Adviser at the ume of hig appoimtmen:
and s deemed by his fellow Direciors 1o contunue to be
independen: in character and jadgemen: and free of
any confiiciing relationships. =e leads the 3oard and

18 responsibie for 178 overall effectiveness in direciing
he Company. 'n haison with the Company Secretary, he
ensures *hat the Direciors recelve accurase, amely and
clear informanon. Mr Wrobel considers himself 1o have
sufficienr iime to commyi: 1o the Group's affairs. =& has no
significan: commitments other than those disclosed in
his biography on page 57. The role and responsibilities of
she Chairman are clearly defined and ser ousin wriing. a
copy of which 12 available on “he Company's website

Perer 3ax:er1s the Senior ndependant Direcior of

the Company. e provides a sounding board for

che Charrman and serves as anintermediary for the
other Directors and shareholders. Se also provides a
channet for any shareholder concerns regarding the
Chamminan and takes the lead i the annual evaluation
of the Chairman by the other Jirecrors. The role and
responsibilinies of the Senior independent Director are
clearly defined and se7 our in wriing, a copy of which1s
avallable on the Company's website,

The 3oard has no set policy for the leng:h of ~enure of
reciers although 7 keeps in mind the recommendations
of the A °C Code dunng succession planning. 718 the
Board’s policy for all Jirecors 1o stand for re-elegnon
anndally. Recommendanons for eleciion/re-electhion of
rectors are made on an indwvidual basig following
NgoTOUS review. Jrectors are appointed under leters of
appointment. coples of which are avallable for inspecion
a: The regugtered office of -he Company and ar the AG .

Board Operation and Culture

The 3oard mee:s formally at ledas: quarserly, bus algo
meeTs on an ad hoc basis for the purpose of considenng
potenial ransacnions and assogated due diligence

The 3oard will mee: 10 consider and, if appropnate.
approve the acquisiion of properies recommended

Lry the ‘nvesiment Adviser. The nvesimen: Adviser
prepares an nves mern: roposal faper {7227 respect
of the proposed acquisimans which includes details

of the rransaciion and due diligence repors. Lpon
review of the .22 the 3oard conremplaies the siracture
of “he rransacion. any nsks atachead 0 the proposed
rransacrion and how these would be mingated/managed.
and the impac: of *he Transaction on the value of the
Group's property por-foho, following adnce from

che valuers,

or “he purpose of monvonng “he por-foho, the 3oard
recalves pertadic reports from the A -7/ and the
nvesimen: Adwnser. detalling the performance of the
Company The oard delegares ceram responsitalines
and funciions 1o the Audis and Wanagemen™ =ngagemean:
Commuizee which has wrien “erms of reference

To assist the 3vard in the day-:o-day operauons of the
Company, arrangements have been parin place ‘o
delegate awhorry for performing ceriain operaiions
the A7, the nvesimen: Adviser and other thaird-party
service providers, such as the Admimisirazor and the
Company Secre:ary.

The Chairman demons:rates objectaive judgemerrs,
promotes a cuiwure of openness and debaze, and
facilitaies effecive contmbuuons by all ireciors The
irectors are required 1o act with integn+y, lead by
example and promote thig culture within the Company.

The Board seeks o ensure the alignmen: of the
Company's purpose, values and strategy with the culture
of openness, debate and 1inegrity through ongoing
dialogue, and engagemen: with the ‘nves'men: Adwviser
and the Company’s other service providers. The 3oard
and the ‘nves'men: Adviser operaze In a supporive,
co-operatve and open environment.

The 3oard schedules yearly meeungs with the board of
the nvesiment Adviser, one of the purposes of which 1
0 receive an insight mie the culiure of the nvesiment
Adviser

The culwure of the 3oard 15 considered as par: of

the annual performance evaluation process which

15 underaken by each Jrector The culure of the
Company's service providers s also considered by the
Audn and Yanagemen: sngagemen: Commisiee during
“he anmnual revievr of their performance and while
considenny their coniinumg appointmen:,

The Company manmains Jdireciors and Officers halalizy
msurance on behalf of the Mirsciors ar the expense of the
Company. The 3oard has agreed arrangemens whereby
Jrectors may take independsans professional advice

in the farherance of their duties. The Company has

alsc indemnified the Directors in accordance with the
provisiong of the Arcles of Associanion.

Independence of Directors

The independence of all Direcrors 1s reviewed as par: of
“he annual assegsmen: of the 3opard.

The 3oard has derermined tha: each Jirecior remainsg
mndependent in characier and yadgemen: and 1s free of
any relanonships or circumerances ‘has threatsn cheir
mdependence of the Company or 78 nvesmen- Adviser,
i paricalar none of the Jirecrors have ever been
execyrves of the Company or the ‘nvesimean: Adviser,
have had a mazenal direct orindirect relanonship

v71th the Company or 118 stakeholders. have received
disproporionate fees have clase family relanonstops
with gakeholders or represen: significant shareholders



Corporate Governance Statement continued

Board Meetings

A formal agenda 1s approved by the Charrman and
circatated by the Company Secratary in advance of
each meeting 1o the non-executve Directors and other
atendees A typical agenda mmcludes: an analysis of
porfollo performance and exposare: an update on

che invesimen: pipeling; the Company's financial
perfonmance, dpdates oninves:or relatons; statntory and
requlaory comphance: and any ¢orporate governance
maters Relevan: papers on theitems inclided on the
agenda are circulated in good ame ¢ the members of
the 3oard. i advance of the meeung.

The nvestmen: Advigser atiends ~he 3oard meelings
together with represenzatives from the A7M and
Company Secretary. Representauves of the Company's
other adwisers are also invited <0 aztend Board meesings
from ime to me.

The number of Board, Audiz and Managemen:
zngagemen: Commtttes and Nomination and
Remuneradion Commitee meenngs held durng the year
ended $! March 2022 along with the azendance of the
Directors 1s set out below:

Audit and
Management Nowhation and
Cuarrerly Board Engagement Remuneration
. _ ~ Ml“rllﬂqi o 7(‘0111!1]'1[{(’(’ Commllee
Mumber Mumber Numbet
entitled Number entitled Number emuledto  Number
. wattend  atended  toancnd  anended attend  attended
Michae!
Wraobe! 4 4 3 3 1 1
A.asalr
Moss 4 4 3 3 1 1
Alson
tladden 4 4 3 3 1 1
Caroine
Galiver 4 9 3 3 1 1
Peer
Baxier 4 4 3 3 1 1

The 3oard 1s scheduled "o mee: on a quarterly basis.
naddiaon 1o these meeungs the 3oard also me? on

3 ccrasions to approve the NAY and dividend declaranions
and on a further & occaswons on an ad hoc basis

Committee

The Company operaes through the 3oard and 118 two
3oard commiitees namely the Audis and Vanagemen:
sngagemen: Commiites and the Nominaton and
Remuneranon Commitee the "Commiiiees’). The 3oard
evaluates the membershup of the Commriees on an
annual basis.

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Audit and Management =ngagemen: Commiitee
compnses of all Jirectors. Carolineg Gulliver, the Chair
of the Audit and Managemen: —ngagemen: Committee,
iz a Charrered Accountant and 1s considered ‘o have
recen: and relevan: financial expenience. The Audit
and Managemen: angagemen: Cormimidiee as a whole
has competence relevan: 1o the real estate iInvesiment
compary secior

The Chairman 1s a member of the Audit and Management
Engagemen: Commisee bur does not chair it His
memberstip of the Audr and Vanagemen: Sngagemen:
Commitee is considered appropriate given the small

g17ze of the 3pard and the Charrman's knowledge of

the financial services industry. A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audiz and Vanagemen: sngagemen:
Commiitee ¢ avatlable from the Secretary and on the
Company's websize.

The Commitee mees a’ least 'wice a year and reviews
the scope and resul:s of the external audht, t°s cost
effectiveness and the independence and objecuviy

of the external audizors, inclading the provision of
non-audit services.
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The Commizee also reviews the terms of the AIZV
agreement and “he ‘nvesimen: Adviser Agreemens, and
examines ‘he effectiveness of the Company's inzernal
conrol systems and the performance of the A7V,
‘nvestment Adviser, Adminisirator, Jepositary. Company
Secretary and Registrar, and ather service providers.

The Report of the Audir and Managemen: “ngagemen:
Commiiies 15 S& 01U On pages 62 10 65,

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nominauon and Remuneration Commiree s
comprised of all Jirectors and the Chairman 1s the Senior
Iindependen: irector, Peter 3axter. The Nominaion

and Remuneraton Commiiee mee’s as reqgaired for the
purpose of considering recrurrmen: 1o and removals from
she Board; levels of remuneranon pawl "o the Direciors;
and revievs of the Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Remuneranon Policy. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Remruneration and Nominanon Commiiiee 1s
avallable on the Company s website and 15 avallable by
reqpaes:t from the Company Secrezary.

Diversity

The 3oard recognises the benefits of diversity and has
adop:ed a diversity pohcy All 3oard appoimnimen:s will be
made on mean: and agamst an objective eniena and have
regard to dwversity in relation o factors such as gender.
ethniciy, skills, background and expenence The 3oard
does not consider 17 70 be 1n the interests of the Company
and 11s shareholders 10 set prescrnpiive diversiiy cnitena
or targets, buat will continae 1o monnor drverstiry and rake
such sieps as it considers approprate to maintain 1:s
posrion as a mertocratc and diverse business. See also
the Strategic Report on page $h.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

Induction of New Directors

A procedure for the induction of new DJireciors has been
established, including the provision of an induacaon pack
conzaining relevans informanon abou: the Company,

1's procesges and procedures and meelngs with “he
Chairman and relevan: persons ar the nvesimean: Adviser.

Performance Evaluation

lor the year under review, the 3oard under:ook

an internal performance evaluation by way of
questonnaires degigned 10 agsess the sirengths and
independence of the Joard and he Charrman. indwiduaal
direcrors and the performance of the 3o0ard’s Commitees.
The areas considered are:

e The frequency and effecaveness of 3oard and
CommiTes meariygs:

e -he size. composimon and relevan. expenence of the
Board;

e che independence and performance of the ireciors
and he 3oard; and

e he rraming requiremenss of each Jiracor

The evaluauon processis conducred by the Chairman
Jeter 3axter as the Senior independen: Jirecror,

leads the appraisal of the Chatrman. The 3oard 15
cognisan: of the advantages of an exrernal performance
evalianon and will keep “his oprion ander regualar
review. n the prior year the 3oard undericok an
externally facilitated performance evaluanon. The
3oard noted the recommendations from he external
performance evaluaiion, one of which was 1o hald

an addmonal Audiz and Vanagemen: -ngagemen:
Commizaea in the year with -he purpose of focusimg on
managemen: engagemen: maers. An addinional Audis
and Managemen: Ingagemen: Commitsee vas held in
june 2022 and a further addinional meening will be held
on an annual basis gomng forward.

The Company sesks (0 ensure “ha: the 3oard has a
palance of skills and sxpenence “hat are complemeantary
and enatle ‘he 3oard "o ocperate efficiently,

All of the Jiregctors have assessed their other ongoing
commuiments and are satisfied that they can commis the
Tne necessary To exscdte tThat danes to the Comparny

Hosignficanst iegues were identfied durning the
avaluation process. The Nominaon and emuneraion
Cormrmse conzders that all of “he carren” ireciors
make an effeciive coninbunion and have the reguisise
skills and expenence o conunds <o provide able
lzadershup and direciion for the Company. - was
aggread thas all Direcrors should be recommended for
sleclion/re-electon at ~he forhocoming AGH/

The 3nard conclitded that each hrecior brings
consideralile experige and experience 0 the 3oard and
the 3oard operates with good independen: *houghs: and
challenge.

All Board members have assessed their ongoing
commuimen:s and are satsfied tha: they can commi: the
ime necessary o execate thewr dunes o the Company.

Contflicts of Interest

All Directors have a stataiory responsibiley o avoid
situanons where a conflicr of interest ex1s1s, or may ex1s:,
hetween the Company and an entry that the Director 1s
erther directly or indirec:ly involved wrrh. The 3oard has
procedures in place 1o identify porental conflic:s and
resolve any that should anse. n the case of 3 conflic

of interest the nature and exien: of the conflict are
asgessed agamns: the exisung intermal control strachure,
and the resulis of this assessment and actions taken

to resgolve “he conflict are docurmented i the manates
of the relevan: 3oard meeung No conflicts of interegt
arose dunng he penod.

Health and Safety

=ealh and safery 15 of prime imporance o the

Company and 1s considered equally with all other
Busimess managemen’ ac:viiies to engure proteciion of
stakeholders, be they tenan's, adwvisers. suppliers. visirors
or others, The 3oard regularly discusses heal'h and safety
Issues with ~he ‘nvesimern: Adviser.

The Company s commited 10 fosiering the highes:
standardsin health and safery as - believes that all
ansafe acts and unsafe condinions are preventabte, All
outr srakeholders have a responsibiliy 10 suppor: the aim
of enguring a gecare and gafe environmens, and all our
siakeholders are tasked with responsitilizy for achieving
“his commimen:

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Dmrectors are responsible for -he systems of internal
control relating to Tne Company and 115 subsidianes,
and the rehabiliy of "he financial reporang process and
for reviewng “heyr effechiveness, ensunng tha: the nsk
managemer: and control processes are embedded i
day--o-day operations

An ongomg formal process. in accordance with the 220
Guidance on fisk Management. .ntermnal Contral and
Relared Tinancial and 3usiness Reporing. has been
estabhshed for idenafying. evaluaing and managing
“he pnincipal and other nisks mos: hkely o impact

“he Group. This process, which g regilarly reviewesd.,
togerher vth key procedures estaklished with a view o
providing effecive financial control, has been 1in place
throughon the year ended 40 “arch 2027 and up 6 the
date of “hus Repar



Corporate Governance Statement continuea

The Audiz and Managemeni mngagerment Commuittee has
1N place a formal procedure for performing an ongong
robuist assesgmens of the Group's risk managemen: and
mnrernal control systems. A nsk matrk has been estabhished
againg: which the risks identified and the controls in place
0 miigate those nsgks can be moniored. The nisks are
assessed on the hasis of the hkelhhood of them happening,
“he impac: on the business if they were to occur and the
effectiveness of the contrals in place to migate them. ‘n
arnving a- 1:s judgement of what nsks *he Company faces,
the Board has considered the Company's operations in the
light of the following faciors:

e ‘he nawre and exten: of nisks which it regards as
acceptable for the Company 10 bear within itz overall
business objective:

e :he threat of such nsks becoming reality:

o ‘he Company's ability o0 reduce the imcidence and
mpac: of risk on s performance: and

e 'he costtothe Company and benefirs related o the
Company and *hird parties operating the relevan:
contrals.

The nsk mamnx 1s reviewed twice a year by the
Commizzee and at other aimes as necessary. The principal
rizks facing the Company are set 0ur o1 pages 38 o 42 of
this Annual Repors, together with “he processes apphed
<0 mitigaze those nsks.

On an annaal basis, the Commitree reviews *he conrol
reporss of 138 key service providers and the Auditor notes
any deficiencies 1n mnternal controls and processes thart
have been idenafied durtng the course of the audi

The Audrr and Managemen: sngagemen: Commiiee 1§
munidful of these key nsks as well as considenng evolving
and emerging rigks such as the 'mpac: of the Ukrame-
2uss1a confher, long-term climate change and cyber
secursy which have the potenual to affect the Group.

The Commitee ensures tha: the Board 1akes appropriate
advice and debates the 1ssues facing the Group

At each 3oard meeung. the 3oard recewves repors from
the nvesimens: Adviger, the Adminisirator. the A7V and
‘he 3roker in respect of compliance activiies, Company
financial performance and financial posiiion.

The comrols, which are regularly reviewed. aim 1o
ensure thar the assets of the Company are safeguarded.
proper accodning records are mamamed, and the
finanaal informaton uged within the business and for
publicanon s rehable The nisk managemen: process
and Company sysiems of internal controls are designed
o manace rather than ehminate the nigk of fallure o
achieve the Company's objectives and can only provide
reasonable. bur nor absoluse assurance agans: marenal
miss-atemen: or loss,

The Dwreciors have carried our a review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s rsk managemen: and intermal conzrol
sysrems as they have operated over the penod and up o
-he date of approval of he Annual 2eport. 2uring the course
of the review. the 3oard has notidenfied nor been adwvised
of any falings or weaknesses which 11 has determined o be
significan:.

The Jirectors have considered the appropnateness of
establishing an internal audr: funcuon and, having regard
10 the structare and nature of the Company’s acivities,
has concluded that the funchon 1s unnecessary. The Audit
and Vanagemen: fngagemean: Commiree will review

on an annuJal asis the need for this funcnon and make
appropnate recommendanons o the 3oard.

Financial Reporting
The 3oard operares the following key controls in relation
o0 financial reporang:
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e the 3oard and Commitiee mermbers review quarerly
managemeanst repor:s and supporting documen:s tha:
are provided by the nvesimen: Adwviser,

e The 3oard has procedures in place for the approval
of expenses and paymen:s o third parties, and

e ‘he Commitiee members and 3oard review all
financial mformasion and announcernenis pror
o publicanion.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsilaihity as
integral o how 12 conducets mg busingss. .t 18 commited 1o
being a good corporate criizen and behaving responsibly
with a demongrated ransparency of approach.

To achieve thug goal, the Company applies the following
principles 1o i operations:

Business conduct

The Company's invesimen: decisions are made on the
hasis of generaning shareholder value and ensunng

-he long-term success of the business. The selection of
suppliers will ba made imdependently by the Company’s
Oirectors apon advice from the nvestment Adviser

and in the best interes:s of the Company. The 3oard

will ensure that appropnate controls are 1n place 7o
guaran:ee independence from the supply chain.

All castomers and suppliers will e treated faurly and
responsbly.
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The Company will no: provide inanoal suppor: To
political paraes or polinicians.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

The Company 1s resolutely opposed to bribery and
corraprion The Company will not use any illegal or
mproper means o further vs business interests, nor will
it accep: any forms of indicemen:s intended 10 influence
I8 Invesimen: decisions.

Governance

The Company will prozect the inseres:s of 1ts shareholders
and other stakehclders through comphance with relevan:
legal and regulatory envirenmenss. and through effeciive
managemen: of business nsk and opporaniny.

The 3oard wall ensure that s membkers are ruly
independen:, are compeent and have the resourges and
suppor: reguired o perform sheir dunes optimally. and
“hat the 3oard's decisions are made in “he best interess
of the Company and 178 shareholders. The performance
of the 3eard wilt be regularly reviewed. and Jireciors wall
retire as and when deemed appropriate by “he 3eard in
accordance with bes: pracice

Socially responsible investment

The Scard aims o be a somally regponsible invwestor
and beheves That 11 1s imporan: (o mves: in specialis:
social housing properies 1n a responsible manner in
respect of environmental, ethical and social 1ssues. The
anvesiment Advizser's evaluanon procedure and analysis
of -he proper:es voirhun the porifolio includes research
and appraisal of such maters, and ‘akes "o accoun:
environmen:al and socal policies and other businass
LS5 UESs

Surther details on the social impac: of the Companys
mves men<s are included in the Social ‘mpac: repor:
from the The Gond Scenomy, a summary of which can be
found on page 49

The Company recognises that environmensal protection.
rezource efficiency and sustainabile developmens: are
neceggary "o ensure ‘hat environmensal damage s
himited and furthermore sha: where relevan:, postive
actions should be zaken o improve the existing
environmen: for farure generasions

Transparency

The Company aims "o e ‘ranzparens, and o ensure
“hat iz communicases vith tz shareholders and
other szakeholders in @ manner tha: enhances ther
danderstanding of 178 Inisiness

The Company mainiaing accouning docimeanianian
‘ha* elearly idensifies “he rue natare of all business
Tansacnons assers and hakihines in hne wth “he
reievan: requlatory. accounting, and legal requiremen-a.
Norecord or entry 1s knownngly false distored.
imecomplee or guppressed.

All reporiing 15 matenally accurate and complete and

n comphance in all matenal respects with stated
accouning policies and procedures. The Company does
not knowingly miss:ate or misrepresen: managemen:
mformaton for any reason, and the Company expec:s the
same 10 apply 0 18 supplers.

The Company may be requred to make statements

or provide repors to regulatory bodles, governmen:
agencies or ather government deparimen:s, as well as 1o
+he media The Company ensures tha: such siatemen:s or
repor:s are correct, amely. and not misleading. and that
“hey are delivered through the appropnate channels.

The Company provides through 1ts website, 1is

Annual Reporr and other szatements with appropnase
informasoen o enable shareholders and srakeholders o
assess the performance of 11s business. & comphies with
‘he appheable laws and regulations concermning the
disclosure of informanon relanng o the Company.

Communities

The Company aims 1o ensure that 1s properies which
are associared with the provision of heatth services
provide significan: value-adding facihinies in the
cormmanites where 10 Inves:s.

Relations with Stakeholders

Deralls regarding the Company's engagemen: with 1:s
stakeholders are get ou wathin the Sirateqic 2eport on
pages 2510 33

Approval
The Corporate Governance Statemen: has been approved
by the 3oard.

3y order of the 3card

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secretary

29 June 2027



Director’s Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Policy are sufficien: to atrract and rezain sunably quahfied and
expenenced indivduals.

Introduction

The Remuneration 2olicy of the Company 1s set by

the Joard A resolunon 10 approve the Remuneraion

2olicy was passed at the AGMV of the Company held

on S Seprember 2019, The pohcy provisions set oar

bhelow wall apply unu! the Remunerasion Policy 1s put to

shareholders for approval at the forhcoming AGM of the

Company on "5 September 2622, There are no changes

proposed o the Remuneration Policy. The Remunerauon

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis and
may also e remewed when new non-execuuve Nreciors
are recrutted o the 3oard. The Dwrectors of the Company
are enutled <o such rates of annual fees as the Board

a- 1zs discrenon shall from ume 10 ume determing The
Chairman of the Board and the Audi: and Managemen:
“ngagement Committee Chaurman are entitled (o receive
fees at a higher level than those of the other Directors,
reflacting their addrmoeonal dutes and responsibihnes.

Zolicy 1s binding and sets the paramesers within which o
Directors’ remuneraion may be se: Annaal fees are pro-razed where a change takes place g
during he financial year. g

POIICV n addriion o the annual fee, under the Company's E
The Remuneration Zolicy of the Company is 10 pay 18 Articlas of Association, if any Direcior 18 requiessed 1o :
non-execuive Jirectors fees that are appropnate for perform any special duties or services outgide their g
the role and the amouns of ime spent in discharging ordinary duries as a Director. they may be paid such g
their dunes. that are broadly in hine with those of reasonable addriional remuneration as the 3oard may »
comparable real estaze iInvesimen: companies and tha: from nme To me desermine E
m

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Raw- at 1 April 2022 Purpose of Remuneraucn

Component Dﬁirr-tr:trcgrijrw . — o o

Annual fee Chairman F53.00C  Commitmen: as Chairman of a public
company

Annual fee Non-execiive Nreciors F34.000  Comrmitmen: as non-execunve hreciors of

a pubhc company”

Addimonal fee Chair of the Audir and Management £5.00C  Cor addimonal responsibihines and ume
~ngagemen: Commitee CommIimen:”

Addittonal fee  All Direciors Mscretionary  For extra or special services performed in
‘heir role as a Director?

xXpenses All Direcrors n/a  Rermbursemen: of expenses incurred in the
performance of dunaes as a Jirector

1 The Company s policy 1s for the Chairman ol the Buaid o be paid 4 higher fee than the other Directons to petlect the mote Onerous role

2 The Company s Articles of Association limit 1he aggregate fees payable 1o the Board of Directors w £250 Q60 pet annum

3 The Company s policy 15 tor the Chait of the Audit and Management Engagement Comimniites 10 be paid a highet lee than fthe othel hirectors to reflect the mure
onerous role

4 This 15 a provision uf the Company s Articles Additional lees would only be pard in excoptional crroumstances inelation to the pettormanse of exiza o special
serviees

5 Directors are enttled w claun expenses m respeat ol dutics underfaken 1n connecton wilh then role as a birector

The Compadany has noemployess Accorduigly, there are no differences in pahey an the remuneranoen ot Ihrectors and the iemuneration of employeas

No Directon s enhitled to receive any remunerdation which s pettormance relafed As a 1esult there are no performance conditons in relaten w any elemaents of the

Diteclors emuneianon 1o e XIStenae lo el out 1n this Remuneranon Pohicy

irectors and Qfficers habiliny insurance cover 1s As all Jreciors are non-execunve and there are no

marmm:ained by the Company on behalf of the Jireciors. employees, the Company does not operate any share
oplon or other long-term incentuve schemes and the

Jirectors are encitled o be paid all expenses properly Directors’ fees are no: sublec: 1o any performance critena.

incurred in attending 3oard or shareholder meeungs or Yo pension or other renremen: benefis schemes 4re

orherwise in or with a view 0 the performance of their operated by the Company for any of 1°¢ Direciors,

dunes.
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Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Service Contracts

No director has a service contrac: with the Company. The
Oirectors are appomted under letiers of appoimntmen-
Ther appoinimen: and any subsedaant lermnaion or
retiremens 1§ subject to the Arucles of Associanon, The
Directors’ letters of appoimimen: provide thas, upon the
rermination of a Jirectlor's appoinmeans, “hat Jirecior
mus: resign in writing and all records remamn the
property of the Company. The Jrecrors appoin ment
can be terminated in accordance with “he Articles of
Association and without compensation. There 15 no
nonce period spectfied in the Arncles of Associaton for
the removal of Jirectorg and all Directorsg are subject o
annual re-electon by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remuneranon package for any new Chairman or
non-execanve rec:or will be “he same as the prevailling
rates determned on the bases set out above, The 3oard
will not pay any ntroductory fee or ncenive to any
person to encourage them o become a drector, bas
may pay ‘he fees of search and recravtment specahsts

in connecton with the appotnimen: of any new
nan-exacuive Jirecior

Views of Shareholders
Ay views expreszed by shareholders on the fees being
saidd to Mrectors woulld e taken o consideration by

‘he 3oard when reviewnng levels of remine

AT10I1.

Remuneration Report

The doard presents s Teciorg RemiIneraTlon Repor

in respec: of the year ended 47 March 2022 The 3oard
has prepared this repor: in accordance with “he arge
and Vedium-Sired Companies and Groups (Accoun:s
and Reporel (Amendmens Regulanons 20058 An ordmary
rezolunion for the approval of the Jirsciors’ 2emunsrasion
Repar: will be pus -o shareholders a- the for-hcoming
AGN. of the Company.

The lav: requires the Company s audiior o audl cer-am
requrad disclosures. Where dizclosures have heen
addized. they are indicaed ag such The audizors opnion
sancluded in ~he audirors repor: on pages 86 -0 87

Annual Statement from the Chairman

cam pleased 1o present the Direciors wLmuneraion
Rapor: for the yvear ended 51 March 2022

Juring the vear under review, the 3oard has estabhished a
separate Nomination and emuneranon Committee with
responsibility for setung the Company s 2emuaneration
Policy and hreciorg fees.

The repor: from Nominauon and Rermuneration
Commizee can be found on page &,

The Directors are remunerated for their services az such
rate as the Jrectors shall from tme o ame determine
The 3oard has st three levels of fees: one for The
Chairman. one for other Mreciors. and an addiaonal

fee thatis paid 1o the Director who chairs he Audin

and Yanagemean: “ngagemean: Commitiee Teas are
reviewed annually in accordance with “he Remuneranon
Folicy The fee for any new Director appointed will be
desrminezd on the same lasis,

Jrectors fees for The year ended 37 March 2077 were

at alevel of £32,000 par annum for the Chairman

and £35.280 per annum for other non-exsclive
Oirectors. The Charrman of the Aud and Vanagement
=ngagemen: Committes received an addimonal fee of
FEOOC per annum. Junng the year, the Nominaion and
Remuaneration Committes agread o aplift the Chairman's
fee by 1.9% 0 £495,000 and “he Direciors base fee by 2.2%
0 FA1000 10 Better reflec the responsihilinies and ame
commuimen:s for overseeinyg the affairs of the Company
and o ahgn with those of -he Company's peer group.

There were no other payments for exira or special
services in the year ended 37 Varch 2607

fthe AGY held on b seprember 2079, shareholders
approved “he amendmen: 'o *he Company's Aracles of
Associanon which increassd the maximum aggregase
annual remuaneranon payable 1o Jireciors from FACO.C00

0 FASG.000.

The Jireciars Remuneranion 2olicy was approved
a7 the AGN held on g September 2079, There wnll be
no sigmfican: change in the way “he emuneraton
2ohey will be implemented in the course of the nex
financial 7ear.

The ireciors Jemuneranion 2olicy wnll nex: be pressn-=d
—o shareholders for approval o7 the Company’s 4G/ 0
Seprember 022




Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

The Irectors who served danng the year received the following emoluments:

Director
Virhael Wrohel (Chairrman?
Alasair Vioss

Ahson Zadden

Caroline Gulhver

Peter Baxter

-Tota_]_ L _

The amounts pawd 10 the Directors were for services as
non-executive Jirectors. Taxable benefize mcthaded in the
above takie are In respec: of the amoun:s reimbursed -0
Threctors as ravel and other expenses properly incurred
by ihem in the performance of their dusies There are no
variable elements in the remuneraton payalile o the
Jireciors.

Under the Company's Ariicles of Association, the otal
aggregate ramuneration and benefirsin kind of the
Mrectors of the Company is subject 1o a maximam of
£250,000 mn any financial year. Any change o “his waould
require shareholder approval.

Loss of Office (audited)

The Jirectors do not have service contrac's with the
Company bur are engaged under l=tiers of appoimnimen:
under which there 1s no entlement 7o compensanon for
loss of offitce Directors are subyjec: 1o annual re-elecnon
by shareholders.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

Civitas ' -+ L~ -

Year ended 31 Macch 2021

Year ended 31 March 2022

Taxable Taxable

Fees bs‘ne!i_l_s__ = _____Io_t::i _ i_ﬂs _ hPLIIt.F_ _ ‘Tt)rarlr
£52,080 - L£52,000 50,000 - FS0.000
£33,280 - E33280 £32,000 - £32.000
£33,280 - g - E32000
£38,280 - - E36000
E£33,280 - . - ﬁSZ.(}GU
£190.120 - - #782000

Company Performanee

The following graph com;;g,gge_si.gh_'_e pfe_gfnrmance for the
perned from 20 on "8 November 2016 to 1 March 2022
‘he total shareholder return of the Company's Ordinary
shares relauve "o the "TS= All-Share 'ndex and -I'5=
Jeal sstate ndex. Although ~he Company has no formal
benchmark, hege indices have been selected as the
TTSE All-Share represents all companes of a ssmilar
caprial size and the constiruents of the FT85 550 Reql
-srate ndex are UX-based real astate companies and are
‘herefore considered o represent the mos: appropnae
comparanve,

FTSE 350 Real Estate Index
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Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The able below seis ous, in respec: of the year ended
5 Warch 2027

a) rhe remuneration paid ‘o the Jrecrors; and

b

—

‘he distnbartions made ©o shareholders by way of
dividend.

Year ended Yeat enhded
31 March 2022 s1March 2021
s _ . £o00 £
DIreciors’ remMunerasion 190 187
Owdends paid 1o Ordinary
shareholders 34,093 33473

Directors’ Interests (audited)

There 15 no redqquiremen: under the Company's Aracies
of Assoclanon or the terms of their appoin mens for
Drectors o hold shares in the Company

Asar 3 March 2072 vhe Jrecrors ancluding their
connacied persons! had benchaal interesis m the
followwnng number of shares in “he Company

3t Maich 2022 31 March 2021

Qrdinary Ordmary

77777 } shares shates
ichael Wrobel o 120598 100598
Alastar Moss 11,766 LTS
Alison Sadden - -
Carohne Gulliver 58,832 58,832
Jeler 3axtar 82,065 47065

Theare have been no chandges 1o Nrec ors share interess
Lerween 37 Varch 2072 and the date of -his deport

“lone of the Mirecrors or any persons connacted
with "hem had a marenal incerest i the Companys
TTANSACTIONS, Arrangemeng or agreements durng
“he vear

Voting at AGM

The DMrectors’ Remuneration Zolicy was approved ar

“he AGY held on 5 Seprember 2079 and the Jireciorg
ermineraion epor: for the vear ended 37 March 2670
was approved at the AGM held on 22 Sep:ember 2022 The
voTes cast by proxy on these resclunons were:

Vole:s f;:r‘ Vulesid(:aim.s:l T

% of votes % of votes Votes Totat
Resolunon . __._Gast __ cast v_\'__u_!_\_held __ wores cast
To approve

the Jireclory’

Ramuaneration

Repor: 9997 0.0 A4 27 654,357
To approve

~he Directors’

Remuanerainnn

rolcy _ 9999 .00 - 320495128

1 vores for include diserenonary proxy voles granied o the Chattiman by
shareholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company is commised ‘o ongong sharaholder
dialoguie and takes an acuve Interes: 1n voOuUNg Guicomes.
Where “here are substanual vores agams: resolunons

i relaton "o Diregtors’ rendnearation, the Compansy will
seek The reasons for any such vorte and will detanl any
resal ing acnonsan “he NrecTors’ ARmanaration epors

Approval

The Nredtors 2erinerdrion Yenor was approved by che
Juard and signad on 1s behalf by

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

249 June 2023



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Jirectors 1o prepare financilal
statemnents for each hinancial year. Under tha: law the
Jirectors have prepared the Group financial stalements
in accordance with UK-adopted international acoouning
standards and the Company financial statements in
accordance with Unired Kingdom Generally Accepied
Accountng Jraciice dintzed Kingdom Accounting
Srandards, compnsing FRS 707 "Reduced nsclosure
“ramework”. and applicabla law’.

Under Company law, Jireciors mus: no: approve the
financial statements unless they are zaqsfied thas
they give a rae and fair vtewr of the staze of affairs of
the Group and Company and of the profiz or loss of
the Group for tha® penod. n prepanng the financal
gratements. the Directors are reqinred to:

e select saizable accouniing policies and then apply
‘hem consigiently:

o state whether apphicable U -adopted inernational
accounting s:andards have been followed for the
Group financial sratements and Unred <ingdom
Accounting Standards, compnsing -5 01 have been
followed for the Company financial statements, subjecs
‘o any matenal deparmuras chisclosed and explained in
the financial sTatements,

e make judgements and accounung esiimates that are
reasonalle and pradent and

L] prepars “he fmanclal srarements on the gmng COncern
asis unless it 15 mappropnare o presume tha: the
Group and Company will connnue in business.

The Mreciors are responsible for safeguarding the
assars of the Group and Company and hence for raking
reazonable gteps for the prevennon and detecion of
fraud and other irregulariies.

The nreciors are alzo responsible for keeping adequate
accoudnting records that are sufficient o show and
explam the Group's and Company's rransacions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy ar any ime “he
financial posmon of the Group and Company and
enable Them 1o ensure thar the finanoal statements and
the Drectors Remuneranon Repor comply with the
Companies ACT 2L06.

The Mrectors are respongzle for “he mamtenance arud
ncegnty of the Company's finanaal statements pubhished
on the alumate parent Company's webasatle, Ledgislation

in the Lned <imgdom governing the praparanion and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
lagislation in other junsdicuons.

Directors' Confirmations

The Nrecrors consider that The Annual Repor and
acctrdalls, ket das 4 whole = fair, balanced and
underszandable and provides the informanon necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's and Companys
posiuon and performance, business maodel and strategy.

rach of “he hrectors, whose names and funceiions are
ligred mn the Beard of Directors confirm thas, o the bhes: of
‘hewr knowledge:

s ‘he Group financial statements, which have been
prepared 1n accordance with L {-adop ed internanonal
accounnng standards, give a e and fatr view of the
asses, habilmes. financal posmon and profiz of the
Grour,

e “he Company finanaal stazements, which have
been prepared in accordance with Lnized Xmgdom
Accouning 3tandards compnsing “285 0 give a rue
and fair view of the asse's. abihnies and financial
positon of the Company. and

e “he Group Sirategle Repor: includes a fair review of the
developmen: and performanca of the business and the
posiioen of the Group and Company. ogether with a
descrnpion of the princpal nsks and uncertamsies shas
12 faces.

Approval
Thig Statemens of Directors’ Jesponsibihines was
approved by the 3vard and signed on us behalf by

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

29 Fune 20722
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Alternative Investment

Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alternanve nvesimen: ~und
Manager (the "&° "7 are 2ach domcilad in the United
{ngdom, the "CA “andbook rules reguire “hat, amondg
other things. the A makes avallakle the following
informartion o shareholders of the Company under the
AFMD (as implemented in the U and o nonfy shem of
any mawenal change wonformasion previodsly provided.

Thase disclosures can alse be found on the Company's
webs1te: crvizassoctalhousing com

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1)}a)b)¢{h))

The mnvestmen: siratedgy and objeciives of the Company.
-he rypes of assets 1 may mveas: 1 and “he mveasimerns
techmuhies 11 may employ, assoclated nsks and any
Invesimern” rasineions are laid out i the invesimen:
obecnves and policy and other sectiiong of the

Annaal Repor:

“orinformanon abous the circumsiances i which

the Company may dse leverage, the rypes of sources
permitied and the assoclated ngks and any regrenons
on the use of leverage and any collateral and asset
re-use arrangemenss, shareholders are direcied 0 “he
dizclosures conramed in The invesimen® objechives and
policy secion of these financial statemenis as well as
specific A7V ) related disclosures further belows,

Lnder the "Chs asang ules o which the Company s
subject it needs the prior approval of 128 shareholders -0
make a mazerial change "o s inves men: pollcy.

since “he Company is cloged-ended withou redempion
nghts. hquidiry nsk managemsn-is himited "o the
haidry required -0 meer the Company's obhganons in
relation to i's inancing arrangements. The AV unhisss
vanonis nsk assegsment methods o measure “hea ngk of
porfohio hgudiy <o mee: the Company s ecbliganons.
Thiz measuramen: enablaes the provision of managemern:
mformanon (0 the A7/ and the 3card of the Company <o
enable thege nsks o be monrored and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23()(c)

The Company i1 a pablic limized company hsted on the
_ondan Stock sxchange. The Company 1# incorporaad
uander the lavrs of =ngland and “Wales The cons-iananal
ducumen: of the Comparyy s 173 araales of association
which may anly be amended by way of a speaal
resolanion of 17s shareholders. Lpon “he purchase

of shares, an invesior becomes a sharcholder of the
Company A shareholders halaliry -0 the Company »wil
e limtierd "o -he amoun” uncalled on <heir shares

As the Company 1s Incorporated under the laws

of tngland and Wales. 17 may no* be possible fora
shareholder Incated ouiside that junsdicuon o effect
service of process within the local jarisdiciion it which
~ha: shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a subsranial portion of the assets of the Company
mavy be locared outside a local junsdicuion in which
a shareholder resides and. as a resuls, - may not be
possible to satisfy a judgement agains: the Company
in such logal jarisdiction or to enforce a judgement
olramed in the local junsdiciion’s Cours agains:

-he Company

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1){d),

{e) and (f)) '
The A7V G0 Caprital imiedt s a privare hmued

company with i:s reqistered office at 5 More _ondon

tverside, _ondon 527200 G710 Capital amred s

authorised and regulared by the Minancat Conduac:t

Aathorey (RN 65489528 - has been appainted by the

Company o manadge the Company uander an A 4

Agreemen with effec: from A4 Augus: 2077

The A2V g responsible for porfolic managemens:

and risk managemen: and mononng of the asses of

the Company and has discrenonary awhonty aver The

acgaisiiion and disposimon of the Company's asses, |
with power "o qive guarantees and underake other
sransaciions on behalf of the Company subect o the
srovisions of The A7V Agreement. The APV s also
rezponsikie for ensuring compliance with he A7V 0D

The A7V e danies under ~he A7V Agreemens are owed
0 the Company as a whole ra~her than direcily so “he
shareholders, whether indiidaally or in groups. The
3aard of the Compiany 1s responsible under the A7
fugreemen for represening the Campany in s dealings
with the :

noarder o comply with s regularory okligasons, the
i holds professional imdemnuzy insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
(dy and (f))

ndos Ctnancial amired che " 2epostary” has been
appoinied as the Jeposrary of the Company uander

3 Jep0=Elary Agreemen: i accordance wrh A
regurements. The deposiiiry 15 a company incornoritad
m -ngland registered number 582359730 whose
regigtered office 1g a- 54 "enchurch Street London
AV s arhonged o act az 4 Jeposiary by the YCA
5025231 The Jeposiary 1# responaible for safevesping

af -he Company's imvesimen:s including holdmeg i
cuasiody those mvesments which are reguured 1o be
heldin custody and venfying ownership and keeping
records of “he Company's oher invesmen-s, and for cash
mMonEorning




Alternative Investment

Fund Managers Directive continued

The Deposrary’s dunes under the Depositary Agreemen:
ara owed 10 the Company as a whole and not directly o
shareholders. whether individually or in groups.

The investmenss of the Company are not of a kind
reguired o be held mn custody by the Depostary

Independent Auditor (AIFMD 23(1){(d))

The independen: audror of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 was ?nicewatarhouseCoopers i...?
The audrror's dunes. which are se our on pages 86 and
87 are owed 0 the Company as a whole. They have a
staTaiory regponsilility (o report to the members of the
Company as a whole in relauon ¢ the ruth and faimess
of the Company s siate of affairs and profi orloss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23{1Kg))

The asgers of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions se: our i the Valaanon Policy. The
nvesimen: Commee which has been set up by the
ATV I regpec:t of the Company and 11's assets adds

a further level of oversigh: o “he valuallon process as
st out on 1n the Corporate Governance section of the
Annual Repors

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(i)}

The Company incurs coss in the form of deposrary fees,
cugiochan fees, bank fees and charges, marketing fees
audiors fees, lawyers fees, fund administration fees,
company secretanal fees and other fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1}{(j))

Mo praferential nights have been granted o any
existing zhareholder

The Company and the AW are commitied 0 ensunng
char all shareholders are reazed fairly and in accordance
with LX company law They have not and will nor enter
o any arrangemen: with one shareholder which

could resaliin any overall mazerial disadvantage o the
other shareholders

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company ((AIFMD 23(1)(1))
The Company 18 closed-ended and does not provide for

redempiion or repuarchase of the interests of ordinary
shareholders a7 heir requies.

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
{k}, 23(1)(m) and 23(1}{n))

The his;onie performance of the Company. 7o the exent
avallable. hag been disclosed o shareholders in the
Company s Annual and —alf Yearly 2epors, which will be
=en: 1o shareholders and are availlable from
hopd/ovizassocialhousirgg com/.

The lazes: NAV of the Company 15 published in the
lates: Annual or =alf Yearly eport or guarterly
NAV announcemen:.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(o))

The Company does no: have a pnme broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1)(p),23(4),23(5))

information abou: the Company's risk profile and risk
management, to:al leverage and any material change o
‘he arrangemen:s for managing the Company’s ligguidity,
the propornon of assess (f any) subiect o special
arrangemenss ansing from hqudiy, the maximum
permized leverage or the grant of nghts of re-use of
collazeral or guarantees in relation to leverage will be
provided 1in the Company's Annual Reporns aor on the
Company's websiie hup//oviiassocialhousing.com/.

Risk Profile and Risk Management
{AIFMD 23(4)(c))

The appomtmen: of the AT asthe AZM of the
Company under the A7V means that1n1s responsible
for risk managemens: and -he ongoimg process of
idensifying, evaluating, montonng and managmg

the nisks facing the Company in accordance with the
requiremants of the A7V D The 3oard keeps "he A7V'g
performance of these responsibilines undar review as
nar: of 175 overall rezponsibiliey for the Company's nsk
managemen: and internal controls
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The principal nsks of the Company are set our in the nsk
managemen: secion i the Annual Repaort. The A -W's
risk managemern: sysiam Incorporates regular review

of these nsks and the establishment of appropna-e nisk
hmus and internal control processes o minigate the
risks. The sensinvity of the Company to relevan: rigksasg
furher detalled 1n the rigk managemen: section in the
Annual Repor.

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFTMD 23(5))

As specified in tThe nvezimen: oblecaves and policy 1In
“he Annaal Repor:, The Company has the abihry o patap
10 a maximum leverage of 404 of the Company’s Gross
Asget Value and the A oversees the use of leverage o
eneure tha: The use of Borrewing s consisten: with this
requirernen:. _everage 1s calculated using gross assets,
wirh vanoas adjas ments, divided by net asse’s

Lnder A7 2 the Company s requtrad o calaoilate
leverage under the mwo methodologies specified by
‘he Jirecave, the ‘Gross Method and the ‘Comrmitmens
Verthod! the difference being that the Commirmean:
V.arhod allows certain exposures 1o he offset or netted.
Theclosures are made on che websiie of the Company
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

N OUr opInion:

e  Civitas Joclal mousing 2.C's Group financiat
statements and Company financial stazemeants ghe
“finanrcial statements’) give a true and fair view of
the srate of the Group's and of the Company's affairs
as a: 3" Varch 2022 and of the Group's profiz and the
Group's cash flows for the year then ended;

« he Group hnancial statemensts have been
properly prepared in accordance with Uk-adopred
mmrernazional accounung standards;

e he Company fiinancal statemenss have been properly
prepared in accordance with United <ingdom
Gemnerally Accepted Accounting “raciice {Lnited
<ingdom Accounang Standards, compnsing RS 00
Reduced Maclosure “ramework”, and appheable laws
and

o he finanoal statements have been preparad in
accordance with the requiremenss of the Compames
ACT 20085,

We have audied the inanaal statemenig, included wnshun
“he Annual Repor and Accounis the Hnmial Repor:’,
which comprnze, the Consoldated and Company
Statemens of Jnancial Poson ag at 8 March 2022

“he Consolidared S:atemesnt of Comprehensive ncome,
the Consolidared S:aremen: of Cash -lows. and the
Consolidated and Company Statemernes of Changes

n sty for the vear *hen ended: and “he notes 1o tha
financial statements, which mclude a descnpnon of the
significan: acccuning pohoes

Our opnion 15 congieten: with our reporing 10 the
Attt and Vanagemen: Tngagemen: CommiTes,

Basis for opinion

We conducied our audi i accordance with .nternanonal
Standards on Audiring (U CL8As (UK and applicable
law Our responstbilines under sas (UK are further
described in the Audirors respaonsttihnes for the audr: of
“he financial statements section of our report. We helizve
shas the audit evidence we have obrained 1 sufficien: and
appropnace 1o provide a basis for our opinwon.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance
with the ethical requirements ~hart are relevans to our
aucty of the hnancial sta~emenie in the U wiuch inchides
“he TRCs ~thical Slandard, as applicable o hsed public
in-eress entties, and we have fuifilled our ather ehical
responsibiines in accordance with “hese requurements
To the hest of nur knowledys and beliaf we declars

“hat non-audis services prohubsired by the 720 5 Shical
Srandard were no providerd

(rher than those disclozed n Mote 9.0 we have provided

no non-aadr services "o “he Company or rz controlled
ardler-akimagzin the penod under suad-

Our audit approach

Overview

Audit scope

o We rarlored the scope of our audy ‘o ensure *hat we
performed enough work 10 be able 10 give an opinmion
on the finanoal statements as a whole, raking o
accoun: the sracwure of *he Group and the Company,
<he accouanung processes and controls, and the
ndus:ry in which they operaze. The Group consis:s of a
single reportahle segmern:.

Key audit matters

e Valuanon of investmen: propery (Group,

e ADITy "o continue as a gong concern {Continilanon
Resolanon! (Grouap and paren: Companyh

Materiatity
e  Qverall Group matenalzy. £ 04 milhon
HA020 £04 mithon) based on % of 1ol asses.

e Overall Company matenalty: £8.2 mithion
2027 £74 mihion) Based on 2% of total asses,
o erformance mazenalty £/9 malhon
P02 P E ronThany (Group? and F&2 mithan
{2027 F5 s mudliony iCompany?

The scope of our audit

As pars of desigring oar adudir, we determined matenalisy
and assessed the nsks of mai=nal mizgiatement in “he
financal statements

Key audit matters

Ley audlr maters are those masrers that i the audiors
professional radgement, were of mosT sigruficance

in the audrr of the financial sTaremenss of “ha curren:
penod andinchide the mos: sigmficans assessed nsks
of mazenal migsiatemen: (whether or not due to fraud?
identified by the audiors. including those which had
“he greates: effec: on: the overall audit sirazeqgys the
allocanion of resources in the aadvs and direcaing “he
efforis of -he engagemen: tearm These mazers. and any
commen:s we make on the resulis of our proceduras
“hereon, were addresgsed i “he contex: of our audn:

of the financial sTatemern:s ax a whole, and 1in forming
oar opinton thereon, and we do not provide a separaze
apRUrnOn on chese maners

This 1z not a complzte st of all nsks wdenmifiad by our
guadr.

Sy to conninide as a gony concern sContnaation
Rezolunont s 1 new key aud mater “his year CO
which wae a ey audis marer las yvear. 1 no longer
incladed bacause of the hmited ymmpact 1 has had on
“h= Group and Company's business and operannns
Orhareise The bay audr masers below are consiss:
vt ass pear




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Hey audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properiy (Group)

Refer (o e Report ol tne Aude and Managemen.
Tngagemaeon: (‘.;)mmi‘.‘.(,‘n Noie 31 Significant astuntae
valiation of invesiman: aroperty and Noie 150, Tnvesirean:
oropery.

Invesimon prooeries are aed al a tair va e of F343 72 miion
as a3 March 2022 10 ine Conso.idaied Saement of
Financial Posinon. The va uanon of (e Croup’s invesimern
Qropeny ig 1o L0y Contponcnt of e net assel value and
Jndaroing ine Growo'e res.. or e vear Tae ros.l ol tne
ava.Jation Dus year was a gain of £12.3 nillion, waic 1
coowniced for wisin Cnange in fair va..e of invesiment
oroperies in e Consoadaiod Siacmen. of Comprenensive
Inconte Tae Groud’s Invesimen: prooerty por{o i CONsIss
of spccialist socia ‘m.ﬁing oroperies ocaed in Ing.and
and Wa es whic are el 1o Registered Providers of social
housing on .ong-1ornt. £ases.

Inves:imen: property va. wadions were carried ool oy a i
oary va.uaer, Jones Lang LaSal.c JLI or tnc Va war). 7
Va'l.er was engdged ny e Direciors and performed sacir
worg in accordance wiin e Royal Tngiaie ol Charnered

Sarveyors URICS) RICS Va uation - Profeszional Standards
and the requirenr enss of Intarnationa, Accoaniing S
A0 Tnvesinten: Propersy’

randard

Indeterminmg 1o va..e of a property. (e Va..or 1as

JA<OT NG aCCO.L 1L Dropery-specitic intormacion . .ding
e ease enr and ronia income oayabie ey dopaed
ASSTDIONS 1o arrive 4 e discoun: rate whleh s anooaor
<0y Inpul o e valuation This ndg reference 1o nesinida.

vie d and CPIgrow.a rate wnicn are inl.aenced oy orevaiiang
mar<el condrions and comparan’s ransaciong.

e vai.ainon of 1o Groue's invesiyren: prodary ponto o
was identtflied ag a <ev andilmaner given e vda Ladton
iz inhcrent y suwoeclive due [0 amonyg omer lactors, 1ne
individ..a: nat.rc ol cacn properny, 58 'ocalion and e
expecad (Liure rental streams {or tdl Dartic.uiar Dropany
e sigruticance of ine estmaies and adgonen:s invo vad,
c:o.‘_o“.d wiin e lact that only a ama.. percentage ditlerenoe
in individia groperny va Latosns. when aggregated. cond
ina macrial rmissiateoment warran:aod specaific audi

res.
locas in nis arca

Grven e inherent suoecuviy involved in 11e va Laaon

of 1ae property norfolio. and tharetors (ne need tor decp
mrarker <now, r’dqe when dowermining (e most appropriae
ass.mpiions and 1ae technicadios of va wation neinodo.ogy,
we angaged our mernal vaiaation expoer.s {qaa.ilicd
charered s irveynrs i assist gg in oLt aadil o s arca

Assessing the valuers' expertise and objectivity

We read lhe Va .ers repor: and contirmad 1nat he aoproach
Lyed was consigien: wict one RICS gaide’ines We assossod
the Va..er's qualiiicanons and cxpertise and read tieir oors
ol engageaemen: Wit e Grocp, dolefnining thay Diere wore
no ma:ers na: aliccred Meir independence and oo scuvity
orumposed scope dmitations spon nerr. We aso considered
fees and oter contrac ArTATIOEN SIS THAT NN CXIST
between 1ae Crown and e Valuer We found no ovidencee o
SLAQEOS. 114l e onjeoly of tne Va.dor was oo oronused.

Assumptions and estimates used by the Valuer
In our csting. whicn invo vad the Lse of OuLr INMrna, rea.
08130 va.sauen exper s we constdered the assamprionsg
scd py theVa e valsatdon. including
Lndarsianding aow hese assamotions were deve oped.
We a so performed pencnimardng wiere Opservan.g
marke: evldence was availao & Woe aaa .enged e Va ser
regdrding (e impac of tne regL atery envireninent on
investor sentimoen' and assel va.wes. We aveonded meaiungs
with rranagomen: and e Va der al walen the va ation
maeiiodo ogy and e ey assarpions were disc assod.
We cha .enged taeir approacn (o 1n€ va.sations. and the
radona.e penind e more significant va. cation assampanns
adooied Where assuamplions wore ouiside 1ne exnecied
ranges, we Jnderoog furacr investiganans, ned lurier
digcuasions with e Va uer and obtamed evidonea 0
SL0POT eXp.anations roccived We a.so cnaengad
LGeTS 8510100 CKIoN: ey 1ave la<en Mo accoun: e
nroac: of cimaie changs and reated LS50 consideranons
wWinn e Vasanons. Tae responses grovided by e
Va orand supporing evidence. enapied Ls o considear
e oronery specilic laciors fial may aave had an iimnac.
On va. Le, ing .,dmg racent COMpAaran.c [ransaciions
were am)ro:)ria:e We conauded That e assamoilons
ad oy e ValLer were Consision: wit aour expeciatons
rll'ld COmpardnic oenchmar<ing and mar<e [ransacion
infornaion for ;e asser oo

Sder wit

Data vsed by the Valuer and legal title

We vaidated e data aged oy e Vaiwor and louand fhat i
was consisicn: win ac information we andied Thois data
ne.aded oot suct as corren: rens rent indexadon (CPT or
CPIe %) and case o whnlon we 1ave agreod o a saino.s
vasis o cxecuied casc agreon-enis as par ol ourasd
wOr< W serthed ega ownersng of oroparies aro g
mdependeni (e deed conlirmraiions ona samp © Dasis.

Wecono wdod al o arsLmoions Lsed moUie va Ll ons
O 1A VAL OIS WOTD £L0007E0 e g of ne avidenoe
ooamed and (e dise osares wiznn e Annng Repor: a
safticlens and apopropriae. We rave no iss.os (o repor in
resoass Ol IS wWor<

0
Q
5
o
£
|
o
-]
<
m
2
-
A

CAE SLNOODNV ONY LA
O DNISNCH TV IDOS SVLIAL

[+-]
puey



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Ability {o continue as a going concern (Continuation
Resolution} (Group and Company?}

Reter 10 e Qoing Concern and Vigoniiy Saemean..

he Repor: of e Audl and Managemen: Chgagon et

Commisee Note Ceolng concern m ic Orove Fianacla,
Staten® and Nowe 2.0, Basis of nrevarazion in the Cormr pany

Financia! Sraienien:s

The Company's articles of asgocatiion inc.oadea a regaircmen:
for 1ne Board o propose an ordinary resolation attne annwa.
genera. Ireeung toowing ne lifin anniversary from 1o
nina pooic offcring of the Company lor the Combany o
contnae in g curreni form e Continvaanion Rasol ation),

I ine Contineation Resal.aion is passed, ine Company wil
CONOGe 1S husNess ag pregen: ¥ constiacd and nropos
e BAITE 3000 N AL eveTy (T annaa, genera meeling
cersalier [ ine Continuation Reso Laon s nol passed. na
Direciors wi., fie regufred, winiin six woniasg afier the dac
of s annaal genera’ meeiing, 0 lornti.ae proposas

for congidaeration oy the ghareaoders or (e volurary
gaadation. Lnisanon. renrganisation or reconsirueiion of
e Compalny

A Condneanon Reso. _don s due 1o 1ake nace al Tne Nox
Anntal Genegra. Meaung on 15 Sepicmroer 2022, Wwic 18
Wilin Jaing concem assessmen: nenod As s e
Direciors nave considercd and assessed the Lreinood

ot tne Continaalion KEoso sllon gassing and e patenta,
IMPas: on e apiaiy of tne Company 1O CONUNLG as & going
concern Thae Direciorg are of tne vicw Diat tne Conunsalion
Resolclonwi e oassed al (ae foriicoming annaa
genera. meetng. Addriona 'y, thc RDirectors cxoed: saanf
e ConinLanon Beso LNon s nol nassed. an ovaent waie
the Direciors considar 1o oc igny remoro lormu anng

A1 T O en g Jny €070 9raposd s wo. d rdaira D1g
Company 0 tonin.e poeradons lor a parod of a cas:

IZ monis lrom inedale of aporova of ne Comroany s
financla. gtaemen:s

The abilly 10 Conin.ac ag a going concern was wantified
d% @ ey andil maser given taas s s e iirs: Conunaanon
Reso.aion gince formation of tne Company and tacre
15 .dgemonsinvo vsed o managenant's as Lmen: in e
arcannod of e ConanLailion Reso. .1on passing

We ova waled Do Dirooors assassment of gomy concem
inc..ding he impact of 1ne Continvation Resolinon on s
assessmen: We conyidered e Directors asscessmen’ of
e i<o.ihood of the Continsation R Jlon passig. As
oar: of ourana; it the

$ we also considered he impac!
Comninuation Resoouition did not gass on e going concom
asscssment As par: of us ova. wation, we performed the
folowing nroced ires:

¢ We considered the composiuon of the shareholder
redisier

e We held discussions with managemens, the
Company's main broker. and members of the board *o
anderstand thair communmeanans with shareholders
i the Company:

e We challenged managemen:s assessmen: of the
shareholder base and share price performancs;

e We read the aricles of associatiion ‘o understand the
process and nming of events n the siruation where
-he Connnuanon Resolunon were nos o pass This
mcluded challenging managemen:'s assessmen: that
she Company wodld tTemam a o concern evan
in the even: where “he Continuanon Resoliion were
not To pass, raking o account the likely aumescale
neceassary for proposals to be formulazed and
myplemenzed

In addrion o s proced..res aoove. we assesged “e
dise’oseres orosented in e AnnLa Roporiin s aion o
going concem and e ConunLation Resa Laon and consider
“ese (o oe ada O CKELAIN e ey

s of e Drecors
ATHOSSIT A

Firiner audy procedares and oLr indings in regocc of
JoINg Concern are setow i tnc Cond LSIons re aing o
Gomng Concern’ seciion og ow




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continuea

How we tailored the audit scope

We tallored the scope of our addlr o ensure that we performad enouagh work 10 be able 1o give an opimon on the
financial statements as a whole, ;Jaking o account the siructuare of the Group and the Company, the accouniing
processes and controle, and the industry in which they operate,

The Group's properies are spread across ‘58 statutory enuties with the Group financial statemen’s being a
consohdaron of these enties. All work was carned out by “he Group audis team wath addimonal procedares
performed on the consolidation 10 ensure sufficient coverage and appropnate audl: evidence for our opinion on “he
Groap financial statements as a whole

Materiality
The scope of our audit was inflienced by our applicanon of materiahsy. We ser cerrain guannzanve thresholds for 3
matenality. These sogether with gqualizaive consideranions, helped us to determuine the scope of our audit and the B
nasdre, aming and exten: of our audis procediires on the ndvidaal finanaal siatement hine items and disclosures and E
i evahiuanng the effect of missiatements, both indmwvidually and in aggregate on che fiinanacial statements as a whole. 3
. ) 1]
Jased on our professional judgement, we determined matenaliy for the financial statements as a whaole as follows: g
™
Financial statements - Group Financial statements — Company E
Overall T1C 4 mugon 2021 FIC 4 miion) £87 mition (2021 774 mil ian) E
PR ]
materiality
How we 1% ol tola’ assels 1¥ of 1oa assos
determined it
Rationale for Tae <oy meas.re of e Cro.ups perlormances s e The Company's main acuviby 1s he nouding of
benchmark val.aion of invesimen: oropcriies and 1qe ba'ance  invesimenis 1n saosidiaries. On this pasis, we set
applied g1eel as a who-e GIVED 1118, wWe 507 an overal. an ovord. Company ma.eria' Ly lovel basced on
Groap maicria ity eve. based on ota. assets. 10T, 8808

- addiion so averall Group matenah-y, a speaific matenahty was also apphed 10 Income srazemen: line

iremes that impac: Adpasted Profis 3efore Tax (A2 317, which 1s based on profiz before tax. adjusted 1o exclade

fair value gaing/{losses) on inves men: propery and denvatives We set g specific overall materiality level

of £7.5 rillion 2620 F15 mulhon), equanng o 5% of A237T namving at this judgement we constdered the fac:

that A237T 18 a secondary hinancial indicaor of the Group whichas disclosed as sP2A -armings in the Annual Repar:
irefer -0 the Group Strateqic Report where the term 1s defined m fulllh

We use performance matenaliy 1o reduce -o an appropnately iow level the probabilizy thai the aggregate of
ancaorrected and undesecied missiatements exceeds overall matenality Specifically, we use performance matenalizy
in determiming The scope of cur audr: and the natare and exzent of our lesung of account balances, classes of
ransachons and disclosuares, for example in determining sample sizes, Our performance matenahty was 75%

{2027 75%) of overall matenaliny, amounang o £7.8 mulhon (2827 £7 3 milhion! for he Group finanoal statements and
Fio2 mdlion (2027 £5.5 million} for the Company finanaal statements.

n determimng The performance masenalry, we considerad a number of factors - the history of missTatemens. risk
assessmen: and aggreganon nisk and the effecuveness of conrols — and concluded that an amount a: the upper end
of our normal range was appropnaie

We agreed with the Audn and VYanagemen: mngagemeaen: Commiee thatr we would repor: 1o them missrarements
idennfied durnng cur auadis alove F59.000 (Grougr audi! (2027 £57° 8,008 and £47. 000 (Comparny audiy (027 F£372.0000 as
well as migsiatemean:s below those amounss that, in our view, warranted reporing for gaalizaive reasons,

N adduion. ve agreed with “he Audir and “anagemen: ~ngagemen: Commiee we would repor: -0 them
missTarementeidaniified dunng our Group audr above £7/5,000 2077 £F77.0000 for misstatemens relased to finoncal
sTatemen: ine cems impacang A23T within the financial statements, as well as misstatements below that amouns ~has,

mnoouar viewy, warranted raparang for ql]ﬂll?{ltlve TEas0ns.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continuea

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluaton of the Directors’ assessmen: of the Group's
and the Company's alnlicy o conanue 1o adop: the going
concern basis of accounung included:

e Corroborazed key assumpnons {eqg hqudey forecasts
and financing arrangements! o underlying
documenzanon and ensuared this was consisient wuh
our audi: work in chese areas;

e  Considered management's forecasnng acoaracy by
comparnng how the forecas's made in the pnor year
compare 1o the aemal resalis of the current year,

o Undersiood and assessad “he appropriaensss of the
key assumpions used both in the base case andin
“he seveare bur plausible downside scenano, nclading
assessing whether we considered *he downside
sensgitiviues o ke appropnasely savers

s Tested the incegney of The anderlying formalas and
calcalations within the going concearn and cash flowr
models;

e Conzidered the appropnareness of the minganng
acnons avatlabls (o managemean: i he even: of the
downside scenano matenahsing. specifically, we
focused on whether these actions are within *he Group s
control and are actuevable,

e Reviewed the deb: covenan: calcilanions agreeing
“he mpats to the audired resubs. Addimonally, we have
reviewad MAansgemesns giress fegs on The Covendns;

e Reviewed the disclosures prowvided relating 1o the going
concern basis of preparaion and found shat These
provided an explananon of “he Directors’ 4ss

Thia was consigen: wih “he evidence we oblained; and

e We have performed procediires over the Contiiidanion
Rezolution as detallad i “he ey Audin Yaer

3ased on “he work we have performed. we have nos
identified any maenal uncenainiess relaung 1o even:s
or condirions tha indwidaatty or collecively. may cas”
sigmificant douby on the Group's and the Company s
ability To connnue as a going concern for a penod of at
leas: wwelve mon-hs from vwhen “he finanaal s1atemens
ares authonsed forissue.

naudirmg the finanoal g aements, we have concluded
“hat -he Direciors” use of the gomyg concern basia of
accouring in “he preparanon of the financial 5
1B appropnae

=Sowrever ecalsze not all frure evers or condinons ~an
he predicizd. “his conclasion s no” 3 guaran as 0 he
Group s and “he Company's abhilsy 1o contnite ag a gowng
COTICETTL

‘1 relation to the Jireciors reporang on how ~hey have
apphed The UL Corporate Governance Cods, we have
nothing mazernial to add or dravw attenuon o m relation 1o
che rectors siatement in the financal statements albous
whether the Direciors considered 17 approprniate “o adop:
“he going concern basis of accouning

Qur responsibilines and the regponsiinines of the
ireciors with respect to going concern are describedin
che relevant sections of this report,

Repaorting on other information

The other information comprnges all of the informasion

i the Annaal Repor other than the financal g2aements
and our Audiiors repor thereon. The Nrecrors are
responsiizle for the other informanen Our apinion on the
financial sratemenss does not cover the other informanion
and. accordingly, we do not express an audr opmon or,
excep: 0 the exten: otherwise explicily statad in This
repar: any form of assurance therson.

n connecton with our auacdic of the financial slaremens,
our responsibalizy 18 20 read the other informanon and,
in domng so, consider whether “he other nformation is
matenally meonsgisien: wizh the financial gawmenss

or our knowladge obianed in the audis or otherwise
appears to be matenally misstated, f we wdenafy

an apparen: maserial Meonssancy or matenal
misstatemen:, we are reguired o perform procedures
-0 conclade whether there 12 3 matenal misstatemen®
of the financial sTatements or a mazenal mssTaemen”
of the other informanon. f, bazed on the work we

have performed, we conchude “has there iz a marenal
misstarentent of this other informanon, we are required
0 report tha fact. We have no'hing to repor: basad on
“hese respongibilines.

et 10 the Group Sirategle Repor and Report of
0715, we also considered whether the digclosures
required by ‘he U Companies Ac: 2006 have Teen
mcluded

3ased on our work underiaken in the course of “he audiy,
‘he Cormnpanies AcT 2006 reqaires Us alsa "o repor ceriam
opimons and maters ax desconbed below,




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Group Strategic Report and Report of the Directors

noour opuon, kased on the work anderaken in the course
of the audis, the informanon given in the Group Strategio
Report and Repor: of the Directors for the year ended

3 March 202218 consistent with the financial siatemen:s
and has heen prepared in accordance with apphcable legal
requirements.

In hght of the knowledge and undersianding of the
Group and Comparny and thewr environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did notidenufy any matenal
misstatements In the Group Sirategic Repor: and Repor: of
the Jrectors.

Directors’ Remuneration

‘noour opinten, the par: of the Jirectors’ 2emuaneraiion
Repor: 1o be audized has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2008,

Corporate governance statement

The Listng Ruales require us o review the reciors’
Slatemennss i relalon 1o gomng concern, longear-1arnm
viabivy and thar par: of the corporate govemance
statermnent relasing 1o the Company's comphance with

the provisions of the UX Cerporate Governance Code
specihied for cur review. Our addimional responsibilines
with respect 1o the corporate governance siaement as
oherinformanon are descnbed in the Reporung on other
informaton sectiion of this repor:.

3ased on the work undertaken as par: of our audin. we
have concluded that each of “he fellovrmeg eleamensts of the
corporate governance statemern: 18 matenally consisten:
with The financial statements and our knowledge obiained
durmg the audn, and we have nothing matenal ~o add or
draw atenton to i relation o

e The Nirectors confirmaton tha: ~hey have carned ous
a robust assessmen of *he emergimg and principal
risks;

e The disclosures in the Annual Repor: that degsonbe
“hoge princtpal nsks. whar procediures are 1n place 1o
idenafy emerging ngks and an explanation of how
‘hese are being managed or mitigatad,

e The Zirecors startement in the finanoal sratements
abour whether they considerad 1 appropriate 7o
adop: the going concern basis of accouning in
prepanng them, and theiridentuficanon of any
marerial unceramsies o the Group's and Company's
akiliy o continvie “o do so over a pernod of at leas:
swelve months from the date of approval of the
finanaial starements,

e The Wirectors explananion as *o ‘heir assessmen: of
‘he Group's and Company's prospec:s, the panod This
assassment covers and why the penod 1 approprate;
and

e 'I'he Drectars statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expecianon that the Company will be able
o conamnde 1n operainon and meer 11s habihnes as they
fall due over the penod of 1s assessmens, inclhading
any related disclogures drawing atention o any
necessary quahflca?mns O ASsSUMpilons.

Our review of the Jirectors’ stntement regarding The
longer-tarm viabilizy of the Group wag substannally

less n scope than an audir and only consisted of
making inquines and constdenng the JITeciors’ process
supporing their statemens checking “hat the slatemen:
15 1n alignmens with the relevan: provisions of the UX
Corporate Governance Code: and conswdenng whe her
“he gratement g consisten: with the financial statements
and our knowledge and understanding of the Group and
Company and their environmen: obrainad m the course
of the qudit.

‘naddinion. based on the work undertaken as par: of
ouar audis we have concluded tha each of the following
elements of the corporate governance siatement 18
matenally consisient with the finanaial statements and
our knowledge obrrained dunng the audin

e The Directors gtatemern: that they conasider the
Annual Reparr, taken as a whole. 1s fair balanced
and underszandable. and provides ~he mformanon
neceszary for the members 10 aszess the Group's and
Company's posiiion, performance, ulsiness model
and srategy.

e The gecton of the Annual Repor: that descnibes the
review of effecaveness of nsk managemen: and
inzernal conerol systems: and

& The gecnon of the Annual Repor descnibing the
work of the Audiz and Managemen: cngagemens
Comimies

We have nothing o repor in respec: of our responsinliy
o repar: when the Jirectors’ statement relaning o the
Company's caompliance with she Code does not properly
disclose a deparure from a relevant provision of the
Code specified ander the Lisning Rules for review by the
Auditors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

financial statements

As explained more fully in the $Staremen: of Jireciors’
Tesponsibilines, the Nireciors are responsible for the
prepara:on of the financial statements 1in accordance
with the apphcable framework and for bemng sausfied
that they give a true and fair view. The irectors are alzo
responsikle for such mnternal control as they determine
1= necassary 10 enable the preparanon of inancial
sraternents that are free from matenal misstasemesns,
whether due 1o fraud ar error

n preparing the finanoal glatements, the Jirectors are
rezponsible for assessing the Group's and “he Company's
ability 1o connnue ag a going concern, disclosing.,

as apphealble, marers related 1o gomg concern and
s che gomng concern baas of accounang unless

“he Drectors erher intend o hagudaie the Group or the
Company Or 1o Cease Operations. or have no realiste
alrernanve but to do 2o

Auditors’ respeonsihilities for the audit of the

financial statements

Orar objecaves are "o oblan reasonable agsurance aboas
whether the finanaial stTatements as a whole are free from
marenal missiatemens, whether due so fraud or error,

and o1ssue an audrors repor: that moludes our opimon
Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, butis
notagarantee “hat an audr conducied in accordance
with "Sag L wl always datect a matenal missiaenien:
whern 1 exigs Misstatements can anse from fraad or
error and are considered marenal if incdhwdaally or in the
agyregare they could reasonably be expecied o influencs
The ecanomic decisions of users -aken on the basis of
“heze fmam’:ml slatements.

rregualani=s, including fraud, are nszances of non-
comphiance with laws and regulanons. Wwe design
procadures in line wich our responsibsihines, cathned
aliove, 1o deec: matenal missiatemenss in raspec: of
rregularnes. melauding fraud. The extens so which our
proceddres are capable of d nyg wregalanes,
including fraud. 1z detaled helow

3ased on our andersranding of -hea Groug and indusry,
wre tdennfiad thas the pnincipal nsks of non-comphance
writh laws and requianions related o comphance with
“he Azal wztate nyestmen Trast (R0 s amas 2ar 72 of
“he Corporanon Tax Act 2070 and “he U< regilatory
principles, such as those governed by the Ainancial
Conduc and we considered ~he s
whuch non-compteanes mugh- have a marenal effec on
he financial s atements We also considerad "hose Lyae
and reguianons ha have a diracmimpanss on the inancoal
dehoag che Companies Ao 2006

We evaldated management's incen ives and

opporarmaes for fraudulen: mampalanon of the finanmal
starements uncluding the nsk of override of controls).

and determined tha: the princapal nsks were related

0 POSING Nappropriate journal entreas 1o ncrease
reverne or reduce expenditure. and management bias

1N ACCOMNTING estimates, in paricialar the valuaton of
Imvestmen: properies. Audi procedures performed by the
engagemens: ‘eam included:

e Jiscussions with management. mcluding
consideration of known or suspected instances of
non-comphance with laws and regulations and fraud,
and review of the repor:s made by managemen:;

e [Understanding of management's inzernal conirols
designed o preven: and detect wregulanues:

e Assessmen: of maters if any. repored o the Audiz
and Vanagemen: Tngagemen: Commines;

e Reviewing relevant meenng minidres, inclading
thoge of *he 3vard of Jireciors and the Audr and
Vanagemen: ~ngagemen: Commiies;

o eview of tax comphance with the involvemens: of our
~ax specialigiz in the audis

e esigning audil procedures coneorporate
unprediciabihy over the nature, uming and exien of
Our cesting of expenses:

s rocedures relaung to the valuation of invesimen:
properies descnbed in the related key audi marer
above: and

e dennfyimg and tesangjournal entmes in parncular
any journal entres pos:ed with unusual accouan:
combimanons and waords,

There are mheren: imizauons in the aads procedures
described above We are less hkely 0 become aware of
nmsgrances of nan-comphiance with lavrs and regulanons
“hat are not closely related to evenis and ‘ransacions
reflecied 0 the finanaal s:atements Also, the ngk of not
deteciing @ matenal mis remen: due o fraud 1g higher
“han “he nsk of not detecting one resalung from arror,
as fraud mavy involve deliberara concealmean: by, for
example, forgery or ineniaonal misrepresentations, or
“hrough collasion.

Gur audr tesing migh inchide “esting comples
popndlatons of ceram ransactons and balances,
possibly using data audeing echnuques —owever, 17
wyotcally involves seleching a imrred numbesr of 1zems for
~egtineg. rather than esting complere papdlanons We »all
ofen seak "o rarge parcalar rems for tesung based on
“heir @172 or nigk charac =ns routher o 2. we wnll
uge audir samphnag o enalb:le us o draw a conclusion
abiour the pojntlanon from which “he zampie 12 32lec-ad

A furher descmpnon of var responsibilines for “he
aucr of -he financial statementsag lacated on h
vrelisite a° werw freorgak/andirarsresponsitihess T
descniprion farms par of our audivors repor.




Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Use of this report

This repors, incltading the opimions, has been prepared
for and only for the Company's members ag a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of 2art 16 of the Comparmies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do nos, in qiving
“hese opinlens, accept or assume responsibility for any

aher purpose or 1o any other person to whom 7his repor:

18 shwwil ot 1o whose hands 1z may come save where
exprassly agreed by our pnor consen: in wriiang.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under *he Compamies Act 2006 we are requured o report
o you 1f in our opinion:

e we have not obramead all the informanion and
explananons we teq.iire for our audiy;, or

o adeqguate accouning records have no: been kep: by
she Company. or returns adequarte for our audit have
not been recerved from branches no: visized by us; or

s ceram disclogures of Direciors remineration
specified by law are not made: or

e he Company hinancial statemern:s and the par of
‘he Jirectors’ Remuanerastion epor: -6 be audied are
no? 1IN agreemen: with the accounung records and
reTilrmes.

We have no excep lons to repart arsing from this
resnonsinlity

Appointment

rollowing the recommendanon of the Audit and
Vanagement sngagement Comimities We were
appolnted by the members on 3 Varch 20°7 zo audh: the
finanoal statements for the penod ended 7/ November
2076 and subsedquent financial penods The penod of
soral uninzerrapied engagement s 6 years, covenng the
penods ended 7/ Novemnber 2026 to 30 Varch 2072

Other matter

‘n due courge, as reguirad by 'he “inancal Conducs
sorthorey Msclosure Gardance and Transparency Qule
1.7 42, these finanoal statements will form par: of the
S5el-prepared annual financial report filed on the
Nanonal Srorage Mechanism of the Tinancial Conduc:
Authony in accordance wi b the =555 Regulatory
Technical Standard {=5c1" 2180 Thig Audrors' report
provides no asgarance over whether the annuaal financial

repor: will be prepared using the single glectromc formas

specified in the 2857 T8

Saira Choudhry (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on bhehalf of PricewaerhouseCoopers 1.7
Charwered Accounzants and Statuzory Audizors

London

29 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Revenue
Rencal income

Loss diroc: propeny expensas
Net rental income

Dircciors’ remuwneraion
Invesimen: advisory lees
General and adminigiralive exopenses

Total expenses

Changen fair va..e of mvesiren: vroperiics

Operating profit
Financo income
Finance sxpenss

Cnange in tair va .2 of inicrest rate derlvatives

Profit before tax

Taxaon

Profit being total Eémpi‘ehenéivé income for the year

Eémings pe;' share — basic and diluted

31
Note

SR
f)

6.0
8.0
8.0

150

1C6
ne

218

year ended
March 2022

£000

51636
(978)
50,638

(206)
(6.132}
(3.909)

(10,247}

12,269

52,680

7
(10,608)
| 2675

44,754

For the

Tt the
ye-ar ended
31 March 2021
£a0n

49.020

7s)

47.845

{198)
BN
(3.183)
(9.198)

5501

A amounts repored in the Consohdazed Siaiemen: of Conrprehensive Tncome gaoove arise fron Coninung 0perations.

Tne noles on pages 93 10 117 aro an iniegra. pars of tnase conso.idated finanaal slatements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2022

Assels
Non-current assets
[nvesimen: propersy
O:ner receivao.es

Interes: rate derivalives

Current assets
Trade and omer receivap.es
Cash and casn equva.en's

T-oTa_l_assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and ofmer payan os
Bang< and oan porrowings

Non-current liabilities
Ban« and [oan corrowings
In:ares: rate derivaives
Total liabilities

Total -net assets
Equity

Snarc canl.da.

Snare Preminm reserve
Caora. redaclion resarvoe
Retaingd earnings

Total equity

Net éssets per Si’l:l:(:! — basic aﬁ&_d_iluted

Tacse consoddated financia. staomenis on pages 89 10 117 were approved
PLC and a..onsed forissac and zigned on s ocna f oy

Michael Wrobel

Charmran and Indepeondent WKNon-Fyee .
29 T.ne 7027

Com mairy Mo WCE528

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

,,,,,,,, New o geoo | sonu
150 945237 893684
170 23519 21903
o a0 2151

&3

970,887 915389

173 12,865 12.821
188 53,337 157.097
66.202 113918

1.037.089 10355

9.0 (9,492) (3,245}

260 - 59837

- (9492) (59287
300 (352050) (292183

Ae - (544)

o (352050} (292777
T EE1542)  1352000)

T o 75547 ¢ '
220 6,225 6225

30 292626 297453

0 322365  SEI40

250 54,371 43570

) 675547 573498
" ims M030p  10830p

v e Board of Direciors of Civitas Socia Hoosing

T2 Notes on oages 93 10 17 arc anntegra pars of nsse 0ongo ndaed inanca statentsmns



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Balance at 1 April 2020
Profit and tolal comprehensive income for the year
Shares retssued [Tom treas.ary
Drndande paid
Balance at31 March2021

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
snarcs reissued from reasury

Shares polght back inio ireasury

Dividends paid

Balance at 31 March 2022

Note

share Capilal
Share premuim redueticon Retained Total
cptal e e coes en
6775 297405 330.926 41008 670334
- %6.075 36.075
- 58 211 27
72417 (33413
5225 292453 331140 43670 573498
- - - 44754 44754
- 163 484 - 647
- - (9.259) - (9.259)
- - - (34,093) (34.093)
6,225 292,626 322,365 54531 675547

The noted on cages 33 10 117 are anoniegral oar of tnese consoadared tinanaa. slatemon’s
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year oeforc :axation
Change in lair va Lo of investment propernies
Change in fair va.ue of interes: rate denvatives
- Ren: and inceniive straignt .me ad:usimen:s
Bad deb: {oredity/expanse
Finance income
Finance cxoensa
[nerease in .ease inceniive recelvane
Increasen srade and other receivao es
Decrease)/inoresse in rade and oter payanics
Cash generated from operations
[nieres: recelved

Net cash flow generated from operatling activities

Investing activities

P.rchase ol imvesinent proosries

Acqgasiiion cos:s

Purchaze of suogidiary - inc..ding properny

Sae orocceds on fac of sunsidiary exe .ding oroperty
Jihwanon of restricied casn e d for invesing acnviaes
Net cash flow used in investing activities

Financing activities

Cos: ol shares 00.gnl inio reasury
Proceeds romm snares reiysaed from redas.ry
Dradends paid ‘o gty saarcho.ders

Bang< porrowings advanced

Ban< porrowing ids.@ 0038 naid
Interes: and security foes naid on aan< oorrowings and dernvatives

Net cash ,f-l}?l"‘,',“,‘“d in-)lgngrated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The noes on pages 93 .o 117 are aninteqgral par: of “hese conschdated hinancial s1atements.

For the

vear ended
31March 2022

Hote £0G0

44,754
(12,269)

(2.675)

397

50 an
n

10,608

(2.011)

236)

1,062)

37.482

7

" 37489

(27,695)
(1,640}
{13,559)
2.695
529
e

G (9.259)
ks 919
(33,928}
(1,.805)
(8,590}

(52665}

(54.844)
185 103,819
18C 48975

For the

yé-al ended
F1March 2021
£ 0060

1

36.07:
{3.511)
5
8
288
(20
7757
11.217)
{3.15C)

1767

26093
20
25119

ST

62.390
o Alagg
123,819



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2022

; : KEF RS
Civizas 3ocia! Hoh.smg FIC( he "Company” was incorporated in Eng.and and Wales wnder e Comaanios Ac: 2006 as a punlic
company imited py shares on 29 Septemper 2015 with company number 10402578 snder tae name Civitas RIIT PLC, which was
swosequenty changed o the exwsiing name on 3 Ociooer AC16

The address of (he registered office is Beaufor: House. 51 Now Norin Road, [xeer Devon, FX4 AP The Company is registered as an
investment company ander gection 833 of 1ne Companics Act 2006 1 Ingland and Wa.es and s domiciled In the JUnied Kingdon.
e Company did nol begin crading onil g Novemper 2Uls wacn The shares were adntiied 1o rading on e London Sock
Exchange {"L3E™).

The Company’'s Ordinary sharss are admuted 1o the Ofticial Lis: of 1ne Financia. Condua: Authorily CFCA") and raded on
live LET.

The orncipa. activizy of the Company and s subsidiares ((he "Croup’) s 10 pravide snareo.ders wilia an a.raciive levei of
income, rogether with the porenial lor capia. growth trom invesiing in a ponfo io of socia. homes.

2 Hann P BT A LS

On 31 Decemrper 2020 L-adopied Intematiena. Financia Reporiing Standards TFRS was prougnt inio JK aw and became
JK-adoored International Accounting Standards, with tuture changes to [FRS being scioiect (0 endorsemen: by e UK
Fndorsemen: Board The consolidatad [inancial staemen:s nave (ransidioned o JK-adoped International Accouning
S:andards for (e year ended 31 March 2022 Tnis cnange constinuies a cnange in accouniing tramewor< However. there is no
intoact on recognition, meas. ramen: or disc osure n e year repornad as a resal of the change m framewors,

Tac financial sratentenis are grepared in accordance with UK-adopied Internationa. Accoun:ing Silandards and the app.icab.o
egal requirements of the Comr pantes Act 2006

aave oeen prepared on a hisiorica cos: hasis. as modibled lor the Group's
instraments a: {air vaiue Tarcaga profit or oss.

Tac Group's conso.ddatad Hnancia s
mves:ment prooeriics and derivative linanc

7o Grosp aas caosen o adop: FPRA pest practice guidelines for calculaing <ey aernalive perfornance maasuies. Tacse are
dizc osed on page 35 wil sipporing ¢ac..auons in Acpendix 1 on pagas 129 (o 151

A IeT TR Las e vty PPN
e SR OVEONIRO Y AT M Ter e x TR T D DT ey

tinforntation iy or2gented in Pownds Swering waoich g a.so the functional carrency of the Conmrpany, and ail va..eg
e neares: odsand oouands (FO0CE). excoo. whare ommerwise indicated,

e financ
are rouanded o

S D v
The Grouo penefis from a secure Income siream brom Long .eases with ine Approved Providers and oresent a weli-dversificd
risx. Tne Grouo’s casn pa.ances as a: 31 Marceh 2032 were £83.337 GO0, of which F4.362.000 was na d as resiniered cash. Detaiss of
cnig can oo foand in note 185,

The Company and its Investment Adviser, Civitas Investren: Managemen: Limied ("CIM") continue 10 wors c.ose.y wiin
ne Company's maof counierparies (o moneor e pogiion on ine grownd and shou d 1t oe needed. o offer assistance and
g.idance waere possio ¢ The Board of Directors pelicves that the Company ooerales a ronls: and defensive business mode.
and :nat socia, 1oesing and specia.lst heatncare are vroving 10 be soire of e niore resiien: seciors within ne markel given
al ey are nased on non-discreitonary vublic sector exopendinire and that demand exceeds 5upo.y.

In Novemper 2021 The faciiicy witn H3BC Bans noo was exiended o Novemoer 2022, [n May 2672 1ne lacily win Lioyds Bank p.o
was ex:onded (o Tu'y 2024,

Casn fow forccass vascd on scvere nul plawsio © downside secnarios have oeen run.n panicu.dr the finanaal performrance
of Zonants and a r;d“‘lon inrons As a: 31 March 2027 he ranswol d nave @ drop ay approxintaiely 29% peforc is (oan
covenani is oreacnod. AL he daie ol anproval of this repor, the Company nay s.oslania’ neadroom within its linancia. ‘oan
covenans. The Cor ‘.pan'-f 4.50 her cfits from a scourc incomre siream: from eases witl .ong average Lneoxoirad erm leases As
ares., oo Directors nedeve a e Group 1s well placed o nranage its tinancing and otner ousiness ris<s and nal e Group
Wi, remrain viao e continaing to opceraie and meoct its 1aotties as tney a. due

e Conpany's antic.es of association inciude a requiromen: for Dhe Board 10 oropose an ordinary reso LIon a. e annua.
gonera meeling lotowmg e Ittt annversary from Dae initial puabic offering of (e Company for e Conpany "o conunee in
its carren: lorm (e Conmdncation Rego.stdon). This is the firs: continuaaon vole singe (e Company was sel .o

[f the Continsanon Regoinion s oassed. e Company wil continge ii§ 04510258 as presen: y consi.wiod and proposc 1ae
same reso Laon at every iy anngal genera. meeing thereafer It ae Conunation Reso. L aon is 1ot passed. (e Dircotors wi
ne redaired, wiain six nrondts alter e date of 1hius annua. genera. wreeling., to lonnalae oromo%a s for ronsidoration oy e
gaargaodears tor (e vo.unary ligaeidanon. unitisation reorganisation. or reconsiracion of e Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Afer masging aporoptiaie ond.aries of e Company's nro<ers and Invesiment Adviser. purs.ani (o heir recen: discissions
with a numper of ine Conpany's sharenoiders, “he Direciors are of (e view na: the Connnuaon Reso 4uon wi.. pe
a: the fortheoming ann.ja, gencra, meeing. 7as relecs tie sreng: and nature of the Company's oorfouio. and :oe\mhm ly
ine provision of long-enm accommadation for more tnan 4060 viineran e individua s, According.y. e Diteaiors cxpest
Tarnif e Continuation Reso.uiion is not passed. an cven: waich e Directors consider (o oe hignaly remoe. formu.ating andd
impiementing any $.eh proposa & would require 1ne Company 1o conin.e opzranons for a period of a3 .cast 12 mon:hs from

e daie of aporova. of 1ne Company's financial staenens.

Tae Board is. inerefore. of (o apinion @nat ine going concern pasis adopied in e preparauon of the ¢onso dated financla.
slalements is appropriae

setamwlarats amendoient, and luteepraiationgs

The following new slandards are now cffcciive and nave ogen adonied tor 1he year cnded 31 March 2022

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments; Recognition and Measurement’, JFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’
and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (cifcclive lor periods acginning on or after 1 Jan.ary 2621). Tnese amendmen's address iss.og |
mign atfec: financia. reporang when an oxisting interes: rate bencnmar< i rep.acod wit an aermaiye seno :
increstrate Tne Growo's borrowings wii Loyds Bane p < and FISBC Bans PLC and Naiona! Wesunins.er Bang< P ¢ nave
rransinoned from e London Tnteranans Offer Raze (LIBOR) bencamarg o e Sterang Overnigni Index Average (SONTA)
oenenmar<. The rangilion 1as not ed o a maera. Cnange in overa’. Dorrowing coss

sl vl i L B R R L I R LA

T fo.owing are new standards, inicroreacions dnd amendnmeanis which arc no: yo: offee:
adozied in s lancial informacion, tnatwi  or may aave an oflesion e CroLo's [Lure linancia s.aiemonts

ive and ave nol ocen cary

e et e s

* Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements {cffecuve for peniods osginning on or atiar 1]an.ary 26
< arilies that gaplales are cassified as ciler current or non-current deoending on e nghie tas exist aliae end of |
reooning period and not expeciaions of or aciua. evenis alier e reporing da Toe aniendments 4 80 give ¢ anficalon

0 e detinion of 5o omentol a lapliy The amendmenss ate not expecied 1o nave a signdican: mrpac: on he
Lreoaraion of ine financla. sa’eme

T8

¢ Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ cifecuve for neriods beginning on or afier 1 lan.ary 20270 gives

c.arifica:lon on e recoaniion of coningen: daniidies a acgaigon and c.anfics hal contingsn asseis 10 ...d not oo
ecognised al e acquisiion date Tag amendrrents are no: cxgecied 1o ave a signihean i 0act on 1ac proparation of

» financia. s:atemen

¢ Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' cffective tor penods ocginning on
orafier Ulan.ary 20220 gives clarification on cosis o inc’ude in estimanung tae cost ot fo L 1ng a ¢ontrac: for 1ne purcose
of assessing wnoinar [1al coniras is onero.s. 71e amendr ent are no: sxpecied o aave a sigmiflicant impac: sn e
orcparation ol e financia. slateneny

¢ Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' (eflocuve tor oonads aeginning on oratier 1 lan.ary 2072) - gives
carnficanon an the fees an enilty me.Ldes wnen assessing wcnier e terms ol a new or moadified finanoa. iaoiiy are
sunslanua 'y ditferon: from ne terms ol e origina. daoiily. Tae amendmenis are nos :?xp:‘.c:cd 10 1ave a signihean:
P 04de DN N0 DICDArdallon ol e tinanaia. staemen's

= Amendmenis to JAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ cifccivs for geriods nogimning on or afior 1 Jan_ary
31 are miended o ne poenwties in deciding whien aocosning 0o es 10 dise.oso In taclr financla, satamenig The
0 avo asignificant e odot on e oreparason of Tae financia. slalemens

20

amrendnenis are no e
¢« AmendmentstolAS 8 ‘Accounung Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (cifconve for periods

oeginning on or alter 1]an .ary 2 in roduce e detiniion ot an accouning osamasc and inc..ds ooer arendnong

@ o eniies disling.LIsa CHanges in acCoLwning esimalcs from CHanges in accoundng 9o wies Tae amendimenis are
oxoec.ed o nade a significan imoact on tac oregaration of ne fimanoa. statcren.s

nas

P T e L R RN

[FRS 8 Ogcra’ing Sogirenis reg..ires opera’ ing sogmenss o o ldemiticd 50 10 0asis of nerna. lmaneia. rooors acoos
COMOONCRS O Ta¢ Crowd al ars g . ary re 0/ e C uel Oacraiing Decision Ma<er walenin tae Crow o'

de cgated « 2 Imes.mc CAdviscr v aas farmred an Exca L v Tearn nordsr 1o 8. 0Cate risoLrees 1o . 16§ JTT‘“I"L 8 -mi el
ASSCSS 1L o0 rrcarn“an:-s'.

Touve Tecam contaln financia. informanon az a Gro

e nerna. thancia reporss reocived oy Tac Insnsimen: Advisers k
sontdined i esc rcpors _md Aol s reonared

CVCOAs a wnao oand D0re are no reconTing Iems oo Iwaen 0o e
e consodancd inanoa siacman:s




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The Diractors consider the Growp's oroperty oordoio represenis a coherenl and diversitied porito io wit simrar cconomie
craracteristics and as a restt, the wao e poriiciio of properties reprosenis a single operating segmaent [n e view of the
Direciors there is according'y one repor.ab.c scgmen: under e provisions of IFR3 8

Al of the Group's properties are nascd in the UK Geograpnica. information is provided 1o ens.re como fanaee with the
diversificaton reguiremen:ts of the Company oiner than thig no geograoical grouping 1s conained in any of the interna.
financia. reports provided 1o e Tnvesument Adviser's Execulive Team and, Lneretore no geograpalcal segnienia. analysis s
required by IFTS 8.

Tae Direciors nowe the reguirenanis in [FRS 8 Paragraon 34 peramning 1o entites nder common contro. and contiom ha:
pota Aucdand Home 3o ddions and Gua itas Howsing (as ‘essees of the Company’s invesimert: rea es:ael are wnder common
control of Twe Soca. Housing Family CIC {"7SHE) The percentage and sum ota! of e Company's annud. rent rol. periaining
o these couwnierparbes as if they werc considered 1o 0o a ‘single customer’ can pe found in note 28.0 and on vage 15 of the
Annual Repor.

A0 Srgaehvant acoouning judgemian VATRL atdd S upitn s
In the app.cation of (e Crouo's accouniing policies, which are descriced in noe 4.0, the Direciors are required (o maxe

inal are na! readi y apparern:

sadgoments. csimates and assumoions ano.T e carrying amournig of asseis and 1aoi i
trom oner sodrces. Tae adgenents, estimates and associated assumptions tnat nave a significan: rs« of causing a materia.
ad;usimen: (o e carrying amo.n:s of assets and haollines witnin e finanoal year are outlined oglow:

AT TR AT ey fnupntme ! pripgeety
e Crouo L5CS Tac valuaton carricd out oy s independent valuer asg the faw va ue of iis oroperiy nordoe.io The vaialon is
pased Jpon assampaons inc.ading fuure renta. income and e approgriate discouni rate. The valuers also make reflerence (o
marze! evidence of ransaction prices for sinciar prooeries. Furhar informacion is provided in no:c 15.0.

The Gro.o's nroperiies 1ave deen indepondenty vaiuoed by Jones Lang LaSa e Limiled CJLI or tne “Va'uet™) in accordanae
witn e currens Roval [nsitation of Charicred S;rvcyorff Valaanon - Glopal Standards. incorporaung e IVS, and the RICS
Va.aadon Clooa. Standards 2617 UK nationa. s.oop.emen: ((he RICS "Red Boo<™) ILL s one of tie mos: recognmsad ()f()[(—";‘?loha
firms within socia hoasing val.aion and nas g tficient curren: coca. and natona. <now’=dge of 0o socia. nodsing genera iy
and Speciaisr Seopnorcd Houging (S8 and 1as e g8 and andarsandmg o Loadariake e va. L aiions aom oe s, y

Wi respec: to ne Growo's congolidaaed tinancia staemrenis, invesinion, oroneriss are vaieed a tcir fair vasde atearn
ba ance gshee. date in accordance wita IFRS 13, Fair va .o measarements show.d oc proscnicd and ¢lassified using a fair va .o
Niararchy Thalret ecs e signiticance of (ne inpads wsed m s measarenen's, according o the to owing .eve s

Levell Unad; us

Level 2 InuL:s othe
as onces! or indircety (thar is. derived from prnices)

d. quotcd prices for tdentical asse’s and tapilities in acive yoicaly guoted) n“ar( 3

“han quoted orices moesded whinin Leve. 1thar dre observate tor tne asse or laab ity einer diree:

Lae asgser or haoilly tat are nor nased on ooservable marke: data funenservao e inpaig) Va..e 18 the
Diraclors’ pesi esiimraie, nazed on advice trom re evan: know!ledgean o expers, gse of recognised valudaion
'e—*f'ﬂniq' e and a dolcrminazion of waica assuntptions shou.d oe apeldced in valuing suci asscs and witn
canicu.ar foc.s on e specific atripu:es of ine Invesimen:s amse.ves,

Level 3

Clven ne pespoge nalare of eachrof tre Crowps investmenis, (nc oaridcw.ar requiremoents of due diligence and inanaia:
conribuion ootallicd from e vendors together witn the rocent emergence of 35MH. a . of the Crowo's Investmen? prooeriles
led in Teve 3

are mng

. cafant Rlugsit g o e o Shaat T iy
Tae Groog acqulres gubsidiarics at own invesinten: wroperies. AT e dme of acquastion. e Crodo considers wie her cacn
ACQLISLINN TeRTeses e acguisiion ol @ husiness or 11e acqguisiion ol an assel. Managemen: considers (ae suostance of 1ne

and activiues of o :"!C(‘{.J'U’Cd andiyin delerming ng Whelner e acgJisi lon rQOrasen’s (e acqIsiIon O 8 nusiness.

BRI

e CI'OJ;) ACC0LINE for an acgusidon as a buginass comaination whore an m.egraica gt of acivitias is acguared in addizion
Vv oare ol ireased ag ousiness

10 12 proper. Wacre suca acgasiidons are no! judged o oo g acguisinon of a business. -
contoindiions. Ratnor e cost o acgaire e corpora:e entiy ig allocaied getween the wenillao ¢ asses and naointics of &
21ty ocased spoR el realive fair va ues al e acgaisidon dae According.y. no goodwi.. or additlonal deferred tax anse

2E0Z2 SLNNODDY ANV 140044



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

A corporaie acguistions imade dening the year have oeen ‘Teazed as asse! gurchases rather 2ian nnLsiness comainations
pecause no inegrated selof acivities was acquiraed.

uring the yvear e Crowp entered inio a iransaciion to acqJire 2he freeno.d properties operated ay CPI Care lumied Jpon
N0 Acgualsiion of e company: the propertics were rransterred into 9Icr group companies and e conpany acquired.
a.ong with 15 associaicd operalions. was so.d "o Envivoe Corundam Bidro Limntied Furier detals are gnown in noe 160 10 ne
financta) siaiemenss.

The acqaired companics me: e definition of a puginess ander [FRS 3, and ne trangaciion was therefore recorded as a
b.sincss comoination

Becasse the Growp acg.ired the company with (ne inent 1o se.. 1ne pusiness, management app. led Tne shor-cut menod
under [FRS 5 - Subsidiaries acquired wiin a view 10 resdle. Jnder s me:hod, he suosidiary is recorded a fair va.ue oss costs
10 se.and here ks o requirenten. (o laim va we e suosidiary's individoal asse:s and aoniies

: Too, o RSprE v H e lermm Tt

Tae GroLn nas acgudred invesiment 9rogeriss 1al dre .08l [0 COIrmerad. Droperty eases wil Approved Providers. The
Gro.p as demormined. nased on an ovaldazion ot 1ae rerms and conditlons of the arrangemens. pariac, . ary 1he duration
of the _ease torrs and nunim . .casc paymronts, thatic reiains a @ ne significan: ris<s and rewards of owners o of nese
properies and so accoLnis (O 1 CASeS as oparaling .£ases,

R N ST

i

E RALH IO SRR fui® IR
Civias Socta H’Ul‘qm g FLC is & Rea FS ae Invesinten: CREITT Tae UK RET regume app.ies waen entiies meet cerain
conditlons witn the effec fat e incoms orofitg dnd caotda. gams ol e qud.ilying property renia. nasiness are examol fron:

tax. Winin inesa conditions a1 cast 90% of the Crowp's propery incomre .yl oe disiriosted as dividends .o Saareno.ders
and e Gro.p must ens.re al 1c DIoOPery renta. 0.Siness reprosents more an 75% of wola. profits and assews [1is
management’s wdgemen: alne Crowp wio coniines 10 qeaily as a REIT for ine foreseesaoie fuiace

I I PR R SR

The principa. accooniing o0 iaes agpaed in the preparaton of Tac consoldated financia. statemens are sel oLl ne.ow The
201Cies ndve geen Lonsizen: y anp ied 10 an genods prescnied, Un.ess 91orwise staed.

Tona et

Ao conso dated financia staiomoenis comprige Tag finanaa. mtormanon of e Group ag o) e year end dae

;
Swosidianes are a. ontiics over wiuch tha Grouo ndas conirol. Tae Croun Conro.s an enily whaen e Croup s cxnosaod o

OF 1188 [IgN'S 0. Vanao.c roturns from s involyemen: witn 1ne enity and nas e aniiy o altec Lose relams cAro.ga s
powcer (o direc: e aciivicies of (e cniity. AL Inra-groL rangacions. oa.ances. income and exoanses are & iminaed on
conseo.datton Tae tinanca. infornadion of tho suogidiaries is e Lded in e conso idazed financia. statemen:s from e dae
1nal Conira. commeneas unt e d 1Al Conoo. cnases

e e datter a2 franslar aen e

If an eguity interes: in a s.osidiary i3 ransferred oul a controling interes: coniin.e
caange m ownergio inicrest 18 accounied for as an eqaiy ransaction

Acco.ning godcies ol e soosidiariay are ConsiEient Wi g poadies adoged | 12 Comrnany

- L L YR LA

Invesimroen: Droosery, wilo 18 oroperyy a2.d o earn renia.s and/or tor capia aporeciaion, i= ifutia.y measarcd at cost ocing
ae fawr va o of tne consideraton given. ine Lding expendi are tnat s direc v alirio sao ¢ o A aggaisinon of tac invesinten:
oroecny Afcrinnia COGNIION, INVESTINSN. Qropery i edalig fdir va e at e aa anco gncel dae Gamns and .ossc
artsing frome coanges inac far va, e of iInvesimean: aran are Ind. W dedin orotiv ar oss for tao penod inwnicn
e Congodaied Siatemen: of Comorenonsive Income

a

s I

LW STONOIMIG 9enellis are associaed viin .
Aeads and Operatng SXDCNSos arc nel Jagliallss

cxoondr. e s capradsed on g wann g 9ronan L
airs and mam cnance arc exoensed as incurred Oy

S 08eq.Ls
Cngoing

ANLINYERIITONT OIOOeTY 18 :i:—tr:ﬁ":nngod Loon disnosa. Or WAL 1A HIVCSIMA Draosry 18 aorwranen: ¥ wiadrawn fron Lse

REFMORT AND ACCOUNTS 2022

= and no t.ure cconomite penelliy are cxoocied trom 1ac d1sposa.. ANy gam or o%s artsing on dorceogniian of e oropersy

% (cac. . aed as e differonce nelwesn SNl disnosa oroccods and TnC carryIng arrag LIt ol ne assn 1sans LW Ired inoarafr or
& 088 1IN 1ne penod 1IN W icn e pronerty 15 derceognsed

B - )

o Signihican: ac Lving Lcdgements. osimates and dssomonons made for Cwva Laton of invesimen: orooeraes ars discussed

m naowe 30
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-]




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

ERCI W S
[.cases are c.assified as finance eases whenever 1he lenrs of the wcase iransfer sabsianaaly a. heris<s and rewards of

ownership @ e essee. A othier eases are classitiod as operating leases.

The Company has determined that it retains a.b e signitican: riscs and rewards of ownoersnip of 1nc oroperties and accodns
lor e contrac:s as operating icascs as discussed in now 3.3,

Properiies cased ou! under operating .cases are nc.uded ininves:imen: property in the Conseodidated Statemen: of Financia’
Posiion. Ren lm ome from oporating leazes is recognised on a siraight Jne oasis over (e lerm ol e re evant gases.

Leasc incenive Cosis are recognised as an asse: and amordised over tne ife of the ‘case.

S04 Froananat Assets

o ue

e Group classifies ITs inancia. asse’g 1n e fo_ owing meas.remean calcgonaes:

®  [7108C 10 oe meagdred subseqoenty al falr vai.a (01maor tardugn other com preacnsive income or taronga arofit or Loss) and
e (1082 10 pe meas.ared at amortised cost.

The c.assilicatdon depends on ne endy’s ousiness wodce! for managing e tinancial asse:s and D@ conraci.a, enms of e
casa fows. For assets measured at fair va ue gaing and .ossos wil oliher oce recorded i orolis or 'oss or omner comprehensive
income.

Lot Teor N eia L A

Trade and otner receivab es ara armoanis due in The ordinary course of ousiness If oo’ ection iz cxnecied In one year or ess.
ey are ¢ assilied as carrent assels. Tl nod they are presented ag non -curren: asscts.

Trade recelvan.es are recognised inidlasy autair va w2 and s.abgeqLenty are measared at amoriscd cos: Lsing ae offcolive
in:erest method. ‘ess impairntan: provision 7o Cro.:p 1o ds e rade receivan es wiil (e opjecive 10 COLeC L1g conTacida.
casn f.ows,

R

e Grosps financial assals are suoect o e exopeciad credil oss mode.

For trada receivan es ine Groun aones ine sire o ified approacs pertratied oy TFRS 9, waich reguires expecicd ifeinre losscs
~0 oo recogniscd from mita. recogniion of 1ac roceivao.cs

The gxpecied L0ss rales are pascd on e pavmen: orohies of lcase Incoame over a period ot Wp 0 12 monins before 31 Maren
2022 0r 1 Apre 2021 respecively, and the correspondmg aistonca. crediz osses exoenenced wiin iis period. asiorica
088 rates are adjuasied o ret ec curren: and forward-_oo<ing mformaion on macroccononie faciors atfecung e haoi iy

ot tieenanis o sel'e ae recaivanie Suon forward- coxing intornaion wou.d ine.ade cnanges i cconomic, rog.aaiory.
echnoiogical and environmensa. taciors (sach as indusiry 04 0o CDP ey oynan: and 0o.ncs) exierna. marge indicaors:

and enan: case

Rased on ine asgessmeon: and e specific wors 1natis wnderway aroand co. ocuon of agad arrears, a orovision ol
F229 000 {2021 £285 40001 nas oeen reficeiad in the ann.al 108078

Trade recervao.es are wrion off Wwhon tacre 18 No 1oasnnan © 0xXnostalinon of recovery.

Indicaiorg ar Lhers 18 No reasonao.e cxpeciaion of recovery ine.udo, among olers, tho oronanidty of insolvenoy or
significan: financia diftica oes of (e deotor Impaired dep's dare derecogniscd waen D00y are assessed as Jnoon. ocla.e

Cas1 and casn equiva enis Nne.. casam hand. casa e.d oy Lawyvers and Lgaddiy fonds witn a enm of ne more tnan Tarne
monas nal are readi Y CONVErING € a <NVN an ouit. of casyand whca are S_‘O.CCZ O dan iilSlgI’llfI An. rise of ¢ S1aTgos i Va0

don noney e d oy awyers in

Resiricied casa represenis amo .ns acad lor specdic comnirmaen:s, lenant deoosits and re:
1ievemoen: of cerain condinons. omer relcniony and <asn segregaiod W fund

Ter AUO0N 1O dsterrad 2dYMan's Lo oo <

repair, maincnance and IPOTOVEmMonT works 1o nring ‘he properiics sp 1o fauslaciory siandards tor tac Crowo and hoenants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

ARFL I A JEEANE REEY B SR TR

Dervaiive hinancial instrumen:s. which comprise interes: rate swaps for nedging parposes, are ininally recognised a: tair va .c
ar acquisition and arc subscquent.y mcas ired & far va..e. peing e esiimated amount that tne Group wo. d receive or pay
o se.. or ransicr the agreemen: at tho period end date. tading into ACCoLN: <UITENT Intcrest raic cxpeciations and the carren:
credis rating of :ac lender and 1ts counterparties. Tae INSTUMeN: may oe i 4sset or a dapility. The gan or .0ss a: eacn tair
va_Je remreasuramen: dae is recogmsed in the Groun's Conso idated §atemen: of Comroprenensive Income.

The GroLp «8es val.alion ¢ niq.cs (nal are appropriate in tho arcumstances and for which salflicient data s avai‘aoic
o measdre fair value. maxinising ihe ase of re evan: observab.o inpics and minimising the ase of Jnobservap.e inpu's
significan: 1o 1ne fair va..le measurameaent as a who.c.

Other shan derivative financia. ins:ramrens which are not designa:ed as hedging insiramenss. e Group does no: have any
assets nc.d for rrading nor does 17 voluntari'y ciassify any financial asses as being at fair va.uc through profiz or loss.

1A Froadaneaat hamiities

The Croup recognisces a inanoal dapility waen 1 lirs: becomes a party o e contracia. rigats and opagations in the

COnract

A lnanaa. Saonites ars intia iy recognised a: fair vat.e, minas (n 2he case of a financla. dabi’iny thatis not at lair 7a .e
wroLgn profi or [oss) ransacion cosis at are direcly atriontanie 1o 1ss.ing e financial dapl iy, Financia Tiabiues are

swosegLanty measared at anorised o Lness e Grosp opted to measdre a daollly a: {air va Le rowgn profil or Loss

Atinancia. anlty is derecogmsacd woaen tne obagation wnder tac 1aol iy s dischargoed, cancelled or expires

Trade and onar sayao.es are classificd as currens: daoiaaes il paymrent is die witain one year or .ess I not, iy are presenied
lanitnes. Trade and o7acr payaoies ate recognised initla .y ad their tair va.de and suoscquenty meas.red al
LNt senied. The falr value of a non-interest pearing Jdaollity is Ls diseo aned repaymen: amoun: i e due

ar, discoaning is omised

a3 NON-LIrai.
damoriased cos
dae of ne danniyis

AN onge

A

A vanc<and oiner porrowings ara iniua’ 7 recognise
recognition. a.. pans andg ocr aorrowings are measared aramorised cost
1. of D12 oank oorrowings are amorised nro.gh e Gre
TINETLren: on a g1 1-ne oasis.

d atfair va.Le (oss directy atno.ao.e ransacion cosis Atierinitia.
sy e eftfecilve interes: ronod Any
s 5.awemen: of

e ot [P R I

or a financial laoliy Poaso refer 1o e accouaning 00agy in notc 4.4

Derivalive finanoa insrromenis may oe a flinancia assoe:
iordo-ais

445 brouiesions
Provisions are recogniged waen (ne Grosp nas a prosent oo.igainon{ ega. or consiruelive) as a res. . of a past eveniinis
aronan.o saas e GroLo wi L ne reguired 1o seile tnat ooldgadon and a reac e esinae can oo made of e amoln: of e

Q0 gaiton.

Tho amoun: recognised as a orovision 1s e nesl asim of Tae consideranon requlred ©© 30708 110 DICICNT OORFAIOIL AT 10
ga.ance sacedate. a<ing into dceoLn Die rsds and sneerainiies g.rrounding e obaigation

Taxaion onae orolil or oss for e oenod not excmo: Lnder JK REIT regLatons s compnsaed of current and deforred tax Tax
s recognised n e Consoadated taomen: of Comoreasnsive [NCom e axes RE o loms recognised
asa dITac Movenan: i Sgully W e ©asc 1718 recogniged 4s a diree movement in egany, Cuarrent W@z 18 oxocoied ax
payao.e on any non-REIT axao e anoome tor ing period. WSINg tax rates enaciad or sonsanivey enacied 4t e 04 ance s.aeal
dae and any ad, .=iron (o a¥ payan.o n respecl of provioLs penods

148 neaen

Thae carren: lax onargs s cao.aaed on ormfig arieng n e penod and in accordancs witl LOg1s ainon Wi
cnacicd or swosanialy cnacied at L 04.ange s daie

Dedarrad ax g orovitod on omporary itlerenses 0eIwWoCn A Carrgng am oLns of as and daoiaics far finanaa
reporing 0.rooses and e amo . n.s sed fornaxaaon 9.r00scs Tac amo.n: of dafarrad tax tralis oroided 18 nased on
2d manner of redasation or gen ement of Doz carrying anto .nt o asseis and Janizs LsIng tar raes snacied or
ey enaced al e 0aanceg enee dae

ne exoel

g.0z4anti




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Pittactdeesriea!
Tne Crour's objogtives when managing capital a
orovide reruams [or sharcnolders and o mainzain an opima. ¢

W sdlegrard tve Growp's ani 11y o continue as a going concern in ardar o
izal siructare o reduce the cost ol capizal

Caoite asses cororise e fo owing:

21 March 2022 31 March 2021

£000 flunn
Proceeds fron: the issue of Qrdinary snares and retained earnings 675,547 6735498
RBank and .oan norrowings 252,050 352120

Total " ' ' o 1027597 1025618

Unal the Group is [y invested and pending re-invesimen: of digiriowiion of cash recerpts, the Groun wio inves: in casn, casa
cqguiva.enis, near cash ingstraments and mongy marge: inglranients.

Tae reciors may WS geanng 1o enaance equiy retdrns The eve, ol gorrowing wi.. be on a proden: pasig for e assel c.ass
and wi.. gee o acheve a ow cos ol tunds, whir sl main:aining the Lexioiliy in the nderying security requiremren:s and ine
sruciure of thc Croup,

e Crowp may. foliowing a decision of the Board, raisc dent fromr oan<s and/for the capita’ marke's and the aggregdte
ootrowings of :ne Crodp wil a Ways D L0000 an aoso.Wle raximane, ca culaed at e dme of drawdown, of below 40% of
e Gross Assel Va e on a fuy invesied basis.

4% Trowvlemds i duie e sy oftiude ey

anrenis in e year in wohch sy are paid.

Dradends are ine oded m e tinancia

P Rentalainonms

Renial income from invesimen: nrogery 1s recognised on a siraight-ine nasis over ine farm of ongoing .eazes and is snown
grass of any UK income tax. Lease incantives are soread evenly Over ©ao .case erim.

Insurance recharges and oter sintLar receip:s are recognised winder IFRS 15 Revenue [rom conracs wiin cuasomers. and are
incododin ne! rental and prooery incomrea gross of the related cosg as the Directors consider ae Group acis as princpa’ in
-his respect.

2

TATE LTI L

Finance incomre is recognised as interes.. and s accrued on casn and cash eqaiva.en: pa.ances ned py the Grouo,

{13 Finanon rnat,

Finance cosis consis: of iInteres: and onmer ¢osts tha: the Crown incJars in conneciion wivh oans< and oher porrowings. Bang
interest and pank caarges 4re rocognisad on an accrua s nasis, Borrowing ransaction costs are amwortised wsing (e offcctive
NiCrast rate,

T L R
AL expenses. o oding invesirent advisory tees, are recogmsed i e Consoddated Satemen: of Camorenensive ncome on
Aan ararsals nasis.

Phe G o IR
T costs of isg.ng or rcacgudring cqulty msrorenis (G110 ahn in a o.siness commnaciont are accouanicd (or as a dedoalion

fron: eq .y,

LI P B L AP BER BE E o W S

e comg, including direc vy atriocan.e ransacions cost s of purenasing e Company’s Gwn $hares 1o o ae.d in reasury is
deducied from ey and "he cosigare snown in e Conso idaied Slarcment of Changes in La.i v Consideranon received,
net of ransaction coss for the rosaic of Tnese snares is 4 sonc .ded in equiy. Walks: e Company no.ds §7arcs in reas.ary.

e a cua auons lor nel assel value and eanungs per saare are ad Lsied w0 excoude nese shares,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

en.al ncore rom invesimen: proper
Ren: siralgas line ad;usments
Lease inceniive amoriisation

Rechargeab.c costs received

Rentalincome
Less direc: property exoenses
Net rental income

Fot the

year ended
3tMarch 2022
£'000

v : 51,038

529
(926}

985

51636
(978)

Yor the

year ended
31 March 2021
£ 000

18201
72
(439
886
“49.020
(1175)

_.50.658

Ecchargeable cosis received reoresen:
Aporoved Providers and are accoonted lor .nder [IFRS 13 Revenoa lron conrac:s wita

msarance and seraice charge cosis pald oy e Crodp and recharged o the
cusiomers

47.845

Direct properiy axpenses reoresen’ ins.rance and service ¢aarge coss of £995.000 (2021 M885.000) and nad deoot credis of

F17.000 (2021 £289.000 cxponsed

AS Dar
geemen: of a

selease agreemrenis wist o Groop and Aporoved Providers tae Agoroved Providers are responsio.e or e
aresen: and future rates. laxes and oCT impositions payaoie m respect of e QTODENY AS 4 resuwt no furiaer

diren propeny exnenses waorg incurred

Direciors fees

Emp oyers Kaldona. Insurance Conino.iions

Tne Direetors arc rentuncrated for Taeir services in accordance wit e Remaneralion Poocy weiuen

winie Riterars romanceralion may oo

Digc.osares req.ared ny 120 Comoanies

conringions and oension entiemen.

73

on oayges 73 0 75 in e Remr Lneraton Reoor and torm par: of sese Financia

Fartoo

vy oot R R SRERR LS AY

Tae Crowo ad no emo.ooyees darng -

Adiisory lee

Total

i

Jase

nascd Loon e

fo__cre/ing nasis

a) on oAl gar ot e e

1= year v

as Invesimen: Managomwan: Taried JCIM s s
T
. TVa Lom
remorcnases of snares i e ornod oot

AgsolVa .e Lt

For the
year ended
31 March 2022

__Eowo

190
16

Eon the

year ended
ST MAarch 262t
£ noo

182

14

206

scn The Remuneranon Foacy is aporaved oy snareno. ders.

198

SCLS [aramelors wit 1in

ACT 2005 on Directors’ remancration iInc..ding sa_aries. snarc oplions, pension
arndd noge soeatied oy e liging Ro 2o of e Finanaia, Condoeol ALority are ing. .ded

Slaements

2 ni) omer man ae Dirsc.ors.

For the

year ended
31 March 2022
£'000

6132
6.132

1500y Fooz1a, o0 AN amoLn: e

tod
ORI IOOCNLY anng need o0 mars

W

yioand e Loing T2

1 KL anama nocgea oM ols oy pan of

Feur the

year ended
A March 2023
£ Nty

3117

EME

covnad Invesieens Adwviscr of ac Company Jnder g curran:

din resoec: of eacn Goarer in 2acn

4l e e eLan e fas ad sied forissues or
Coaoanan on e

Mel Asge Va el



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

b) on a: par: of the Net Asset Va.oe over 7250 miaon and .o o and e ading £500 miion. an anoan: equa. .o 89 ot such
par: of ine Net Assel Va L

) ot tnal pars of tne Net Asset Va ue over £300 iridon and «p o and mc.ding 1 oiion. an anownt eg.al o G.68% of such
part of e Net Assel Vale:

d) onaa par of the Net Assel Va. e over 71 nilion. an amoan! equal 10 07% of s.ch oan of ne Kel Assel Val.e,

The appoinimen: of Ui Invesaren: Adviser 314, condinue in force an.ess and unci ierminaled ov either palty giving to 2w

oher no:less 1nan 12 monis writon noice, sLat Noce ot o exolre earlier (nan 30 May 2024

WS vl et bl mlials s e e

77777 - o S 7 Fot the o Yot [l;lt‘

51 March oz Marcn S0

E'D00 raga

Lecjdi an'd"profcssifma'l frcs - T - T i - ___-'1:4-59 1.044
Adminisiraiion fees 1,037 983
Cons._lancy fces 136 115
Audit lees 340 3ol
ADOITIVE COSLS 156 174
Vadadion fecs 100 5
Depnsitary lees 71 n
Granis and donations 26 19
Ins.rance 84 35
Markeing 343 179
Regulatory feeg 25 19
Sandry expenses 92 56
Total ' T 3809 3183

en: .ega. and protessiona. fees incarrad inro.ation 10 e acguisiiion of invesiment properies and
Al were considered gLl 5.08800.610 Y d00KEe

Aoorive coss repre
proposcd snarc issues |

el PO Laranaty o0kl L s T

¢ fo..owIng sorvices from

Tne Crodp nas ooained

For the Foor e

year ended year ended
o o e e M
Fees payable to the group’s auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:
Asdii of the Groups financial staicmen:s: 296 272
ALdit ol sLosidiary convpanies’ - 32
Total fees paya.bie for audit services - - i ' 296 ERLE
Fees payable to the group’s auditors and their associates for other services:
Andirreaaed services  revien Of Die nd | year hinanoca glaenien.s 44 37
CQoar services 62

o T 402 31

1 [ncludes £18 Q00 2021 £50,000) cost e lauon bo the prior year awdn
4 Most subsidary compames Ale cxemplt om addit as doetarled on pages 186
3 This amount 15 mnacluded withio prepayments and athet reoevables a1 31 March 2022

=
2
=
=
Z
2
=z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

FLEN 3
For the Forthe
year ended year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
E00G 2000

Interes: and dividends received on iqu.idity funds 4 n
3 g

Bank tnteres: recervad
7 20

Total
1.0 Finance exaense

For the tor the
year ended year ended
3t March 2022 31March 2021
o £'900 £'900
Bank charges 6 3
5415

Tnieres: paid and payao.c on oan< porrowings and derivaives 8,907
Amorisainon of .oan arrangement foo

Loan secanty fces

OLoner inieres:

Total ' L L , x«

i
a UK RLIT, the Group is exemp from corporation ax on iae profits and gains from s propery invesimen: pusiness,
e GroLo
Litying

AS o
orovided It mees cerain conditions as se2 021 m e JK REIT reg..atons. For :ne curren’ year ended 31 March 262
did nol nave any non-g .a dving protus and accordingly tners g nio lax charge in e year I hero were any non-q.
orotrs and gains, Jese wou d pe guhjecl o corporation ax

I is ass.med nat e Growp wio contin.e 1o os a JKREIT for tac foresesao e loiure s.oh ina delerred lax nas not oce
recognisad on temporary diffcrances re alng Lo e Dropery renia 0Lsiness

For the For Hie
year ended vear ended
31March 2022 31 March 2021
o £'uuo - £ 00
Carporaion :ax cnarge for tie year -

Tae tax charge [or ne yaar i3 .es3 1nan e gandard rate of corporaton tax in e TK 0l 197, Thae ditfcrences are exp.ained oc.ow

For the Fou the

yeat ended year ended
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
£ 000 £ 0

Group

Profr oelore taration

K cornaralion ax rac

Tacoreldca axal JK corporalon layrac
Fifec:s ot

Change in va .o of examdl InVesiren Drogeries (2,331
Ex: REIT incane {6,598)

Amo.ns nal deduciio o [or tax o.rnoses (230) 171
656 333

pEON

Inuiasad resid la oorrent

Total -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Adeferred tax asse: of £1.268.00C (2021 £1.508,000) nas no: been racognised in respoect ol ine anaidsed residua, curren: year
L0880 A8 1018 ney ancicinated tnal sufbicient residua. orofes wi'’ ne generaed in tac fuioro,

The siandard rate of corporation tax is curranily 19%.Inoae Soring Buadget 2021 e UK Governneent announesed that from
T Apri; 2023 (1o corgoration @ax rate will increase to 25% fratner than reiraining at 19%. as previous.y anacicd) This new aw was
z.0sianlively cnacted on 24 May 2021

REIT cxempe inconie includes property renta. Inceme that g oxempt rom UK Corparation 7ax in accordance with Far: 12 of
Corporaion Tax Act 2010

TR PR Varniags put

Earnings par share ("EPS7) amoan:s are ca caiaed oy dividing profi: for tac year atributan:e o ordimary equly noiders of Die
Company oy ae waigniad average nomoer ol Ordinary saares in iss .e during he year.

e cawcuanon of pasie and dituicd earnings ner sharc is nasad an e to owing:

For the Fou the

vear ended year enged
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
R —_— I N - —_— — - oo EOMO - FEO0
Calculation of Earnings per share
WNet orofit avribuarap.e o Ordinary snarcaciders (£000) 44,754 35,075
Weighted avoerage nomoer of Ordinary snares (exc oding snares ne d inreasary) 618,797,942 621.5351.859
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 7.23p 3,830
S RCN
Far the Feor the
year ended yeat ended
31 March 2022 21 March 2021
. . L _ R . o _ _ E'q_l]g_ E 0
Dividend of L3500 tor oae 3 montas o 31 Marca 2621
(L3250 3 monins o 3 March 2020} 8,403 8,237
Dividend of 138750 for ine 3 monias to 30 [ane 2021
(13500 3 monins o 30 June 2020; 8,637 8332
Drvidend of 138750 for tnc 3 mon:ns (0 30 Seoenaer 2071
113500 3 moning 1o 30 Scotemosr 20200 8,555 8392
Dividend of L38750 for the 3 monins 10 3] Decemiber 72071
11.350p 3 monias (o 31 Docembar 2021 8.498 Ry
Total 34,093 33.413

Cn 11 May 2G2 Company annoonced a dividend of 13875 nence por share in respoec: of e period 1January 2027 .0
31 Marca 2022 ANg FEA474000 The dividend paymen: was made on 728 Tune 2022 0 snarehoders on ine register as a: 20 May
2C22. The financia. statemren:s do nos ref ocs s us dividend The dividend was paid as a REIT orooery income diginipaaon (PIDY

2202 SLNNODIOV NV LdGdd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Fot the tat the

year ended year ended
31March 2022 31 March 2021
goey £ou0

Ba_ance a:roie'ginning of year 915,589 878743
Property acquisiions 37198 19.129
Acquisition cos:s 2.086 1056
Lease imncen:ives and ran: sralgns ine ad Lsimonss recognised 1.614 11150
Change in law va..e 12,269 5.511
advise e B ’ h T 968,756 915589

(23,519) (21.805)
945237 893584

Varue advised oy (e 0roperty va.ucrs
Less leasc incentive asseis and ren: siraigh

Total

Acgulsitions e .de capiia oxpanditure (o cnance enabe space of FHB18 000 (2621 74077 00).

D.ring he year :ac Growp acg.aired a oroper.y no ding company trom: Hereva Properues Limited whien 16 < asses lolaling
£8.511L.000. Taese are ine Lded within Propery Acqusiions in 1o note a00ve,

Hereva Prooseraes Lurited is a suosidiary of Specia ist Hea.incare Operations Lirmred (3HOM Andrew Dawocr and Tom Padmore
(pot direciars of e Invesimen: Advisen. are sacn 141.99% shareao ders in 3HO They are not direciors of SHO. and have no
oporationa. roe 11 a” bosiness SHO does no. meel e definrion ot & reated party Lnder [AS 24

Tn aceardance wii TAS 40 Tnvesiment Propery™ (g Ivestmen: proeerty 2as oeen indeoendenty va.wed at lair va..e oy JLL
ng Locaion
> Direciors

an accredied cxiorna’ va. .er Wit recognmised and reicvan: prolessiona. qua ilicallons and rcaent expericnae of &
drrate responsiolity of ¢

and category of e mMvesiman: oroperty oCIing va.Lad. nowover tne va.lalons are the

i L

L va wed e Clvizas Sooia Howsing PLC propery ponfonao onthe oasl
0 ATODoTIn: wWila.Ll TAn bonefil ol any corporate wranper 4: £968.754

s of eacy individaa. prooery and e Lacoreica sa.e of
00T as a1 31 Maren 2027 (2021 T915.589.500),

|
L

JLIL has srovided va,wation services (o e Conpany wii rogatds o e oroperies dunng 1ac yoar JLL aas providad addrional
val.alon services o0 The acg.Lishion ot inyesiumon: pronery .0 e Con pany dunng e denod. The Direciors nave onsred
alJLL vas avaroondie orocedures in p ace wens.re fners are no Indeoendence cont icie wil e scrvices provided o -
Company Inro.ation ol arended 31 Marcn 2022, ¢ oroporion of 1he tola lees pavan.c oy e Conmpgany W0 JLLY WGa. foe
income was .ess 21an 5% and s erefore mimma. Addinona s L 1as a rotattion poady I dadt Waerany ¢ sIgnatones on
a0 vd.Lauons roae ats

CGESEVEN Yodrs

W1t e exceoton of e acguisiyon deladed in no e 166G, a0 COTNOTAte acg.Lsinons doning e yoar and e compDaranive year

Nave Doon TTeated ag assel puICNAses ral 18r 1an 0 LSINCSs complnaions neca.use folowing review of e [FRS 3 coneentraion
1810y are considared 1o oe acdg asons of oroperies raliar an ousingsses noe 3.2

Tac o owing .an.e orovides tac fair va.we measaroment aicrarcay [or invesimen: nronery

wuoted prices Sigpmibicant sigruflcant

nacne obseivable  unobscrvable

markets (Lovel inpuls (beved inputs (Level

Tatal " 2} 3
F iy £ 000 £000 £001

Investment properties measured at fair value:
1 Marca 207 945,237 - - 945,237
21 Mars g 2 293584 £33 384

211 any ranstarg o

nLeve land e Zdonng any ol 1€ Years nar a /e ere s

rs

e decn 1o irdan

Zandl Zd g any ot

It

10 PICS Ve Lanon Frolessiona 3andards anoorpara ing fin
wagedin in la. 1.8 50007

fdLdllons 1ave nenn erenared n accordance
[niermationa. Va.Laion Sandardsy oy JLT, one of o

cading orofessiona s

Agno. )

L n acnondanae vl v IFRS 123 wracre mn s ar nos

Sob e GroLp's mves: are raporad as Lo

s nased Loon adacs trom ro

nased

N ooservan.c mar<e: data and e va crran <now . adgean &




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

In ithis instance the detenminaion of the fair value of invesimen: oroper:y reguires an cxanination ol e specitic maeris of
sach propery that are in ourmn congiderad oerinen: wo e valualion.

These ncade

I} e regalated socia. nousing sector and dentand tor e facinies offered py cacn S3II vroperny owned oy Die Group:

it} ‘he varicu.ar sireci.to of e Group's ‘ransarnans wnere vendaors, ad thar own gxpensa, Inesel 1he ma oty of the
returhisanmen: costs of cach oroperty and cerain purcaase Costs.

iif) de:ailed financia. anaiysis with discoun: raies suDpOoring the carrying vaiue ol cacn proparty,;

iv) a il ropairing and insuring (casc win annad. 1hdexation based on CPIL or CPI+1%.

The [o.owing descripions and delintuons relaiing 1o vallation tecaniques and <oy wnoosorvab.e mouis made in deermining
fair va..es are as follows:

it

Fair va..e 1z defined as the price @t woold oo recewed (o se7 an asse: or paid o ransfer a labLny inan orderly iransacion
DeTWEEen mar<e! particinan:s at e meas.rement date (1o, an exi: price)

BEAS I RS SRS

e va dalon methodo ogy dsed oy tac vallars fol ows tae income anoraach. Thls aporoacna considars Cae renal income
carrenly vayvab.e: the nex: Lo it due on that income on review: the 1<¢.1nood of a continuation of 1hat rena. income . wiin
grow:n in accordance with tha eases  over ine remaining ermrs; and DMen a .ong-arm: raversion wach considers (oL ixe'y
ani.ry ol (ne properiics 1o continug 0 goneraic Ien: throagn supporied nousing nccuoaion, as disine: from a reversion 1o

VACAn: pOsSECssion Valic

Rigxs are invo ved in poin assessing the value of the renia. Income over iac remraining terms of e eases and in aso
orediciing ha incomra wi coniinae asyvond e end of the exisiing ‘eases. Tis is a oa.anced  sdgmont walc can oroper Y
e relecied in the oxil yie.d appied o ne fina years Income and in the overal rourn 1o a owrchascr

Aporopriaic taxation ca caiations arc adop ed tor evoery oropery oasaed on 18 va e and on e asg.mprion of tne sa.z ol

v as ouposed 1o snares of a s.bsidiary company ho ding ine properny and aave considored The

e provpery assas direct
individ.a’ ¢haracierisucs of mie orogeries,

TR ArE UWO MAIN GTINOEEIVAG & 1ITD LY A delenminge te fair va e of the Group s mvesiron? oreperyy:

i) Taerae ol 2% perannam nas peen wsad for CPLover the lerm of 110 5,000 DIooeriIcs [cases in ine wiin e Bang ol
Engrand’s ‘ong-.erm int ation targess for CPI I snou.d Be noted mat al. .eases penafi from eiiner CPLar CPI+1 indexasion

il) Thediscoun:raie apo.ed 0 e renial [Lows,

Key factors in detenrinng sae discouns rates apoded inc..de ne regaated soclal nousing secior and demand for eacn 55H

property owned oy e Group. costs of acquisition and rel.roisamren: ol €ach propery. e antcipated furire snderyving cash

f.ows lor each propery. nenchmar<ng of zach underyng ren: for cacn prooery (passing ren:) impact of ciimate caangeo. and

e lac ialal of the proparties wimin e Grouo's oordolo nave tac penefit of tu repairing and insunng .cases entered o

oy an Aporoved Provider

Ag al o paance snee: dase e case ongths within the Grouos nonfodo ranged Irom an eftecave 15 years 10 Ih years wiin a
welghed average Lwnexoired loase werm of 221 years (2021 22.6) Thae greator the englr ol e gase noen. 4. 0lner maircs aeing

B8], 8 greater e va ue of the prooeriy.

e L S N A "y

¢g a: Zlanovae e Crowp’s orodory tNVeSIManT Ya. Lallon 1s Opan 0 IrL1ero it
otae fo o owing sensirdny anacysis as ocen arepared:

HEETR L T A

As sai outwitin significant accouning
LAcerainiies inoone inpais that deiormine fair va. e As a res.

=
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Selnteange Gkt radt B vy

Tae averadge discoan: raie Lsed oy e valLerin e Growo’s oroveny Pordodio Va.Laton is 5.5% Z021 6.0%)

Tne range ol disconni rates used by e va wetin e Growo's property Pordodo Va waion s trom 4.5% 10 11.5% (2021 4 7% 0o

10.7%). In assessing e range of discounis. the v

a.uer considers the aLeny nes initia: yicld whicn wou.d 00 sougn: ov ine

invesimen: mar<e: and ouids in addilona discoan:s to relec: added ris« inio the discoun: rate of he term and. 1n some
cascs, ‘hie discoun: rate for jne reversion, For cxamo.e wnern arger rena. grow s aowed during the case. an additiona

discoantis bui inio the reversion because of 110 greater ris< of a fa.. in ine rent & e end of 1ne jease

Simi.ary additiona. discounis are considered wnere properics are 1n 11e process of pemg re-nurposed and premiuns are

considered where resideniia. care asseis are funded oy pacg-10-vDack .eases wiih care providers

Thc taoe pe.ow L Lsirales ine change o e va.ue of invesiment properiesif tne discoun: rate and CPI used for the poritoao

V3 .aionca Tooanons are changced

5% m +10 5%
discount tate discount rate
£000

21 March 2027
31 Maron 2021

35,620
34151

(33,142)
(31.775)

H EX . ¥ §
3
Acgasition of s.osidiary com panies (nci ding intercompany ean)

Acgulstiion cosis

TIANSlEr T INVesImen: Droperny
Sa.e procerds

Total

+H28% NPT
£ 0on

28.509
27211

Forthe
year ended
1March 2022

E Q0% _

13,559
765

{11626}

(2,695)

0 25% n CPY
£

{27.426)

(261753

Yot the

year ended
T March 2021
i uong

On 23 Aore 2021 e Crou enterad iMoo a ransacion (o acd e iac reeao d oroneties aneraicd oy CPE Cara Linred

sen

Joon e acguisrion of tas companies tor FI3553.000 0 s

ransaciion<

e properies were transforred into otacr

Jro.n companics and (ne contpany acgired. a.ong witn Its assoclaied aparatuons, was so d 1o Envivo Corund.m Bidco

Lined for £2,895 GOG

Envivo Corund.ans Bidco Lo

rod s a seondiary of Speciads: [Toa incare Operadions Lured 31O

sndrew Dawoer and Tom

Pridn-ore (oot direciors of tae Invesimen: Adviser, are eac1 1439 shareno.ders in 3HG Tacy are not directors of 3HG, and

aave o operationa ro.e. SHO does not meer (e definition of a re aed vary wnder 145 24

Amounts falli.n§ due in less than one Qéar

Trads rec

L= FONA

Less proasion torimoairmen. of rades receiva

Avoraed Lo

Propaymenis and oer r
Total

tivas

Prepaymanis and 0011 Iees17a0 & amo.nn's o
DOOR e rrEd T SORNeCHL WL ALY JSITIONS 40
OIL LG oronariyy oonlioao

ACTFLEd INUDITE 1€ 3108 a0 rantacer.od for 1ac year oul not /o0 derrande

31 March 2022
. 72'000

4,960
(239)
4982

3 Magch 2021
£ung

4859

A4
A9
12871



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

I1March 2022 31 Maich 2021

£q00 £
Amounts falling due after more tha_n one year N o
Debtor arising from siraigs: line adusimenis 2,053 1.524
Lease Incentives 21,466 20,381
Total - - 23519 21905

The aged analysis of rade roccivan.cs was as toi .ows:

31March 2022 31 March 2021

o £000 £ 000
Debtors past due
Carren. 1.777 2178
< 3G days 355 817
30-50 days 105 327
> 50 days 2,723 1.6G2
' - - 4,960 4869
Debtors past due o '
Less orovision far impairmoen: (239) {A50)
Total o 472 4613
Tae Direcrors considar ne tair va Lo of receivan es equa s DsIr Carrying amoun:
Orher caicgories within crade and omer receivaoles do not inc:wde nepawrad assets
Tne provision for intpairnten: wovemeain: was as o, ows
7 i 7 N For the For the
yearended year ended
U March 2022 3t Mareh 2021
. . o . R L o o £000 f.ouo
Bd ance a: oeginning of year 256
Irepairmen: orovigion made 109 289
Armount recovered (126)
Arrounis writlen ofl - {33
Balance at end of year o 239 255

Vi oneh a8 3 PRI
7 o A March 2022 1 March 2021
o )  E000 CRuou
Cash held by solicizors 376 721
Licg.tdizy funds 10,489 15485
Casa ncd ar nanz B 38.110 97,613
nresiricied casa and casn egllva on s 48,975 103.819
Rosineicd cash ) ) 4,362 =278
Total B 53,337 07.097

Ligadey funds refor to money o acedin monay rrar<e: fLnds Taese araniga yoiguid funds witn accoessiof ity within 24 ho.rs
and zupjeg: o nsigiilfican: ris< ol changes in va Lo

Casa nc.d by sodiciors is money ned in escrow lor exponses expeciad to oo Incurred inre.aion 10 invasime
oending comp.elion Tacse |inds are avaiap.cimmediately on domand

L OrOOeries
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Resincied easa rapresents amoinis acid tor specific commirmen:s, :onant depesics and reienion money ne o inre.aion
o deferred caymenis supect o achisvemen: of ceriain conditions. oiner reientions and cash segregated Lo tund repair,
mainenance and IMmprovemen: wWorks 1o brnng e properies wp o satisfaciory ssandards for the Grouwp and the tenanis.

19 ¢ Trade andother Sayvabies

31 Maich 2022 31 March 2021

R . i L ®OGO0 __ E00n
Deferred income 860
Acquisition costs acoraed 2,856 37058
Finance ¢osts 1,840 1357
Dividend wihno ding tax payao.o 1,057 892
Aceria.s and oter crediiors 2,202 1979
Tenan. deposi.g 677 545
Total o R o 9,492 9345
Acquisition cos's acer.ed also mncinde monies retained ac e noin: of acgLisiion o pe paid Al a aterdae woa ing 72158 000
(2071: £2.508.000)

B A LR N N PN IV ERL )

Ban< norrowings are scoured oy charges ovoer individ.a. mvesimen: grooeries ae d oy cerain assel-1o ding s.osidiarics The
banxs a.s0 no.d cnarges over (e gaares of certain subsidiarnies and any meerniadiary 10.dimg companics of those subsidiaries,
Any associated fees inarranging 10 nan<g oorrowings Lnantorased as a e year ond are offser agains: amo.unie drawn on
11 faclities as snown n e lan € 0e.ows

For the tor Lhe

yeat ended ywedl ended

Il March 2022 31 March a2t

_ ) ) o . £'000 £ ooan

Ban«< norrowings drawn a: s:ar. of year 357.050 272,505

Ban« norrowings drawn - 84550

Bank norrowings drawn a: cnd of year 357,050 357.053C

IInarror:lsed CosE algar ot yvear - __(T%_O) {5330

Less: oan iss.a coss incarred 1,723) {7,893

Addr oan iss.e rosis amorised 1,653 12493

Jnamoriscd cosis at 2nd of year S ﬁ’i” {5,000) {4.93':3)

Atend of year B 352050 352120

B o :c;;n Balan-c"E-‘- L(‘nn Ralance' Loan Principal Loan Pricipal

T1March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31March 2021

oo - o L £ 000 o 0010 £000 Eaon

Maturity of hank borrowings

Ropayao e w1 year - -
Reoayan ¢ oerwaeen 110 2ycars 158,746 160.000
Reoavavu e 59,365 60,000

tenayao o af: 132,939 137,050 137,050

Total 352.050 357.050 B3RP OSG

1 Loan balanee net ot unamerised costs

Tac Grospis pariy o e o owWIng Loan tao 1y agresmen s

& 10-year Sterang Terme Fac) 1y g Widows Limiicd Intorest

15 wed ata tota. of 2.9935%

Agresmraon: daed 2 Maovemoer 2017 for Lo 0

rann.m

sooLrad onnesEsiren: Orafery 0 TIn .

Teie porrowings incoade amo.n:s



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

A Ster ing Revo.oving Faciliiy Agrecmens for £60,005.000 with Lloyds Bang pic. Tae tacility nas neen exiended 1o 15 July 2024,
inerest 1s charged at SONTA + 1.57% margin

The aorrowings ine ude amo.nis secured on myvesiren: praperly (o the va..e of F153340 000 (262 F149.728.000)

A Revoving Cradi: Facuity Agreement for up 1o £100.000.000 with HSBC Bang BLC. Interest is chargad a: SONTA + 2.02% margin
The lacility maiirity aas been extended o Novomber 2023,

The borrowings inc.ide amouns secuared on investment proper.y (o ine va.ue of f222715.000 (2021 £219.606.000).

A S-year .oan faciliy wita Nationa. Wesimins:er Bang Pic, dated 15 August 2019, for 1p o FA0.000800 Interes: is cnarged
a: 3ONTA +2.00% margin and nag oeen lixed by way of a 5-year swap. Thle swapg fixes inercs: on FA0.0G0.0C0 at 27105%
and £40.0C0.COC a: 2.3475% Tnae oan can ne exiended for an additiona: 2 years and (aerc is 1he opiion of a furher

ey

F40.000.000 accerdion
Tae porrowings inc ode amodnis secured on invesimen! property Lo ne value of F135330.000 (2021 £131.283 0O

A 7-year oan faclity wiin MEG Invesiaren: Managoement Limited, dated 22 Jansary 2021 tor up 1o £84.550,000 Inerest is fixed at
a taia. of 3137% per anndam,

The borrowings mlade amouis secdared on INVCSIMEN: prooarty to tna va.Le of F230487.000 (2071 722
A3 March 2022, 10 Crocpo 15 in compiiance wiil . covenan.s.
THig covenarty in vace under the five agreements are s.mmarised in 2 tan.e oc.ow

Historical and piojected interes cover Loan 1o Value ratio

Loan

Seotish Widows Limited lrl.'rl—year Iark:ityrﬂ Al eas: 325% Must no: excoed 40%
L.ovds Bank p.c revoving credi: facry Al cas: B50% Mgt no excead 52
ITSBC Bang PLC taci ity AL east 280 M_osi not cxceod 55%
Maona Wesiminsier Ban< P.c 5-year tacLy Azlcas 240 Mgt not exceed 50%
MEC Invesimen: Managemen. TLimiied 7-year laci iy AL east A50% Mo st not exceoed 53%

The Groap's porrowings with L.ovds Bang p.¢. H3BC Ban< PLC and Nationa. Wesininsier Ban< Pre have ransiaoned from 2ae
London Interbans Glier Rate (LIBOR) nencamars< (o Sieriung Overnugh: ndex Averago (SONTAY noneomrar< daring e year
Taere was negligio € cost invoived in e oorrowing tac'ny ransinon and tne respective nadge instrumen: amendmen:s

Jow fnrornst rate dey
Tne GrouDd J4s cntered O INGCIES: [a:C swap agroeren:s win NaiwWes: Marcels inorder o mitgaie e risg of changesin
IMierss: raas an 18 indan witn Naldionat Wesirinsier Bank Pro under whica £60.000.000 15 current.y drawn

THe HWAEDR NdVE A NoNona. va..e of E60CCE.CG0 and fix interes: at 2.50% (inc.iding he 2% margin rae on he onan< .oan® and
Jave a maLarty dae of 15 Algas: 2024

For the ot the

vear ended year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
B L o o e _ . 72000 ) . jALIIR)
Alsar of year (544) {478}
Crange in fair va uc durng :ac year 2,675 (5]
Asset/(liability) at end of year 2,131 {544)
TH0 1an £ ne.ow Sa0WsE Do falr val.e meas ranen: aierareay forinteres: denvacives
Siguficant Signlfieant
Quote prices n Observable  unobservablo
active Matkets Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 5
R o R R {&E‘V(‘l £ Onn o 1000 £non
31 Maren 2022 - 2131 -
21 Marca 2031 (544

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

Thore tave necn no ransfor: oeiwesen Leve 1and Leve. 2 danng e year nor rave hers pgen any Tansfers oerween Tave, 2

and Leve. 3 dinng qe yoar

Snare caniia. renreseniy ine nomina. va..oe of consideration recoved py the Conpany tor tne issae of Crdinary snarcs

For the For the year
year ended ended
31 March 2022 51 Maich 2021
e . o o o o o £000 L ()UEIV
Share capxtal
AL peginning dnd “nd L)I vear 6,225 57225
Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
AL peginning and end ot yoear 622.461380 57745
D.ring he year sie Conpany rel 555.00G Z501 255.000) Crdinary snares reas.ary al 3 Marca 2621 for fa47.000
G2l :"?7? o)

Laierin e year the Company ourenased 10.025.000 Ordmary NATeS 10 Ne ae.d N reasary alae cost of £9.2593.0C0. Furacr
D.renases were mado afier e year and as dea

A7 31 Marca 2027 e Comrpany 10 ds 10.325.000 (2021 5 reasury. TAe saarcs wio contnwe 1o 0 ed

N Teds.ary Wl elinar reissued or cance_od.

g nLamizer of Ordinary snares wscd (o ca.coaic (ac notasse. va Lo oot share g D12435380 (2021 521,895 3805 wonen cxoadey
e snares ne din reasary

STAMS DreN LT FASOIVe re Oresenss e damaoannie s.08crioed for Ordinary snara caviza. i excess of nonuna 7/a .o .08
associaind 1ss.2 ~osis of e suoscriviuons.

For the For the
year ended year endod
31 March 2u2z SlMarch 2u21
_ o . . o . oo . £ouy . £ 0on
A pedinning of ff\dr 292,463
Prenu.im ansing on snares roigsth.od from irea 183
At end uf year 292 626
Dunng e year e Company 1o1ss.ed $55.000 (2021 2530000, Crdinary saarss e d 1inredsary for £547.500 2021 F2720000 a
gain of E183.000 2071 738 065 arose wuon 18 rooaygnigad 1IN ag snares orem LI reserie.
P SEELaUTe e s

Tic capra redacion reserve s a disinnlan.c reserve D wian e vaae of Thc cance ed sharc orentan 1as oeen
ransterred. Puars.ant 0 Arlde.e 5 of Tne Companies (RedLolion ol Saare Caniid. D der 2308 102 oa ance 1c.d W e caoplia
cdLonion reserye s o pe raated for o :J_er,. 123 of e Com pans 045 asarsascd orofil and Darroiore
alao ¢ tor jl"'rlfL Lo in accordances vi ) secion 830 of ¢ TOSCTYS Lo e

cosis ol DL Ing nacg snares o o0 asdm .rf:as_tr'j

MVanes A < CCJ[T‘;?HH}’ 1as .

For the Far the

year ended wedl ended
31 March 2022 31 March 202t
. - B _ L _ . _ EnlJU . f:,’ll()\l
Auopuginning of o 331 140
Snarss ro cd trom red 484
SN8res D0.g1 040 N0 ALy (9.259)
At end of year 32.2 365 331145




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

During the: year, “he Coropany reissacd 555,000 2021 250.0600) Ordinary shares hed in ireasary for £647.000 (2071 F272.000). The
cost of purcnasing these shares ino reas.ry of #A24000 2021 £211.000) nag peen crodited o the capria reducton reserve witn
she gain crodized 10 1a¢ 3hars premlum rsarva

Laterin ite year the Corpany parchasced 10.025.000C Ordinary snares o he ne.d in reasury at a cost of £9.239.000. Furiher

puarchases were made alier o vear end ag dolared in note 23 0

ALS March Aud tae Lompany Noids Uu2b.000 Zual Sob.uuiurdinary shares [n lredsary.

dORpnedd earer s

TAls resgeIve represents (e proticg and osses of the Croug.

For the ror the

year ended year ended

31 March 2022 3 March 2021

) ) e, o _ EDGN . #1000

AL neginning of year 43,670 41008
Profli: tor tne year 44,754 35,075
Dividends paid in 1ac year (as per notc 14.0) (34.093) (33113}
At end of year 54,331 43,570

Tl Pery Bnowdt it
Basic WAV peor sharc g ca.culated by dividing net asses in tne Conso idated Siaiemen: of Financia. Posiion atrin.ao.c o
ordinary agqaliy noders of he paren: ny e numroor of Ordinary siares ouisianding at e end of Tae year

Noo assol va.aeg nave oocn caci.ated ag folows:

3 IMarchi2022] 31 March 2021

Ne: assels (E‘Cé(})
Narroer ot Ordinary snares iniss.ic at ond of year 522:4611380F 627.151.380

MNumper of Crdinary saares hed increasary

Number of Ordinary shares excluding treasury shares heild by the Company 612.:436!.38@' 671.895380
NAV -~ basic and diluted 1OOp)  1083Cp
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

270 Aunaeysin of Fatana

Al ceginnmnag ol year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan arrangermen: cosis naid

Non cash movements

L.oan arrangemen: feas payap.e

Amaoridgaion of ioan arrangemsan: ¢osis
Cnange 1n fair vaiue of interest rate deriva'ives
At end of year '

Foomriities anid asseta ariaieeg g

ERACAI T

[EARETERN

For the

Al neginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan draw down

f gament COsi8 Od
Loan arrangan-an: cosis 0 11l

Non cash movements

Loan arrangemcen: focs payao.c

Amroridsation of oan arrangemen: cos:s
Change in fair va.we ot interes: rate denvaives
At end of year

5o [ i
A5 T ae et iy cu

e

a
L2ase DAYINCIUS WNdET Non-cance. ao.C operdililg .£asss

AMOLnE recaivan o

=3 years

At end of year

Iuterestrate
derwvaluves
£a00

478

e Grow o are as o, ows

Bank
borrowings
£000

269.17C

[£3%3]

1293

352120

Interest rate Bank year ended
derivatives borrowings 31 March 2022
E'DDO £000 E'000

544 332,120 352,664
- {i,.805) (1,805

- 82 82

- 1,653 1,653
(2,675) - (2,675)

_____ (2131) 352050 349,919
o For the

year ended
31 Maich 2021
fa00

Z269.048

84.550
2,811

Crownig pary 0 a n.moer of 3oeralng 4808 on s iTyesimen: proparies witt Approved Providers Tne fooure mainim.or

31 March 2022

31March 2021

£ 000 £0U0
53,821 50,
53,879 50410
161,940 151511
928210 875875
T 1197.850 1135114

eases are direr- o agresnton's wily Anoaroved Providers for a enn ogiv/esn 13-35 yeary wi mmdoxed in<ed annLa ren

e (a0

cCorrant eases arc b rooalring and ins.ring es
T OTOROIGE NACL 10 e arigina. condions

2 .=nans are neaersfore souaged 1o ropaln maintain and



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The fo'owing tame gives deial s of nerceniage of annua. renta. nconte per Aporoved Providoer

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
% %

Avcrland Home Solunions and Qua.lias Housing 244 239
Fa con Housing Associaaon CIC 18.7 19.7
Basuoge Suvoorive Tenancies 12.6 1537

Inclusion Housing CIC 93 87

Wesimore.and Ssppored Housing Lirrited 59 a1
Encirc.e Housing Limied 5.9 a5.C
Trinizy Housing Association Limmited 51 53
Pivoa’ Housing Association 3.8 39

Harooor Light Assisied Living CIC 36 37

Carysalis Suprorned Association Limited 36 z4
New Wa < Property Managemen: CIC 2.8 2.8
My Space Housing Soluiaons 13 12
IKT. Suppored Housing lumited 11 11
Hildale Housing Associatuon Linicd 10 09
Windrusn Allance JEKCIC 0.7

[1..y Rose S.ppor.ed Housing 0.1

B .¢ Sguars Eosidensial Lod 0.1 ci1
'I_'otal

Auscx.and [lome 5o7utions and (A itas Housing are poin membpers of 1ae Soca. Housing Famt'y CIC and s.p et [0 comman
contra. Theirannua. ren: figares nave tncrefore nesn aggregated in tne lan.c aoove TIC porceniage reating o Auck.and Home
Soradons and Gualitas Housing was 16.28% and 8.13% (20211 23.88% and 0 82%) resnecive v The ann.a rent at 31 Maroen 2022 [or
Auck.and Home 3o auong and Quahtas Holsing was F8,679.000 and F4.334 000 (2621 D12.028.CCC and £8.004) resne

The Gro.n 18 a S0 04y 10 a noenper of operaling .cascs on s ong .easeno.d properties The gro.nd rons oaymen:
conpiments wnder sess operailing . ases are Neg.igio.o so e Lulure Inim LIy 2ast 2ayinenis wnder tnese 2ases have nos
nean disc.ozed in thesc financia sia.emenis

R I AP
Asar Bl Maron 2022 toore is no Lolintale coniraLing party

Wl ey L e

3 I AL K e R L A I R N L

1 d. 8,00 rae as cue Direcors sha . from ame .0 ime deiermme. Tac aggregae
Crase, soleY N Thelr fapaciy ag s.onlin resoect of

Tae Direciors are rom . neraicd for iheir service
rent.neraion and oenzfiis in <and of the Dircctors of (e Conpany iin e
e vear ended 31 Marea 2022 payap.e 0.t of the assels of e Company is no! expeciad .o exceed 2250000,

Fees of £130.C00 (2021 £182.000) wore incarred and pald "o tae Direciors

-
i

As a3 Maren 2022 and 2071 he Direciors e d ae o) owing namoer of shares

3 March 2022 31 Mach 202]

Ordinaty Qrdindry
shares shiares = o
. e I B — — g
Director 32
.
: N . PR . S
Michae, Wrone Chairmran 120,598 150,598 zz
Alasdir Moss Direc.or 11,766 11755 z ;
Atson Hadden Direcroy - iz
S . . . 2 ==t
Caroanc Culiver Aodr and Manageoment Engagenmen: Connriiee Chalr 58,832 58.832 =
- wz
Poer Baxtor Direcor 82,065 47055 n O
- S T e - Sz
N e

113



114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The Invesument Advisar aag reviewed 118 remuneration policies and drocadurcs 1o engure Incensives are asgned with e
requiremen:s of AIFMD. [Z1nc_.des measares 1o avold conflicis of interost such as oroviding sratf witn a fixed monihiy
sa’ary and deermuning discrelionary paymens oy the performance of e Invesiment Adviser as a who.e and na inged
to any one AIF in partic.a.ar Tae Invostmen: Adviser and its sialf receive no remaneration troegn oroflz share. carned
inseres: co-invesimen: or 07101 schomes re.ated (0 “he Company's perfornance.

I8 2 Transactions warn b Investmont ddws

On t Novenrper 20156, Civizag Invesimen: Managemen: Linrtied (CCIM™) wag apoointed as the Invesimean: Adviger of te Company.

Foes of £6.132.00C (2021: £6,117.0CC) were incurred and paid to CIM. [n addiaon fnil (2021: £ni) dispursemen s were paid in tne year

The Inves:men: Adviser has agreed to contriouse F100.000 (2021 Frl) towards ega” and professiona. lees incarrad in the year,
Tnls amo.un: nas boen offscel agains: ega and orolessiona’ foes innote 90 This arountig ouisianding cend of e year

a: 31 Marcn 7022, a nel amount of FISL0CC (021 F12.000) was due froo CIM. which hasg sinece been rocetved

As at 31 Marcn 2022, CIM ne.d 5C.000 /2¢21: 30.00C) Ordinary saares in :nc Cairpany

P S S S PEALF- i S
Thc Group's orincipa. financia. asse:s and raciiies arc tosc nat anse directly from 1's operations irade and oiier
receivao.es, irade and o.her payabwes and cash and cash equiva.ens, The Cro. 03 otaer orincioad. inandia 1aoi'itiues are oan<
QOrrowings. e main 0.roose of walch 1s .o tinance (e acguisizion and devciopmen: of e Cro., 08 INVASIMen: Dropeny
porfolic and inieres: rate derivaves as deailed in nows 20.0 and 210

A, financia. daoles are meas.gred at amordsed cost excent interes: rae derivatives, wiloh are meas.red altair va. e AL

linancla. insiranents weare dﬁﬁlgﬂ(—i xd N T S TTEn. Ca 2JONES L DOn Mg, (e(?()(jﬂlii()ll,

Seloul pe.ow s a comparison by c.ass of o carrving amoun:s and tair va Lo of 2he Gro L os financia. insramen:s 1ad) arc
carried in s hinanoa siamwonis

Book value Fair value Buok value Fair vatue

3t March 2022 31 Marchh 2022 3t March 2021 31 March 2021
7777777 - ~ _foon  E0OD . £ a0 f oo
Financial assets
Tnteres. rae deriva-ives 2131 2131
Trade and oher receivan es 34,580 34,580

53,337 53,337

Casnand casn ¢ Mlxd on

Financial liabilities

“rade and o001 pavao.os- 8,632 8,632 §.099 8.539
Ban< oorrowings 352,050 349,406 352.128 =54.112
srac derivanves - - 544 544

1 Excludes prepayments
2 Lxelucdes dat=rred income

Tz Group aas five oan< .oang & 1t
sredl tacily varnao.e rale oan of 7¢

car hxked rate oan of C32505.000 provided oy Scosa Widows Limiied, a 3-y<ar revo.7ing

BEHIN pr:)'.ldec ay Loyds Bang 0 ora 3-pear revo ang oredi faci 11y varnao.e rate oan
ot FI0C.000 ‘“"‘L‘- arovided oy TIEBC Banrs PLC a S-ycar revoving crodnr faal by varfao o raic oan of THRASL00E nrove \.-;1 o7
Ibanona Weosiminsiar Ban<Poosand a 7-year fized rate oan of D81535C 000 vin ME&G Invesimeon: Manageomen: Linnred Toe fair
va ool e hxed rae oan s deemmined oy comaaring nie discounied tooure casa  ows




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

I SN FE R fRRS L
Tre Group 1s cxposcd 0 marke: ris, Interes: rate ris< creds nsk and dquadity risx 1n che current and Luiure years, Tne Board of
Direciors overseos (ac managaemeni of these nsze. Thc Board of Directors reviews and agroces policies for nianaging cach of
‘hese nsgs tna. dre sumimarised ve.ow

VRS S TR SOST IS
Ta0 Group’s aciviiogs Wl 0XDOSC 1T primarn y o the rear<el 1ns<s associated with ocnanges in gropery va.ues and changesin
inerest rates

-

A

X R R e DT atver oy

b

Invesurent in propery 8 suwhbjeo o varying degrees of s« Some faciors (nar allect .ac va o of (oo invesunant in oroporny
inciude:

e Cnangesin e gonoral economic clinrae:

& Ccompotinon [or avalan o DIronortics:

« o0pso.escence. and

¢ JOVCIMMON [ogui.aiions. incu.dmg o.anning. environireanta. and ax aws

Variauons i the apove faciors can affoc: ine va Lauen of asseis no d oy the Grodap and as a resdli can iml.uence ne financla.

verformanas of the Group

DO et TSy D ety N N I TSP

‘

Ta2 Groun 10.ds pog1lons In two AAA rated ldqidity funds thas inves: in a diversibied range of government and
Nnon-governmen: money ntar<e: securtias, wnich are sua’ect 1o varying degrees of risk, Some faciors t1a: aflec
hesiguaidey funds ine ado:

e wa e of

e he gerformance of e andoeriying governmen: and non-governmen: moncy mar<e! secunaes: and

® increstraes.

Variadong in 7o anove faciors can affect fe valsation of assers held oy the Crol oand ag a res... can inl.uence the inancia.
nerforntance of e Croap.

SR Interost cate v i
Tnierest rac ris< s the ns< nar te farr va o or faare casa L ows of a financia nsiramren: wil fuctLate oecause of clanges in

marke: ineres: rales.

o Croup nas entered into a fixed
¢ S-year .oan faci

The Growp's Ineredt rate risk orincipai.y arises from ong-1erm: oorrowings. 7o managa s
rate nank . oan and caree varlao e rate ban< oang Tae Grow o has entercd into an inton
wiin Natiena. Wesimins:or Ban< P in order to mitigate e ns< of rising interos: rates.

Q.o swap on .

A3 Maren 2022, B5% (2021: 55%) of the Group's porrowings are s.b e 1o a fiked rate of interest

The oxpogure of the Group o vanable rawes of intorest is constdered Lpon drawing of any new oan lacliies o ensare thal g
Groan's exposare 0 ineres: rae Lueiaalons s wiinin accepiahie ovels.

Tae nves.men: Adyviser mroniors e Grou0's eX00s. e 1o dny Changes in inerest ralo on an ongoiiidg oasis. wiea e Board
Lodated on a gquarier y oasis of ae curren! exposare of ine Growp's ioan facilities,

Ag a3 Marah 2072, 1 inceres: rates 12d bean 100 oasig poins aigacr/Lower! wiin a o other variap.es ned conglan: Jhe imopast
on orofiis afer taxation for ;he yvear woud og as pe.ow Tne Tnvesimen: Adviser anucipaes (nese @ve.s are reasonac y
nassibie pased on e ooservanon aof curren: marke: Zondizlons Dalinerest rates wouud not Laaiuate more than 12

DNISOOH IV IO SVLIALY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

31 March 2022 E1March 2021
__£000, £'000

(Decrease)/increase in profits due to interest rates

100 cargls poins nigher {1,066) (579;
160 pasis oomnts .ower 1572 186G

Tae average eflecitve ieres: rawes of linancia. instramenss a: 3 Maron 2077 and 2021 were as o, ows:

31March 2022 31 Maich 2021
% %

Bank borrawings  fixed rate 2.94 231
Banc borrowings  varianie rae 2.23 1.7%

0.05

™ Growp's norrowings wirh Loyds Bang 0lc. TI3BC Bans PLC and Nauonal Wesurinsier Ban< P'e wi'. oo ransiioning trom
12 London Internan< Offer Rate (LIBOR) oencamrar< o Stering Overnigh: Tndex Averages (SONTA! oenchmare in d ie course,
Thaere s expesied 10 0C neglugioie cost invo ved i ransition and (e resocctive neddge Insirumen:
amondnrents,

e porrowing faa.

Credi: rise is 1o risg &t a coanieroary Wil nol meee 18 oo gadons .andora inancla nsrdimen. Or CLs.omer Coniract
eading o a inancia. loss The Grosois exposed o crodit ns<eg from Dot 108 casing 4cuviides and nanaing aciviioes,
inciuding deposing wiin nan<s and inancia. insid:.iions,

Dootors and accroed incomra reoresan: ran: d.e oraccr.od, nese amounis dae are diversified pelween a nomnor of
differen: Approved Proaviders of differning financila. sirengiin see note 280 fordeiai’s ol (e difforen. counicroanios None o
ndo no ave a aredl rating. nowever e diversilied natore of Thus asso

e Aporoved Praviders nave bled deo. and as
5.00005 e aredlt gaalty.

e Grouo Nas 20UC0S I D408 10 £NELIe 1A TENE, G0N Tads are oentared Do ony Wit essees wili an approonae credit
and ooperationa. nisiory. and i exnos.re 1o any one onant Thac oradit rex 1 congidered o oe tarer reduoed as e
saurce of e renis recavod oy e Crowp 1s womate y orovided oy sre Covernmen:, 9y way ol 1oLsing oonell: and care
orovision. via a diverse range of Loca AL 10r0ies

For detais of orovisions forimopairmen: o'ease refer 1o nuio 170,

S N ot - AT

RE R

One of (e onnmoa. oredis ris<s of e Growp wil arise wit 1w oan<s and finanzia. ingtioaions Tac Board of Direciors og ieves
al e credin rise on saers term denosns and CuIren: accoLt Casil DALancos 1§ amied 00Ca Lse TS COLNICTRATICS are Dan<s
caonsiderod o oe of good credis goadly Inac case of casa deoosis aed win : rigv s Amiied sonause e
cagn g na.d oy e @wors WITIHN CUIANT AcTouNis aT gans<s w1 1iga oradi q.

S

Tne credr ratmygs for cangs wacre ca.ances are ac.d oy e Grows arg as o, v

Looyds Ban< oo L4 fF1
HSBC Ban< o o AA-Fr
BRA Inernanona Laimred ASFT

Faiona Wesimingor Bang o0 Ar/F]

Fa.l

gs advized oy Fiiea




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Continued

The Groap manages s Haaadiy and tinding rig<s oy considenng casa 1 ow totecas:s and ensaring safficien: casn ba ances
are he.d within the Groep o mee! (Lture needs. Pruden: dquiduy risk managemon: iimp.les ainisinng sufficient cash and
nrarkeian.e securivies. tne availaoi ity of inancing (hrougn approoriae and adequate credit fines, and “ne abil.iy of customors
[0 selle 00.1galions wiinin nornra’ ierms of credi. Tae Groap ensires. throagn forecasung of capita. raquirenients, iaal
adequate cash is availanlic

The [o.owing tan e detals e Crouns man iy prolie in regpec: of 1tg financial insiramen: Jdaoilittes cased on contra
undiscounied payments:

on demand <lyear 18 years > 3years Total
£000 £EULY __fwwe £y CEuuo

31 March2022
Trade and oiner payao.cs 8.632 - - - 8,632
Ban< pborrowings - 9,336 245,974 144,602 399,912
' 8,632 9336 245974 144602 408,544

31 March 2021

“rade and olher pavao.cs £.693 - -
181.048 144 5572

8595 §7909 181048 144502

Ban< oorrowings - 67309

The prolle above snows e mat.niy orofie ai 31 March 2022 and me.sded weain the contracied paymenis s F12.862.000
(Z021: F33,589.000) of inan inmeres: payan’e w0 0 e oolnt of mat.rny.

B3 Capitad coovingainieot
Al 31 Marca 2072, e Company nad Lunds commited tola.ng £92.000 (2621 £nil) concerning capra expendiiure tor a nrocerty
I 5 5y,

B

BT ERE RPN )

On 13 May 2522, ae Company comp.eted an acgsisition a: Norh Tnd. Wisoaoa lor E6GC.000

[ESERNSPIFRT R AN

On 11 May 2027, ae Company anno.wneed a dividend of 13873 pence ocr saarg in respect of the period anaary 2022 ©
31 Marcn 2022 Jota’ ing F8474.000 The dividend paymen: was made on 28 June 2022 o snarcno.ders on ine ragisior s at 20 May
2077 Thae linancia: siatemrenis ¢o no relect 1 ng dividend. The dividend was paid as a REIT properny income distrinaaen P

R N e 1A
From: 1 Aprit 2022 1ne remaheration ol (e Direciors, Awdiz and Managermoen: Tngagemen: Comimi.ee Chagirmat and Chairmtan’s

ann.:a kee i’ increass Tae Chalrman’s annua’ tes increasod oy 19% (0 £33.000; tne Dircclors annuwa foc increased oy 242% (o
£34.000: nowever e additional fee for the Audit and Managemen: Engagen-en: Conneliiee Caair remains at f3.000

Tt i

On 18 May 2022, an cxiension was granied for the faciity witn Loyds Ban< o o owinica now expires in Jooy 2524

g

Since 31 Maren 2022, the Company 0as made gurznases of 1200000 Qrdmary snaras into reasary 4. an average price of 87.8p

ver Ordinary share Tne tota, cos o e Company el Lding commiussion and siamp doy 1s F14A92000 and o, owing Tase
ransactions. a 23 Tune 2022 e Comrpany e d 1W725000 Ordinary s1ares in rcas. oy

SX1d UINLSELONUTY 0Y SYLIALY
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Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2022

31March 2022 F1Maicn 2n2l
_Note €000 . BhoD
Assels
Fixed assets

Invesunen: in s.wosidiarics 70 793,284 720918
Current assets
Trade and oiner receivao.es 90 4,310 3.544

1C.¢ 23,438 15447

2748 19091
821,032 740008

Cash and cash egdiva on:

Total assets

Liabilities

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

Trade and o:her pavan.os Y (274,020) (171.655;
e S e o T | (274,020) (71555

Total liabilities (2740200 7155

Tc;ta_l_pet assets o T - o ) _ T o o _541,012_ _ 68354
Equity

Syare capita. 170 6,225 6275
SNAre oremiant reserve 292,626 232462
Canha. red.ctlon roserve 322,365 33L14C
Accamuiaied osses 120 {74,204) (51475

Total equity 547,012 5587354

e Company 1as agen advaniage of 1ae orovistons of Comoanies Ao J005 408 and docs no disclose e Company's

mdivid..a oroliz and ioss accoan: Profe for tae yoar was EZL3%2.000 (2021 [54.780.000)

The Company financlal statements on pages .8 10 727 were approved by the 3oard of Nreciors of Civitas Somal
“ousing 2.C and aurhonsed forissue and signed on its behalf by

Michael Wrobel

Chairmtan and Independen. Non-Excow e Direcior
29 Jung 2522

Company Ko 10462328

Tag noes on pages 122 o 127 are an incagra par S acse Hndndld, 2aemens

CIVITAS SOUTAL HOUSTNG
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Balance at 1 April 2020

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of Ordinary shares

Shares reissued tron ireasary

Dividends paid

Totalmcerim dividends for the year cnded

31 Marca 2021 {5.3750)

Balance at 31 March 2021

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of Ordinary shares

Shares reissucd from roasury

5hates 00.gn. DAc N Teas.ry

Dividends paid

Total intenm dividends for the veoar ended

31 Marca 20722 (5 51250)

Balance at 31 March 2022 ]

Shate Capital
Shate premuum teduction Accuimubated Totai
capital reserve HE T 'l losses eqrily
£ 00g L noo ~ Fann £'000 £'000
5285 782405 3309206 (80.840) 548.715
- 52780 52780
57 214 o
{33,413) {33.413)
5275 292452 331140 (B1473) 568354
- - - 21,362 21,362
- 164 484 - 648
- - (9.259) - (9,259)
- - - (34,093) (34,093)
6225 292626 322365  (74204) 547,012

The notes on oages 120 0 127 arc anantegra. gar: of 1iese inandaid. s.aements,

IXId DNISTTOH TV IEO8 SYLIALD
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2022

Car garate
Cwvitas Socia’ Housing PLC (ae Corrpany ) was incorporated in Lng.and and Waies andar e Companies Act 2006 as a ouo.c
company hnled oy snares on 29 Sepiempar 2016 witn company nampear 10402528 ander the name Clvitas REIT PLC, walen wag

subsogaanty cnanged o the exisuing name on 3 Ocioper 2615

PO LA

Tne address of the regisiered office Is Beaulor House, 51 New North Road. Fxeter. Devon EX4 4FP The Company is regisiered
as an nvesiment comeany nder secion 833 of 1o Comaanies Ao 2005 in Bng and and Wa os and is domiciad in ne
Jnited Kingdom.

Tne Company did not pegin irading .nu 18 Novernr oor 2015 wihen the saares were admit:cd o rading on the London Stock
Exchange ("LSET)

The Comrpany's Ordinary snares nave oeen admited o the Offical Lis: of the Finanoa. Conduer Astoriy (FCAY and are
raded on tae LSE

The onneipa. activity of e Company 18 10 ac as the soimae paren: company ol s s osidianes Gne "Crouo™ and (o provide
shareno.ders wiin an atracive fove, of income logeiner witn e polenia. lor capita: growin from Invesing in a oorlo.io ot
SOCIA NOmes.

The hnancia. sia:emans 04ave 0ecn preparcd on a MEoricd. Cog? hasls and in accordance wiina Financia. Reporung S.andard
101 Reduced Diso osure Framewor< (FR3 1017 and “ne Companes Act 206H as app icane o compantes Lsing FRS 101

in preparing nese hinancial staientenss. ac Company appiles 1o recogniloll measareiment and dic. oy are regquiremreaents of
Interna:iona Financial Reporing Standards CAdoopied TFRS87. oo maces arrendmen:s whers necessary in order 2o com oy

wiin ine Companies Aot 20CH and nas oLl bolow woere advaniage of “he FR3 10] disc.os.re cxemronlions has ocen la<en

In porepanng hesce inancia. staemoiis (e Conpany nas tasan advaniage ol a  dise og.re oxempidons conterred oy FRS 101
Taeretore, cese financia. stlaemen:s Ao not ine wds

e Cerain comparalive information as omnerwise req.ired oy IERS;

e coraln discoosares regarding tne Company’s cania nanagenman::

e cornaindise osiresinre auon 0 [FRS 15 Reven e Conracs with Cusiomers:

s asacmon: of cash fows:

e e effec of [LIUIe accouanting slandards nol yo adooed:

e e disc.asare of e remuneranon of <ey managemen: personne ;and

e  discos.re of redled pany ransacions witt oler who, v owned memocrs of Crviias Social Housing PLC.

In addiuon and in eccordanas wita FRI 101 furner d1sC.os 1o C¥ompions 1ave ocen adopied oocatse cgalva.ent A1sc.os.0a8
arz inciodadin e Conpany's conso.kdaied finaned. siaiemeanis These linancd. siaenens do nol ine. de ceram

disc os.res in resopect of:

& saare nascd paymons:

e linancia. insraments: and

Lred regaired as a ras, Lot recording inancla. meramenig al falr va. L

e lalrva ..omeas.remant 0ocr an ceran dis

@ Company nas ldcen adraniagae of g sXemoiorn 0 Eec)on 408 of a2 Comrpanics A2 2005 10T 10 reson’ i own Income
men: of COIMOre rensEry o InComs

sia‘eman. or s:a:

oo wendard s ooenedoaun Lo aed s 3 et g

andards v o are now clfocaye NoNe are re aVan: 0 oo ador

Atierdaresew ol now accouning s od i ac oregaranon of e

Cormrpany s acco s for e year cnded 31 Mare 0 2072




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

oy i
The financial sratemients nave Besn oreparad on a going Concern odsis.

Asg discussed in the Grosp inanaal staemen's apove, (he Lnderlying asse's of the Company penefll from a see.re iIncome siream

Tae Comrpany tinancial sla'ements saow an ace.anulated joss nowever thisig due o a lime-lag on profits from s.uosidiary
companies ncing moved ap tNe sinaciare in e lorm of dividends,

The Company nas a net curren: dani'uy posinon of 0245272.000 {2021: F152.554.000). Thus ba.ance ariscs dug 1o e Inercompany
baAanccd cotaning £271.6%2,C0C (2021 £159.465,000) with the Company's subsidiary companics 7The amoe.dnis orincipa. y re.ale o
panx loans drawn in the Company's subsidlary con:panies in order 1o finance the parchase of new acquisiions 1n accordance
w1t 1o Groun's pusiness model The dircctors ot ine suosidiary companies have provided a ever of comfor: nat ey wi. no:
sack repaymen: of mease pa ances within 12 mon:ns from the date of approval of the Company's financia. slazements.

Tne Company's articies of association inc.ude a requirement for the Board o propose an ordinary resaluiion d: e ann.ad’
genera. maeing lo.owing e fifth anniversary from (ne inliiar ouc’ic oftering of e Company for the Company ‘o contin.e in
izs current form: (the Conuncasion Reso.uion) Taig s the first conunganon vote since the Conpany was sel uap

[f she Contintation Reso.uton s passed. the Company wi.. continuc 1's posiness as prasenty consituied and propose the
same resoluiion a: every hfh ann.a. genera. meeting herecatter If the Coniinaation Reso.ation is not passcd. tnc Direcors
wi. oe reguired. wiimin six monns afier (e date of this annca genera meeting. to formuiaic nroposa.s for consideration
oy g saarano.ders for the vo_dniary (iguidation. snitisalion, reorganisaion, or reconsiracion of inae Company Aler
maxing approprare engiires of ;e Company's orozers and [nvestnent Adviser, p.irsuan: o neir recen: discussions wiih a
nuampoer of (e Company's saareho darg, ine Direciory are of e view thar ine Continaation Resoluaon wis oe pasged 4t e
forincoming annua. genara meeling This reflects tne strengta and nature of tne Conipany's porifo.o, and specificaly «
nrovigion of lang-erm accomrmodation for more than 4000 vialneraoic individuals Aceording.y. tne Dire<iors expect ina!

if tne Continuation Reso Ltion is nou passed. an even: wnicn tne Direciors ronwder o be gy remorte formu.aling and
inn.emening any s.cn provosa.s wou d rcgalrn ne Company (o continue operations for a penod of ai east 12 moniis rom
e date of approva. of ine Company's financia. siaiemen:s.

Te Board is, inerefore. of (ne goinion that tae going concern nasis adop:ed in fae preparation of the consolidaied financia
g demens is aporopria.

RS R e T S LA I S T L B R R L B P T A R LTI

e ey source of estimaaon Gnceriainty re ates 1o tho (,’m*oanvq mvesiran: in Crowd comoeanies. and s staed m one
Company's separate inanaia stalemaents al COS!.CSs iIMPArmen: ‘osses. if any. Inpalrnient 08508 are dotarmined with
relerence 1o “he INVOsSIIen~s fair va. o 'ess csintated cos's of digsposal Fair va.ae is derived from e suosidiaries’, and therr
s.uosidiaries’. net assals at e palance sncot dare Tnvestmen: oroperies ned oy Tnc subsidiary conpanies are s.poore

oy Independen: valuation Judgemenis and assLmoiions associaled with 1o propery va...es of e invesimen:s neld oy 1ae
g.os1diary companies are detailed in o Groop finanala, sialenenis,

Alabn
he hnancial statemenis of the Company (o ow the accoanting po icles .aid ou: in the Groups consolidataed financia
glalements a ong wiia e fo owing accouning 0o.icios wnian nave ogen consisienty apoied:

Tooreestaag, i . Cadamatl .
The mvesirents in s.osic hdry companies arc incoaded 1o te Company's Statemen: of Financia. Posilion a: cos. ess provision
for imnairnren:. rpairiment. ogses are determined wih reference 1o fne invesimend's fair va .o .oss csuntated se! ing cosis Fair
vd Le is derived Irom ag swosidianes’ and telr supsidianes. net assels at ihe pa.ance snee: dawe On disoosa | fne difference

peiween e nel disposa. procecds and 155 carrying amo.nt 1z ing Lded in the income salement.

The invesiment in a sLosidiary company nray ineh.de poin the parenase of snares and an INereompany .0an wnica is
sooogeqaent y capladsed in retarn for sharesn 71 sonsidiary contpany. The intercomoany oan capriaasad i« dise osedin
noie 70 as d rangler potween (1e £3ares and Loan <o.LIrns.

t . . Do e

Loans made (o subsidiary comopanies wich arige as par of Le ransacions [or Tho acgaisiion ot imyesinen:s andg ara
g.osedaenty cdaplaised oy e issae of snaros are recogmsad as Nvesiront U1 gLosidianos at cost AL e poInG e aan is
f?d;)ll'rl,h‘&-?d, IS ransacion is In”)gmw'i as a rangler wiinn e tdn omn nowe 76

Ba.ances arising wiin s, Obldldl’y comrpanies of @ lemoorary ndl.re arc mniia. y recogniscd ad [air va Lo and suoscaoant v
mads.red ar amorasad cost

2E0E SLANONDY ANV LAOdIH
FUL NSO IV 8
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

4.0 Envrdendds
Dividends are incuded in e financia: statements i oae year in waich
arc mcluded i notwe 4 0 of the Groue's congo.idaed hanaia siaten enis.

vy are paid Delai's of dividends paid and proposed

50 Empleyeprimiormanon
Delals ol Directors rem.nerauon are inc.dded in note 50 ot tne consolidated financia.
omn oyeed daring ine year (2021 nu)

emenis. T Company nad no

w3 Audiciees
Audit fees inre.ation o the Company's financia. staiements @ F296.000C (2021 F2772.000). For further detais. please reter ‘o
note 9.0 of the Grosn tinancia s'aemen:s.

IO frimosrapentog oo Rursidaae

Forthe

Sharesin Loans to yeat ended
subsidiaries subsidiaries 31 March 2022
£000 £060 E'0UL

Ba,ance aii'..'wszrneginning of (he year ) : 703,435 17,483 720,918
[ncrease in invesmienss 41,712, 31,013 72,725
loans transforrec 23,287 (23,287) -
[moairmen: {359) - (359)

Al the end of the year 7 768,075 25203 793284

For the yeal

shates Loans to ended

subsichares subsidianies 3t March 2021

) ) o0 ong . 777’.: o0

Ba.ance @ neginning of e year 678.217 28673 755,820

Increase ininvesiren:s 328 14383 15211
Loans sransforred 22572 123573

1.313)
17.483 720918

[mpatrn:en:
At the end of the year

Fo.owing a review Comparing <os of invesimen:s (o e anderlying ne: asse:s of suosidiary companies. an impatroman:

A A

arovision aas oocn made o £359.000 20210 £1.313.000)

Suasidiary erhlites
e Comrpany nas provided a gaaranioe wnder s479C of e Companies Ac: 20056 in respec. of ne nancia. yoar ended
31 Maren 2027 [or a nwroer of 138 sUbsidiary companies {as indicated in e lao.e on e lo owing pages) Thc guaranias ig

over al oustanding daoiines (o warca fie suosidiary companies dre s.o ect @t 31 Marca 2022 unit tney are sausfied in ..

Tae Grouh consiss of a garen: comopany. Criras S3ocia. Howsing PLC incorporated inTng.and and Wa es (company nemogr
104525287 and a numoer of s.ostdiating e d direc.y oy Civiiag Socia. Housing PLC, waicn soerate and arc incorgorated in
Eng and and Wa os or [arssy,

Tae Groun owns 1007 oty snaros of al gunsidianss asied pe.ow and nas e powear (o apooin: and remove o mazarity of
srivined 0y e Board of

zac coard of dircaiors of Those §.osidharies, The o ovan aciiviies of [0 oolow sunsidianas arc
Dirscors ased on tae o raose ol eacn comoany

TMoretore, e Direciors cono Lded Tnal ine Crowo nas conir overa. mese anilides and a o onese endiies 1age g
consoadatcd wiinn iac consoidaind hnanoia slalemwan:s




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

A st of a.related dndertacings ine uded within these consolida:ed financia. stazements are noed be ow. Indirecly hed
swostdiary comoeanies are mar<ed oy an indentanon in e table ne'ow:

Name ranclpal acuvity . _Counnuy ol Incarpoalion
a;’itégiﬁm.7§01j:~:i1767FinarnC{—; Co'nti’r;any 1Limied® 15997737 Finanae comoany Engiand & Wales
Civiias Sociai [Tousing Jersey 1 Lamited 124129 Ho.ding company Jersey
Chvitaz 5PV Lincited” 13518729 Frooery nvesimen: eng:and & Wales
Civitas SPV2Z Limited? 1C114751 Proper:y invesuncn: England & Wales
Civitas SPVH Timited® 10515749 Propeory invesimen: Fng'and & Waies
Civitas SPVIS lumited® Ca9777380 Property investmern: Engiand & Wa:es
Civitas SPV25 Limied® 10791473 Progcrty invesimaon: Lngland & Wa:es
Civitas SPVAT7 lamited” 10883112 Prooerty investmean: Eng.and & Wa.es
Civiias SPV33 lamied” 10545407 Prooery invesirean: Engand & Wa a3
Civizas 3PV35 Lumited*® 10588330 Proporty invastmen: Ing and & Wa.es
Civitas SPV38 limited” 10758518 Fraveny mvesimer. Eng.and & Walcs
Civitas SPV39 Limied® 10347333 Property invesiunent Lng.and & Wa es
Crvitas SPV4¢C Limied? 16738510 Property invesimean: Fng.and & Wa.es
Civiias 5PV4l Linied” 10738542 Propery mnvesinent Eng.and & Wa.cs
Civitas SPVEC Limied* 10775419 Property invesimoen: Tng.and & Wa.es
Civiias Socia. Howsing Finance Conmpany 2 Limited* 10997598 Finance company Eng.and & Wa.cs
Civitas Social Houasing Jersey 2 Limiad 124875 Ho.ding company Jersey
Civiias SPV3 Limited® 15156529 Propery invesimen: Eng.and & Wa.cs
Crvlias SPV4 Limited” 10433744 Propery myaesiment Lng.and & Wa.cs
Crvizas SPVS Limiied® 15179184 Pronery invosimen: Fng and & Wa.es
Civiias SFVa Limed® 15574493 Propery invesimern! Eng.and & Wa.cs
Criizas SPV9 Liited® 15536388 Progery iInvesimens Lng and & Wa es
Civtas SFVIC Limied! 13533243 Propcriy imvasinent Ing.and & Walcy
Civizas SPV12 Limrited! 10545753 Proper.y invesimer. Erng.and & Wa.ns
Creizas EPVI7 Limiied® 10479038 Propory INVasinmoen: Cng.and & Wa.es
Civias 3FViIE Limited! 15545551 Proporiy Invesimen: Lngland & Wa.cs
Crvicas 5PVIS Liriied” 15548932 Propery lnvesimern. Fngland & Waos
Ciwvias SPVZ0 Limited® 10588735 Prooery invesimen: Engiand & Wales
Civiras SPV22 Limiied® 10743958 Property invesunen: Eng.and & ‘WNales
Civitas SPVZ4 Limited” 10751517 Proporny invosimen: England & Wa.as
Civitas 3PVZ5 Lamuited* 13851336 Proporny invesimen: Eng and & Walcs
Civitas SPVZ9 Limed” 10911545 Properly inves!imeit England & Wales
Civitas SPV3G Limited® 10956075 Property invesumen: Ingand & Waies
Civizas SPV31 Limized! 10971889 Propory inves maon. Lng and & Walcs
Crvizas 3PV32 Limied* ToCN73 Pronery invesimern. Eng.and & Wa.es
Civiias 8PV Lumied! 10738381 Propory invesimons Eng.and & Wa'es
Civitas 3PV35 Limiod! 10588792 Propory invesiman: Fruiy.and & Wa.cs
Crvitas SPV4Z Limited! 10738555 Property invesimen. Lng.and & Wales
Crvitas SPVA3Z Linuted” 13534677 Prooery invesimon: Engand & Wa es
Civitas 3PV45 Luried* 10871554 Propery imvesimaen. Fng and & Walcs 2
Crvitas SFVAo Limicd” 1GR71910 Prooerty invesinan: Eng.and & Wa es % ;
Ciwvitas SPV47 Limrcd* 1G87527C Propery iInvesinien: Tng.and & Wa.cs Z é
Clvras SFV48 Tamiedt 13873295 Fropery invesiraon: Fngand & Wa o= ; E
Chvras SPVEL Lumied? 158265693 Fropery invesavoen: Eng and & Waes é :5_‘
Crvtiag SPVER Lumiod* 15827005 Fronery mvesinman, Tng and & Wa.cs =EZ
Crviag SPVSE Limirad® 10937805 Fropery invesimaon. Fng.and & Wa.cs

Regisiered number
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Continued

Name e
Civias SPVE4 Limiced*®
Civizas SPV70 Limed®
Civitas SPV71 Limited®
Crviras SPV72 Limired*
Civitas SPV?4 Limied*
Civiias SPV7S Limited”
Civitas SPV8EG Limited®

Civitas Social Howsing Finance Company 3 Limied*
Crvizas SPVB Limiied!

Civiias SPV28 Limited*

Civizas SFVSZE Limiied*

Clviiasg SPV55S Limied®

Civitas SPV37 Limicd”

Crvitas SPVAC Limied*

Civiras SPVE1 Limied*

Civiras SPVAS Linried®

Civitas SPV77 Limied”’

Civitas SPV78 Limried’

Civiias 3PV79 Limiied®

Civizas SPV81 Linitad?

Civizas SPVE2 Luried!

Civreas SPVES Limied®

Civiias SPVE3 Liried®

Crsitas SPYVAS Tinied”

Crvizas SPV97 Limied®

Civias SPVICS Linvited*

Civitas SPVIGS Lintead?

Civizas SPVICH Lintied?®

Crelias SPVICT Limrred”

Civizas SPVUS Limied*

Civiias SPVU7 Limted’

Civizas Socia. [lossing Finance Conpany 4 Limied?
Civitas SPV23 Limied?

Civizas SPVST Lurrad”

Clvias 3PV58 lumie
53 Limad”
Crvag SPV7E Limred”
Civizas SPV84 Limicd'
Civizas 3PVE5 Limiied®
Civiias SEVET Limited”
Civizas 3PVE8 Limmiied*
Civias 5PVITT
Crst.as 3PV91 L
SPVYS Linnad®
SPVIYE Linmed”

Craas 3P4 Limiied!

Civiag

Crorzas SPUVI5 Lirread”
Cyoras 3P0 Lo d®

Crsras SEVICT Limmr od®

__ Remqustered number

16938111
10770201
10888639
10938622
1NCCI85S3
11501834
11061998
10997711
10535157
10895228
11021425
NC554355
11291444
11111968
10937562
10937898
11155491
1175099
112363544
M92811
11385795
11371128
11353749
11208184
1145389C
1560585
11532177
15332179
11535182
11504399
11504445
11904560
15745881
139753
sz
11142374
13939075
11381435
14184737
10888903
159339541
15959131
15941377
11443912
HCA31L
N2C81CE
HETCT85
[CR9703

3978282

Pruncipdl acnvity

Countty sl mcotporaton

Propery inchmen’.
Propery invesuren:
Proverty invesimen:
Froperny invesimien:
Prooery mvas.men:
Propery invesumen:
Fropery invosimen:
Finance Company

Propery mvesimren:
Property invesircn:
Property invosimen:
Propery invesimen:
Propery mvesimen:
Propery invesimon:
Propery invesimen:
Progear v inmvesiraen:
Provery invesimen:
Property invesimen:
Fropery INVesiTen:
Propery invesinien:
Fropery invesimen:
Propery iInves.men:
Fronery invesimen.
Progerty invesimen:
Proner.y invesaman:
Propery invesimen:
Frocory mvesiman:
Fronersy Invesimelt:
Propery invesiren:

P['O_DC L myesimaen:

Fronery nvesimen:
Finance Com pany

Fropery invesimen.
Propery Invesimen:
Progery invesiumon.
Propersy mvasimarn:
Froosry inves.eon:
Propery invesinian:
Pronery INVCsmen:
Provery invesimen:
Prooer/ vesaran.
Froperymmsosnen
Prooer.y nvesaron:
Provery ves mon.
Propary INVes men:
Properyinvagimen:
Froocrymiesaran:
Fro

FI’LJ;‘JGI’T‘] InVesE:

[N FTARN

Fng.and & Wa.
Eng and & Wa’
ng.and & Wa!
England & Wa.

Eng and & Wa e

Eng:and & Wa.
Cngiand & Wa'

England & Wal
g and & Wa'e

Eng.and & Wa.
Fng and & Wa.

England & Walo
Ing.and & Wa .«
Eng.and & Walcs

Fnyg and & Wa
England & Wa.
Crngand & Wa'
Fngland & Wa'

Eng and & Wa o
Frg.and & Wa.e

Eng.and & Wa
Fng.and & Wa

Log and & Wa

Eng and & Wa ¢

Eng.and & Wao

Fng.and & "‘Wa

gl

Lng.and & Wa.

3

Lng and & Wa

e}

Eng.and

P2l

Eng.and
Wa
Eng.and & Wa
Wa
Wa

¢}

I'mg and

d

&

Eng and
fng.and

@

2

Eng.and

Wa

o)

fng.and

Engand & Wa.

Cng.and & "~Na.c

Eng.and & WMa

Eng and & Waz

W

Cing and

og]

Fng.and

Fngand & Wa o
Eng.and & Wa ¢
Lngand & Wa ¢
Lngand S Wa ¢

Frng and & "Wa

Fngand % \Wa ¢

Eng and & °"Aa e

Wa e

Wa.o

Wa e

es

(SR
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Naie

Ci

Vvitdas SRV I.lTT-‘,-lis—:d'

Crvitas SPVIGY Limied”

Civitas SPVIA Timred®
Civiias SFVILY Limied!
Crvitas 3PVILS Lumiad!
Crviag SFVIS Lhniad®
Civtas SPVI21 T ad®
Crivitas SPVI12Z Limlied”

Ci

viras SPVIEH Linrited®

Civitas 3PV127 Limied*

Ci
Cl

vitas SPV129 Limiwed!

viias SPVISC Lunpedt

Crizas SPVIS! Limited®

Ci
Ci

Ct
T
i

viias SPVI132 Limed!

vitdas SPVIS Lincied*

SPV153 Limiied {provious.y Fic.dpay Limicd)*

vi.as SPY14E Lumried?

vitas SPVIA9 Limied”

vitas SPVISE Limiied”

FPICC 324 [d*
Civitas Socia. Ho.sing Finance Comeany 3 Limnoed*

C1
&
!

viias SPV7 lumited*
vitas SEVIS Limiod?

viras SPV3E7 Limred?

Civizag SPYVA4 Limrited?

)
i

viras SPUA9 Limicod*

viiaw SPVED Limited”

Civiiag SPVH2 Lirred!

Oy
Ci

vitas 3PVas Lintnedt

vilas SPYVA7 Tumied!

Civitas 3PVaE Liriiad?

Ch
C

vitas 3FVA8 Limirod?

vitas sPVA9 Linved’

Crviras 3PVIC4A Limied?

Civitas SFVICE Luried®

Civitas 5PVIE Lirited?

Ci

viias SEVIZE Lintiedt

Civiias SPVI53 Lo iad”

Civizas SFV134 Limicd!

i
1
i
1
i

C‘]

Cix

(@}

V1.ds

EANE

viias SPVISS T i ed*t

vitas 3FV135 Binriiedd!

vitas SPUVT45 Limriied”

Viag SPVH T Linited®

"5 Limried®

Bryn Tioun 2319 Line

18 SPVIYT Luriiad*
M orydd Mawr (2019

SPVISA Limibed!

vias SPVISS Limied®

iznd?

Limre:d?

Regustered nunbet
1521585
11532120
11579750
1579735
11522178
11411498
NG99917
11182545
11456831
12941401
11654954
1755074
1575152
11473735
11842305
5219012

115633619
13383677
15536358
00517592
15738455
13588783
NCZ1549
11555465
10927528
15938467
15937929
15338269
11478895
Nn478707
11532174
11832135
11580068
08255152
11595972
11583451
1579883

1579740

11316878
11546595
118515503
11844898
11EH1971
11644917
11953579
17044061

Prncipal actvity

Propery INVesircen:
Properiy INVes mart:
Propery invesuner:
Propery invesinmcn”
Fropoery invesimen.
Prorerty invesint s
Prooerty invesimon:
Propoery invesintant
Frooer.y invesiniani
Proporv nvesimoen:
Prooery invesimen:
Proooriy iInvosiamont
Prooory invesimaon:
Propery invesirean:
Ho.ding conmapany

Properiy invesurearn:
Propery Ivesiren:
Prooery invasimen.
Progerny invesunen:
Proocriy mvesimaen:
Finance Comoany

Proporsy insoesimen:
Pr()per!y InJesinan:
Proacriy invesmhen:
Prouory invasinien:
Prooery Invesinteni
Prooeriy Invesinient
Propery invesinen:
Prooeriy inwesinen.

PI‘O}’JCI’T‘/ INVaEIImont

Proporny inves moen:
Prooerny mvesirean,
Proocriy iInvesimen:
Froperty invesimaen:
Propory inves.men.
Property inves noen:
Frooery mvesimen:
Prooper:y invesimeon:
Frooersy invesunran:

Properiy inves.men.

Fronery iny Heh
Frooorsy invesin e
Prooory invesiman:
Ho ding Company

Froocry inves nen
o dmng Comroany

Prooerty invesinon!
Propory invesiman:
Proaersy insegimen:

Counuy of 1ncorporaton

ngland & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.oy
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Waies
Engrand & Wa es
Lngand & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wa.cs
Fng and & Wa.cs
Lng.and & Wa.es
Fng.and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa.es
Lng.and &

Frrg aind & Wa es

"Na as

Eng and & Walcs
Eng and & Wa cs
Engiand & Wa.eg

Eng'and & Wa'as
Frg and & Wa es
Eng and & Wa cs
Ing and & Wa es
Ene and & Wa 23
Eneg and & Wa es
Frng and & Wales
Fng.and & Wa os
Eng and & Wa es

Eng.and & Wa.os

&
Lng.and & Wa os
Frg and & Wa oy
Eng and & Wa.cs
Ingand & Wa cs
Fig and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wa ecs
ng amd & Wa as
By and & Wa eg

Wa.es

)

Tng and
Wa.es

VW

England
“Maes

@

Fng.and
fng.and & Waes
Eng and & Wa cs
Lngiand & Wa.os

Lng and & Wa os

Fng and & Waes
Eng and & Wa cs
Fog and & Wa os
Fng.and & Wa os
Eng and & Wa.cs
Frg and & Wa'es

Eng.and & Wa.cs
ng and & Wa os

CEOF SLNOOOY NV L
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Nun’xe . . ) R ) stered number
Chvizas SPVISS Limmed” 12061093
Civicas 3PVIS7 Limited! 121885610
Civitas SPV158 Limited? 1220267
Civitas SPV1aG0 Limited” 12272905
Bedford 5PV Limied* 12315518
Bridge Propery Her:s Limiied? 12435985

124454739

13515225

10479041

12784895

Bridge Propco Limited”
FPI Co 294 L:d*
Civizas SPV14 Limited’
Civitas SPV HIP Lid *

Civitas 3PVI6 Limited® (9917557
Civiiag SPVZ Lin:red? 1553151
Civitas SPV159 Limied! 12258313

i~as Flnancin_g_ PLC*

13546154

noipal actnty

Proper:y ins

Tent

PF()_H(‘F‘\/ mnvesunrent
Property invesiman:
Property invesuren:
Propery invesiamen:
Property mves.man:
Properny invesimen:
Proporiy invesumen:
Fropersy invasimen!:
Propery invesiment
Propery invesimeani
Propery InvesiImen:

Propery invesimon:

Fou_nr_r__‘:;figﬂpumuon
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.cs
Fngand & Wa.es

Eng:and & Walcs
England & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wa.es

Cng.and & Wa.cs
Eng and & Wales
Eng.and & Wacs

Eng and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Walcs
Fng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa'es

Eng..‘-miqg'fu’a_es

* These entities are exempl [tom The reguiements of the Compamnes At 2006 relating 1o the audit of indwvidual finanmal statements by vittue ol Secuen 4794 ol that

Aet These are all entilies that have a yoar endd of 31 Mari-n 2022

The registered addresses [or 1ng soosidiaries are consisien: passd on e counry T Incorporaion and ara as o) ows:

+ England & Wales entities: Bea.for TTouse 51 Now Boron Road. Fxe

» Jersey entities: 12 Caste Sirec:. 8: [1o 1ern Tersey JE2 SR

Trade recevaoles
Prepaymeonig and oiner receivad o
Accraed incomes

'i'otal

Frepaymen:s and oner receivao.e amaants e ode propard .

peen Incurred N Cconneciion wiin acd.lanions yor 1o oe comrp eied and £1.064

WOr<s on ne propery poroio

Casn ne d oy so.a0iiarg

Lugaidiy fands

Tesnoed casa

Total cash held at bank

Lipadiy tonds refer o nuoney @ aced inomoney narqe fands Thasse are Agasy ad.anid faonds wiia aceessmos |

and 5.0 o0 o nalgnitican: risc of cnandes in ya e

Casa ed 0y s 1CEors is nongsy e o 1N escrow [or Cx0cnses expe e
sending somo cion

These tondy are a.alaneimirediae ;oon daman:d
Resiriccod casa renroserncy arra .ns ao.d or sneciic comn
rranon o detorred vaymenis sao’
nanoe and imoroveman:

a and professiona fens of 734,

Cyacaiesenant of coram condliiions

cor. Devon EXA4 4LF

A

SCGAGZL £255.0

3tMarch2u2z  siMarch 2021
£ 000 £ 000

1150 77
1,902 1453

AN}

LAl ave

.000 (2031 EBI7.GOGin resoec: of Lncompleiod

menig enant denosiig and re.ention mancy aa.d
e raenionsz and o )

s1Match 2022 3 March 2021
£ 000 Foon

376
10,489
12258

15 185
7381

23123 11584
5 85t
23438 19417

an 2t niours

oooeine gred Inre alon O AanyesITon: orogeriuns

A/ are
gregaced o fond rsoar

WOIKS G ONNg L 0roveries Lo o saefaciory slandards for soe Crowo and Dhc nans




Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

S Trade e otirer pasy aoies

31 March é(JZZ 31 March 2021
goun Loy
Reeniions ' o ' N ' - - 288 490
Accr.a's 685 130
Dividend withho'ding tax nayaooe 1,057 892
Deferred incoma 358 358
271,632 199,453
274020 171555

Anounis due .o saosidlary companies
Total

2.0 Bhave vapiial

Saare capiid: represen:s (e noming. va.ac of consideration recowed ny the Comdany tor 112 83,0 of Ordinary ghares

Fot the Fot the
year ended year ended
31March 2022 31 Match 2021
_ o o . I L _f:'_nnn £ 00
Share capital
Al osginnmg and end ot yaar 6,225

ot the year Far the- year
ended etided
s1March 2022 31 Match 2091

Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
Ao peginming and ond of year

622,461380 5°2.451.380

Toe Comoany o.ds 10225000 (2021 345,000 Ordinary snares in reasary 7ne nomoer of Ordinary shares wsed 1o caucs ale e
THY, ASHE. VE L 06T 2 1are 8 012435380 (2021 A2LA9L 38D
PR e e d B e
Taig rogorve reoresens e orolis and osses of e Company
For the Fiat thies
year ended year ende-d
31Manch 2022 51 March 2021
— _ I £000 fann,

Baance a e (Je:gjmm-lg ot Hu '_-;’s;al‘ (61.47_3) (8&3‘-.-84'3)
Froti for s voar 21,362 52784
Dividends oaid inie year {34.093) 135413

At end of year {74,204) (G175

C A Mare

L2002, 0180 18 N0 L IITNate SONol Ny Dary

EIEEE EEARNT IR B SR A S I AL

Fora . re.acd pa ST 0D AVIRET D CHRS 00 TRIBTeNe 10 NOWS
cusCrog oy consoddaied inancia, statemenig and arroun s dae o soasidiary comaantes in notc 178 aooa

Inland

FAnEactond dud ransac. iong e swe I

- [ N S T N R

Picaze reter o noe 330 o1 e Gros o Conso idaied mancia siasmonis on oage 17
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative

performance measures

Nows o5 supaor ine TRPA mretnes disc.osed on gages 36 and 37 of &
melric are o.lined

CTETRA T g

Earnings from operational activities
Proli. ator taxauon (FO60)

Change in fair va..e of denwvative {inancla, msiromens (FQG6)
Changes in va we of inves.ron. properiies (7CEGCH
FPRA Eérrﬂrfgs {E'G'jki) -
Weighied average nm:oc-r":)f sharcs in iss‘.-‘r?_ (c—adi;s-:ec for shares ne.d in

naze & ditned

FEHA MAV Mawrias

31 March 2022
Netasseis (D000

Fair +a Je of derivative tinancia. insruamen:s (7000)

Fair va ue of pan< porrowings (000)

FATT AR
FAW (D000

Eooer of snarcsinsg.e {ad Lsed for shared nedan reas.r)

INAY oot snare

31 March 2021

Nt asseis (0000)
Fair va_.e ol dertvaive financia msr .meontg (00000

W

red for sharod ao.d i reas.an?

Invesiaron. proocrsy (0G0

A owance for esantaied parcaasers cosis (005

faatel

wed pragory sorifoan (o0

Gross Doompe )

ATtad 180 e Tens (TR0

Add. noiona: ren exoraiion ol rant free penods ar oer case

Topocd-uone annLddsed ren(ECA0)

TRRA NTY
EFRA Toovned-uo NIT

16 Rapor wihere -

HCas.aryt

noeniyes (oo

For the year
ended
31 March 2022

44.754
(2,675)
(12,269)

EPRA Net
Renstatement
value

29,810

618797,942 57155

482p

EPRA Net
Tangible
Agscis

1e definiion and o..rposge of cach

For the yeat

ended
31 March 2021

EPRA Met
Disposal
value

675,547

(2.131)

673,416

675,547
(2,131)

673,416

675,547

678,191

612,436,380 612,436,380 612436380

_103.96p

EPR ANt
Rernstatement
Value

673498
0441

109.96p

LCPRA Net
Tandgible
Assers

For the
year ended
31 March 2022

368,756
56,412
1025168
54,091
54,001

5.28%
528%

110.74p

EERA Net
Msposal
Value

373498

(2.022)
6714745

571895380 H21.896.580

107970

For the
year erded
31 March 4021
NR589
53793
3519342
35788
30780
G524

524

g.
2
3l
of -
F]
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative
performance measures continued

3.0 LPRA VR ane, Hase

roi the For the

yeat ended veat ended
. . N N . 31Marchzb22 5 Marchanai

Estnrated Marse: Renta Va...e (ERVY of vacan: spaces (F1G00) -
Ts hraied Marer Renta. Va. oo LRV of who e oortfo o (7000 54,091 50380
EPRA Vacanay Rae - T 7@ ) 0%

5.0 FPHA Costs Rane

For the: For the

vear ended year ended
— S e — - B - . ._ 31Marchz0z2  s1march 2021
Tona administraitve and ooporaling e£0enses 10.247 9138
Diredt pronoery expenyes 978 1175
Less Drogcriv CADONRSS recoversd rouwgn rens (995) 1885}
EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs) 10,230 3787
Direcivacanoy cass -

10230 9787

EPRA Costs {excluding direct vacancy costs)

Rema income 51,636 A9.540
(995) 1888)

[288 recarg«an.c oo8s racaivind
50.641 48134

Gross rental income

EPRA Cost Ratio {including direct wvacancy costs} 20.20%

20.20%

EPRA Cost R_atip (exc]uciing direct vacancy costs)

Tac Crowo nas no, ine.rred any diree. vacanay eosis

BOFRTRs T aoee T g st f aneniere
T o o FOL the ’ Fon thes
year ended vear ended
31 March 20022 A1 Marct 2021
[ IR EO00
33,466 12158
Deve oonent -
Investment properties
marawenia 2lag s spads - B
Ennancing ean e 30ace 5,818 4577
Tonan INCCnIves 1614 e
Cacrmaana non-a ocaid yoes of ox L - -
Caoraasad mniersy: -
Total Capital Expehditure T S Esﬁ 3103
CONATSION P avor .4 s 20 casa Hasis - - 1,312 )
Total Capital Expendiluré on a cash basis T ’ 42210 ”:‘..5]7

1o CEL 0 188 Nty caniaased any overnead 9 S00rating « X031 §

ISEME LT

S ROCTAL

~
3
<
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z
z
z
<
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the
calculation of EPRA and other alternative
performance measures continued

LAES B TR v

TFRS NAV 4

FEPTNE IR
wegted o refec mvesaen. oropery va wod on a nortfodo pasis ratier tan individ.a. assel basis

31 Maich 2622 31 March2na

Net asse:s (000 ' S 675547 573498

Adiieimen: Ior caange (o oroneny va.adion (1600 76,784 33270
Por:iolio ne:t assers (£'000) 752,331 735,758
Taombar of Grdinary syaresin issue {(ad; .sied tor snares qo.d inirecas.aryl 612,436,380 571895380

Porido.o MNe: Asses per snare 122.84p 18470

B G Leveragoed Intersad rate o vocn (IWES
THigag e annea growin rate nased on grow i in nel assel va Lo per sadre since awnca and dividends pawd (o
Ordinary shareno ders.

AMach 2022 5 March 2021

IFRS NAV per share o 1103000p 1083000
31 May 2017 ntenm dividend 0.7500p 07500

31 August 2017 Interine dividend 0.7500p C.75000
30 Novemaer 2017 Tnerint dividend 0.7500p 073600
9 Maren 2018 Inzeriny dividend 0.7500p 075000
81.no 2018 Inarine dividend 1.2500p 128000
7 Seniemaer 2018 Inernim dividond 1.2500p 1.25000
30 Novemper 2018 Interim dividand 1.2500p 1725000
11 Tan.ary 2019 Incenme dividend 1.1100p 1NGGo
28 Febr.ary 3019 In:erin: dividand 0.1400p o0
7 Juno 2019 Inzerime dividend 1.3250p Co

3 5epromber 2019 Iniarim dividend 1.3250p
29 Noven oor 2019 Irverine divigend 1.3250p
28 Feor.ary 2020 nienpe dividend 1.3250p
12 Tune 2070 Iverio dividond 1.3250p
7 3epromaer 2020 Inzerim dividond 1.3500p
4 Dccemocr 2020 nierine dividend 1.3500p
| Maic.1 2021 In.erne drvidend 1.3500p
11 ]une 2021 Inenm dividend 1.3500p -
10 Seoienwer 2521 Ierine dividernd 1.3875p

13 Decemper 2071 Inern: dividend 13875p

In:enim dividend 1.3875p -
- 134.4875p 12697500
[FRS ALY vor snare al.awnsn 98.0000p 380000p
Lovered TRR 6.63% H 14

]
kel

)

[ IS RS, B |
]

11 Marcn 2022
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Five Year Financial Results

Crnerefr B e En [T N IR R ¥ &

) T ror the

period rom
yedlreul;dlgg ‘p’t‘dfl;ol;(;l;:; ‘{f‘-lfr;"jl'tf;:j year :‘:lﬁ.‘ls w Nt]v&“l‘l‘l‘:‘l:
I March 2022 $1March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Marcli 201y 31 March 208

: — o “E00 LT e oo R 00D
Revenue
Renia ncome 51,636 430720 45155 3BT3E 18 506
Less direg: properly expanses (378) 11175 (259
Net rental income S 50,658 47345 45906
Diraciors ron JNGIANION (206} (198) (1761 {163} (Z05)
Invesimen: adyisory fees (6.132) 5117 (5.18%) 15.457) {3.773)
Gonerd. and adminisiralve £xpanses (3,909) (3.18%) 2500 (3.027) 12,915
Total expenses (10247) (94981 (9840 (9,542, (@ 893
Changs i fair va, .o of NIVesiraen: Qroperies 12,269 5.51 9389 3552 Z0.A5%
Operating Profit 52680 %858 45435 39748 40746
Finance income N 7 26 1 m .
Friance oxoonsCs  ro.aling 1o 0ank uorrowings (10.608) AN 74 (3.875; iLG4L
Finance exoen reating o Csaars amrorisalon - 12.792)
Change in fair va..e ol intercst rate denvanves 2.675 1478}
Profit before tax T 44754 s 854 30.974
TaXalon -
Profit being teftal comprehensive income o 44754 35075 19854 35975
Earnings per share - basic 7.23p 5800 15550
Earnings per share — diluted 7.23p 58Co 5770
Dividend declared ) 5.55p 540n 360D
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Five Year Financial Results

Continued

g Birvae pat Poeoron

Looaoun 3uilure e

Assets
Non-current assets
Investmaont pr()_:)czr'.y
Omner reeclias.es

Inseras: raw dernwvatves

Non-current assets

Trade and olaer recevanies

Caszn and casgh ogadva ens

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trado and oihaer pavan.cs
Ban< and oan oorowings

C snarcs

Non-current liabilities
Ban< and oan porrowings

[niersys rate derivatlves

Total liahilities

Total net assets

Assets
59are canra
Share pramiur resorve

Caprra. red e

ON reserve
Rorained earnings

Total equity

Net assets per share - basic

Net assets per share — diluted

Portfolio NAV

Share price

Total shareholder return (on a NAV basis)
Leverage

31 Match 2022 31 Mairch 2021 8 Marehu 2020 7 March 20ie
__Eg0v

945,237
23,518
2,131
970,887

12,865
53.337

66,202

£

893.584

21965

915.589

12.821
107.597
119.918

1,037,089 1035507

(9,492}

{9.492)

(352,050)
(352,050}

__{361.542)

675547

6,225
292,626
322,365

54,331
675547

119.30p
110.30p
122.84p
87.40p
37.23%
34.43%

(9.345
{39,937}

(59287

2321831

15344

575498

5225
792463
33140
45570
373,498

ICE 300
108 300
NEA7TD
1G7 800
2q "7’

3448%

fonn

837588

16755

I0.838
58,371

878743

89217

347955

{7.743:

159.730)

67473

(259 440)
478
7095181
(27739

475,554

£oun

53773
54347
50070

885988

(15324

167 870
17870
NE350
93400
23544

saenv

107080
107580
113 070
5000

7437

A Marclh 2016
4 ng

15,175}

(298.752)
3089281

103310
135540
113850
97400
10 767

12004

- 3
2f

| &
&
]
=
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of "p each are quored

on the Offical last of the “Ca and -raded on the pramiam
segment of the Yaimn “Zarke of *he ondon Sock =xchange
L)

SEDOL number 328-3)3%

ISIN GI0C3D8=3082 -
Ticker/TIDM  CS= L
LEI ) ALSBULPGIGEA8GYVIEIGE

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Campany's MAY 18 refeaz=d "0 the 8- on a quarterly
bazig and pubhshed on “he Companys websiie

WL CIvITassocalhoasing.enm

Sources of Further Information
Copier of The Company's Aannaal and —alf-vearly Reporis,
Stock ~xchangs announcemenss and further mformanon
an the Company can be obramed from e welssre

v Clvitassoctalhousineg com,

Share Register Enquiries

The requeter for -he Company's Ordiary shares s
mamnzamad by ank Grodp, n the evens of quenas
recrarding your holding. pigase con-acs the Reqgisrar
on 8577 0651 0300 10alls are charged a” “he gmandard
geographte rate and vall vary by provider, calls ouaide
The Lounil e chargad ar the appheable mternationial
ratel e are open between 9.00am and 5 30pm,
omde “niday evctading public holidasyain ngiand
and Wa

Changee of name and/or addreza mas e nonfied n
wTring "o the Jegigtrar, Jnk Groap. "Oh loor Cencrat
Seraare, 29 Welling-on Sre=t, Loeds 5 40

Key Dates

June B W.r’-.nnxml reelts ;]nggumeci
Vﬁrﬁ.’:a‘,'me-:n‘ of fo:ntf:ﬁlﬁat elvnd=nd ﬂ
Sggtember COTI’B{E}II'—,"F Malf-year enﬁdﬁ
. Annaal generad meeunyg
o yyment Lg.if:rsr' 11T (Jl‘,’L(JSI-]fJ
December 3 —alfeearly resalbis annonneed N
Saymene of 2zcotvt trrenm dind=nd
february caymen of -turd ntenim dindend
March T and

CVeat man also emall sncpnnes 2hnkgrouapeoak.

Association of Investment Companies
The Company e a member of the A C, which pubhshes
sransucal informanon in respec of member companies
The A Ccan ke contacted on 020 7282 554, enguinesd
‘heaic.couk or vigr the welisire: www.healc.coak

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Saareno ders now 1ave | 1e Dooor.WGny (o ne noatind oy
sirdl W on e Comrpany g Annsa Repord Hat-Yoary
Reportand omer formea. comiranicanons are avai a0.o on
e Comoany's wapsize msoad of recoding onnted copies

oL 008L TIg 1as Onvironnianid. ooneits mn e red weiion of

0aANCT 2rNTNG. energy and waer Lsage a8 we. as red.aoing
cogis to e Conaany

Tron
0 do R0 D ease

Cdave not acready
SO LHCATIDNE o
contac e Roegisirar




Glossary

AIFM means the Alrernanve invesimen: Sind Manager

AIFMD m=zans ‘he Allernative nves'men: tand Vanagers
Regualanons 2075 as amended by The Alternanve
nvesimen: Cund Vanagerg itAmendment erc) (50 SxT)
Qegaialanons 2079 and the investmen: “unds Sourcelook
forming par: of the 'CA —andbook,

ALMO means an arm's leng h managemen: organisaiion,
a not-for-profit company tha: provides housing sernces
on behalf of a Local Aathory

Alternative Performance Measures (A7 V3! means a
hinancial measare of hmgtoncal fiinancial performance,
financial posmon, or cash flows, other than a financial
measurs defined or spectfied in ~he appheabte finanmal
reporing framewaork.

Annualised rent roll m=ang the -0tal renzal income due
over the first year from the date of valuation, inclading an
esumated rental uphf- based on along-termanflation raze.

Approved Provider means Approved “roviders, Local
Authornes ALY Os, Communlty nterest Compeanies,
Reqgistered Channes and other regulated organisations
directly or indirectly i rece: of paymen: from local or
central governmen: inchidimeg the M= 5.

Care Provider means a provider of care services 1o the
ocecupanty of Specals: Suppored —ousing, reqgisterad
wiith the Care Quality Commusston.

CIM means Clviras .nvestmen: Vanagemean: .imiied or
SOV formerly known as Clvias ~ousing Advisors amited
Jnil 1z change of name on 7 Jay 2020)

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by ~he Office of the Ragula-or of
CommJnuy nerest COMPAanias as a Ccommunity Inseres:
company and regietered as such with Companies —ousea

Company means Civiras soctal soasing .0, a company
incomporazed n sngland and Wwales with company
namber 04072528,

CMA Order means the 3:au0ry Aud Services Order
2574 1ssued by the Compennon and Varke:s Au-horsy,

Current Leverage mearns the percentage Taken ag toal
Lank borroviangs dravm ovar ~otal assets

Dividend Yield me«ans “he ratio of he total annual
dividend paymern:s over marke: price per share.

EPRA maans “he —urope=an Jabhe 2eal ~2tate Assocignion

EPRA EPS 1= the - 234 sarmings dwvnled by “he weughed
average namiber of shares inssue m “he perod.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV™) 15 an
=224 NAY meric which asaume=s that enries never sel
assers and aims o represent the value recuired fo rebzuld
“he eniy.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (*“EPRA NTA”™) 12 an 724
NAY mene which assumes thas entintes buy and sell
assers, thereby crysralhisimg cerain levels of unavoidable
deferred tax

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV”)} 15 an =’RA

NAYV memnc which represents the shareholders value
ander a disposal scenano, where deferred ax. financial
instraments and certain other adjustmenss are calculated
-0 the full extent of thelrr habilioy. ner of any resuliing ax

EPRA Run Rate means he raio of 4 company's earnings
{excluding fair value gams/oszes! over dividends paid o
shareholders

Gross Asset Value means total assers.
Group meaans the Company and s subsidianes

Housing Association or HA means an independen:
socery, body of trustees or company estakhished for
“he purpose of providimg tow-cos? zocial housing for
people in housing need generally on a non-profr
making basis Any rading sarplas s typcally used o
mam:an existing homes and o help Ainance new ones.
Soumng Assovianons are reqillated by the Requlazor of
Social Housing.

IFRS Net Asset Value or IFRS NAV m«<ans the ne: asse:
value of "he Group on the relevan: date. prepared in
accordance with (728 accouning prnnoiples

Investment Adviser means Civitas nvesimen:
Yanagemen: amied (C0VT a company mcorporated
sngland and Wales with company mumiber "0278444 1ru 173
capacty ag invesimen: adviger 1o the Company

IPO means umal Zabhc Offening.

IRR means nternal rate of remurn,

Levered IRR means the imrernal raze of rerurnancluding
“he mpac of detxs

wdies

Local Authority or LA means “he admimisranve |
for the local governmen: in zngland compnsing 326
adchonnes grchading 32 ondon boroughs,

Net I[nitial Yield means the raho of rier rencal income
and gross purchase pnee of a propery

NHS means he pubhcly funded healihoars syetem of
‘he Lned dmgdom compnsing The MNatonal Zeabh
Jervice 1n zngland, V=3 Scotland, N -5 Wales and =ealth
and Social Care i Norhern reland. including. for he
avordance of doub? N=s Trass

S
21
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Glossary

Continued

NHS Trust means alegal enay, setap by order of the
Secretary of State under gecnon 25 of. and schedule 4 o
the Manonal —ealh Service Act 2006, t0 provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service

Ongoing Charges (previously Total Rxpense Ralios

ar TRRsr means the figure pulblishaed annaally by the
Company which shows the drag on performance caused
Ty operdaiiondl expensas. Vors spacificaily. 1m 18 the
annaal percentage reduchon in shareholder returns as
a result of recurring OPEraional exXpengaes Jganming
markete remain staue and the portfolio is not raded
Alhough the Ongomyg Charges figure s based on
hisroncal informasion. 17 provides shareholders wih an
wehicanon of the hkely level of costs thar will be incurred
1N managng che Company n the faure

Partfolio means thie Group's porfolo of as

Portfolio Net Asset Value or Portfolio NAV means the
nes asser value of the Company. with asse s aggregaad
raher than vahued on an asse Iy asser basig, as a7 the
relevant date, caleulated on the hans of anmdependen-
Jortfoho Valuanon Ses note 70 1o Appendix T for g
reconcinaton o 28 AV,

Portfolio Basis means the Yortfoho Nay ws defined
abiove:

Portfolio Valuation measns an independen: valaatton of
“he Corfolto by Jones "ang LaSalle amuted or such other
property advizer as “he directors may select from ame

“o ame, based ypon the Cordfolio Leng held, ;0T
medhirec:ly, withun a conxorate vehicle or eguvalent ennsy
which 1 a wholly owned subsiduary of she Company and
otherwisa preyvared 1n acocordance vwith 2 C8 "2ed Jook
gadehines

direet

REIT means & <[aalifynug real exate inve an” TrdsET in
accordance wrh the L2 Regimenncrnducad by the
L Mnanee Ao 2009 and subsedquarly re-wri=n it
Tart 2 of the Comoranion Tax Ac 2070

RICS means 2oval ngiranion of Charrered Surveyors.

RSH means the 2aqgulator of Social =ousing, the
execivae non-deparmeantal public body, sponsored
by the Minsiry of Zousing, Communitey and ocal
Governmen:, whch 12 the requlasor for Social —omes
providers i Sngland and Wales,

Social homes or social housing means soc1al rentaed
homes and other accommaodation that are offered as
rens sulbaidzed below marke: level or are consmuents
of other appropriate ren: reqimes such as exemp: ren’s
ur are #abject 1o bespoke agresment with entines hoas
=35 Tragrs and are provided by Approved roviders

Specialist Supported Housing or §SH means sacil
housimg which incorporates some form of care or other
anollary service On “he premigss,

SPV means special purhose vehicls, a corporar= vehicle
i which the Grodis s proneries are hald,

Target Return means the Jarge” r2aarn on Inves mern”

Total Return means NMer Total Re~am. beaing the changs
mURE NAY over the relevant perod phas dindend pard

Total Shareholder Return me:ins a rmeasire of the
renirnt baged apon ghare price moveme2n. over The period
phis drndend pad,

Valuation means an independesn: valuanon of “ha
Porfolo Ly Juones Lang .aSalle smired or such orher
projrery advizer 4z “he Mireoiors may 2elacs from
Sirre TG Tne, prepared in acosrdance with 27C8 TRaed
Juok gwdennes and based upon a valuaston of 2ach
undertyirg treestrent propersy rather Than the valie
azcribed to “he porfolio and on he agsampnon of

a ‘hearanical sale of each propery rather “han “he
corpnrate ennnes in which atl of the Company ¢
HIVesTmenT proparies are held

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term"”
18 “he produc of annaahized re=n ol a® penod end and
“he e an years To owhen tha leage expires fur each gqiven
2 owarnmed acrass laages, and then divided by the
“utal anmizabged rane rol of “he porfolin The rasal- s
damepeary, WAL T s a ke measare of tha qua
CErorfola ondg lease term

hee securny of the company 2 income s

2R

f “he Lompan ined=rpm
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